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Financial Highlights
IBRE

2021 2020 Change
—E-—& —EoTE ¥
RMB million RMB million %
AR¥BEER AREBET %
Continuing operations TSRS
Financial highlights FBHE
Revenue Yeas 153.3 242.7 -36.7
Gross loss 1B (84.5) (44.6) 89.5
Loss for the year FNEE (515.2) (1,367.5) -62.3
Basic loss per share BRERERE
(RMB Cents) (ARES) (8.94) (33.84) -73.6
Diluted loss per share BREEEE
(RMB Cents) (AREED) (8.94) (33.84) -73.6
Total assets BEE 2,281.3 2,555.8 -10.7
Total equity R (13.7) 451.9 -103.0
Ratio highlights thEBE
Gross loss margin EEE (55.1) (18.4) 199.5
Working capital ratio (times) EEESLE(E) 0.9 1.1 -18.2
Quick ratio (times) REPEL R () 0.1 0.2 -50.0
Gearing ratio (%) BEREFEEZE (%) 96.0 75.0 21 pts
Revenue (RMB million) Total equity (RMB million)
K (AREEET) EnBAE(AREaET)
1200 2500 20646 23283
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Chairperson’s Statement
FERE

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of
Hua Yin International Holdings Limited (“Hua Yin International” or the
“Company”, formerly known as Ground International Development
Limited), | submit herewith the annual report of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March
2021.

Looking back from the second quarter of 2020 until now, the
coronavirus pandemic has ravaged the world. Under the change of
various external environments, every country and city needs to face
major challenges, and almost all industries are seeking for a living space
in this economic environment.

The direction of China’s “Fourteenth 5-year Plan” is to move towards
high-quality development of China’s economy through the concept of
“innovation, coordination, green, openness, and sharing”. In particular,
under the cultural tourism sector, it moves towards the direction of
“Culture creates tourism, tourism promotes culture, to build a unique
and enchanting Chinese cultural tourism experience”. The coverage of
the cultural tourism can be wide-ranging, and can be associated with
various industries/fields including healthcare, education, sports, history
and etc. With the epidemics going ups and downs in many countries
and the virus variants, cross-border travel has been restricted by closure
of country-to-country customs or quarantine measures, weekend
getaways and three-hour short- to medium-travel circles (including
high speed rail or self-drive tours to surrounding cities and suburbs) are
gradually getting popular.

In Mainland, “properties for living and not speculation” has been the
focus in the real estate market in recent years. The Central Government
of China has been using different policies and measures to regulate the
real estate market. During the year, the Central Government of China
took further cooling measures to stabilize the real estate market by
introducing the “three red lines” for banks to restrict and tighten the
real estate developers’ financing capabilities. Overall, strong demand
for domestic housing remains in existence; and with the newly issue of
“three-child policy” by the Central Government, such demand in the real
estate market can only be further increased. Therefore, there is still so
much room for development in property development in the domestic
market.
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Chairperson’s Statement
FREHS

During the financial year, the company continues the group business
transformation. In February 2021, the company disposed of its project
companies in Jilin City. In consideration of the cost and effort in selling
the remaining units and the market condition in Jilin City in respect
of the property types offered in these three property projects, it has
become burdensome for the Group to maintain these projects; and it
is considered more appropriate for the Group to deploy its resources in
other ongoing property projects.

Looking ahead, year 2021 will be the beginning of China’s 14th Five-
Year Plan. With the uncertainties surrounding the international economic
environment and the pandemic, the national macro policy will seek to
strike the balance over “stabilise growth, control risks, and promote
reforms”. The operation of various industries, global markets, and
consumer’s consumption patterns are in a stage of constant change.
Our Group would like to use past business adjustments, upgrades and
transformations to seize post-pandemic opportunities to concentrate
resources on the operation and development of its existing projects
and other future business opportunities, such as revolving around
cultural tourism-related industries, healthcare, education, new concept
tourism, and local consumer goods so to build a core, competitive,
multi-sectors integrated business model; in order to maximise returns to
shareholders.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my deepest gratitude to
the shareholders, investors, partners and customers who have given
us great support, as well as the directors, management and employees
who have worked hard with the Company. The continuous and stable
development of the Group is inseparable from their strong support.

Cui Xintong
Chairperson
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEERWED T

BUSINESS REVIEW

For the year ended 31 March 2021, overall revenue of the Group from
continuing operations was approximately RMB153.3 million (year ended
31 March 2020: RMB242.7 million), representing a decrease of 36.8%.
Gross loss from continuing operations was RMB84.5 million (year ended
31 March 2020: gross loss of RMB44.6 million). Net loss after tax from
continuing operations was RMB515.2 million (year ended 31 March
2020: a net loss of RMB1,367.5 million).

The disposal of Ground Real Estate Group Company
Limited and its project companies in Jilin City

On 26 February 2021, the Company entered into a conditional share
transfer agreement with a connected party, to dispose of all its equity
interests in the Group’s subsidiaries, namely (i) Ground Real Estate
Group Company Limited* (EZHESERHBRAF) (i) Jiin Ground
Real Estate Company Limited* (& 7k 4 & 2 #h &= & R 2 &) (i) Jilin
Zhuijia Real Estate Development Company Limited* (&M 25 = i &
FAZE AR A R]) and (iv) Jiin Wansheng Property Development Company
Limited* (2 #7H & F+ 5 th = F 2 B BR A 1), collectively known as the
the “Disposal Group”, at a consideration of RMB1.0 (equivalent to
approximately HK$1.2). The said disposal was completed in June 2021.

Outlook

In the future, our Group will seize new business opportunities after the
epidemic outbreak, integrate resources to carry out traditional cultural
inheritance and training, tourist spot operation and management,
healthcare, cultural innovation, the development of tourist products
and related consumer goods and infrastructure around themes such
as culture, health, education, new concept tourism, and surrounding
consumer goods, to create a development model with core
attractiveness and competitiveness and multi-industry integration.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEEWED AT

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)
Property Development
Contracted Sales

For the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group continued its sales of
completed projects, including the remaining highend villas at Guangze e
Tudors Palace, other residential units and commercial units at Guangze
Red House — Phases Il and Ill, “42&” and “TE&IZ" (previously known
as Wansheng e Qiancheng International), Guangze ¢ Amethyst City (all
of which are located at Jilin City, Jilin Province).

Besides, in July 2020, the Group successfully bid two land parcels
located in Jiutai District of Changchun City, Jilin Province with an
aggregate site area of 58,669 sg.m.. The two land parcels are permitted
to construct residential and commercial units with a total gross
floor area of 117,338 sg.m.. As at 31 March 2021, the Group has
commenced the construction of one land parcel; and has obtained the
related pre-sale permit for pre-sale in the beginning of September 2020
and commenced the pre-sales during the year.

Properties completed, delivered and sale of properties
recognised during the year ended 31 March 2021

For the year ended 31 March 2021, there were decreases in sales of
properties (excluding car park units) by 38.5% and recognised gross
floor area (“GFA”) by 47.6%. During the year ended 31 March 2021, the
Group had no newly completed and delivered projects.

For the year ended 31 March 2021, the sale of properties (excluding car
park units) related to the remaining units of the property projects that
were completed in the previous years was mainly contributed from the
sales of Guangze e Tudors Palace, Guangze ® Amethyst City, “42&”
and “f£&MHZ", Guangze China House Phase |, Guangze Red House
Phase Il and Phase lll, amounted to an aggregate of RMB92.0 million
and an aggregate GFA of 12,974 sg.m. (year ended 31 March 2020:
the sales of Guangze ® Tudors Palace, Guangze ® Amethyst City, “4
&’ and “TE& P ZE”, Guangze China House Phase | and Guangze Red
House Phase |, Phase Il and Phase Ill, amounted to an aggregate of
RMB149.7 million and an aggregate GFA of 24,748 sqg.m.).

° HUA YIN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED # Z BB #Z R B R A A

EEEE (R)

MERRE

BRMER
BE-F-—F=A=1-AILFE 5%

BAEEHERDERIAR - BREUREM

BEMTZER « REZHRTSERE - &
BAN_HBE=8 [8F] R[{EEHZE]

(RITEETT o RIMEIRR) -
fIEEEM REEEN

[FE e X H

AN RZZEZTF LA - ANEBEKIESE
NREMEREMNERMIE L - AR
[ 7& /& 58,669 F /5 2K o Ml 1 i - o] EZ
BEEEBEA 117,338 F A K2 EEREE
B - RZZFE-_—F=A=1+—0 " ~&EH
EREF—IEL M EEHT  WE_T-ZTF

PR BTG AR 5 2 2 BB
e -
BE-®-—F=A=+-ALEEE

BT - XINMERCEINEEE

BE-_Z--—S-A=+—HIFE Y%
(TREEEN) HEERDERERERRE
([B2EmE]) D RE L 38.5% K 47.6% °
HE-Z-—F=A=+—HILFE £~&%
B A R R IEE -

HE-ZT-—F=A=1+—HIEFE" A&
BRI F R MEEB R T B2 ME (H

BIEEEM) CIHERFTERGIHERZ o
WE BEe &M [R#E|RIEAN
=] BEH=—H- J%/%ilﬁ_ﬂﬂ&:ﬁﬁ
& H AR®92,000,0007T - BREEMEE A
12,974 F K (HE ?7?¢ A=+—
HIFFE: HERE=Ze BE  BE e K&
W lREs] RITEENE] - BE2EF —H
REZAF—H —HE=ZHEHARK
149,700,000 7T * 4B3REEE A & 24,748 F 75

K)o



BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)
Property Development (continued)

Properties completed, delivered and sale of properties
recognised during the year ended 31 March 2021 (continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group delivered and recognised
sale of car park units of approximately RMB15.2 million from the sale of
131 car park units (year ended 31 March 2020: RMB37.2 million from
the sale of 525 car park units).

Projects under development and held for development

As at 31 March 2021, the Group has three remaining projects, namely
Guangze Jiuxi Red House in Jiutai District, Changchun City, Guangze
China House — Phase I(A) in Baishan City and Ground Pine Township
International Resort in Changbaishan, Fusong County. Guangze Jiuxi
Red House and Guangze China House — Phase I(A) are residential
property projects whereas Ground Pine Township International Resort
is a cultural tourism mixed property project. Guangze China House —
Phase I(A) mainly consists of 216 residential units, which is expected
to complete in the fourth quarter of 2021. Guangze Jiuxi Red House
has two phases, of which first phase has a GFA of 60,994 sq.m and
the second with a GFA of 62,460 sqg.m. Like Guangze China House —
Phase I(A), Guangze Jiuxi Red House’s first phase is also expected to
complete in the fourth quarter of 2021.

This cultural tourism project in Changbaishan (“Fusong Property Project”)
included an estimated GFA under development of approximately
76,002 sg.m., and an estimated GFA held for future development of
approximately 547,977 sq.m. The Group’s management is currently in
negotiation and discussions with the local government and potential
buyers for divestment. The Group have suspended the construction for
the aforesaid development since April 2019 taking into consideration
of (i) the macro and industry-specific risk factors and the changes in
the surrounding policy environment leading to an adverse change in
the related prospects of the tourism project at Changbaishan, Fusong
Countyj; (i) the current financial position and operation of the Group; (iii)
the additional capital expenditure required for the project; (iv) the current
financing market in the PRC where any kind of financing from various
financial institutions has been made difficult for many enterprises; and
(v) the cost and benefits of such project to the Group in light of the
prevailing economic risk and condition. The management had held
various discussions with the local government of Changbaishan District,
Fusong County (“Fusong Government”) for a possible buy back of the
undeveloped land parcels (“Fusong Undeveloped Land”) of the Fusong
Property Project.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEEWED AT

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)
Property Development (continued)

Projects under development and held for development
(continued)

On 21 September 2020, the Group received a letter (“Letter”) from
Fusong Government. As stated in the Letter, various departments
within Fusong Government had meetings in August 2020 to discuss
the buy back of the Fusong Undeveloped Land and were working on
the timetable of the buy back. Up to the date of this report, no concrete
timetable has been set for the buy back. Furthermore, it was also
mentioned in the Letter that the Fusong Government have only taken
into consideration of the original land acquisition price in determining the
buy back consideration while other costs and expenditure previously
incurred by the Group would not be accounted for the time being.
Accordingly, the management expects that the preliminary estimated
buy back consideration payable by the Fusong Government will be no
higher than the original acquisition price of the Fusong Undeveloped
Land by the Group, which is approximately RMB312.4 million.

During the first half of the financial year, the Group made a write-down
of approximately RMB442.3 million in respect of the Group’s property
under development on the Fusong Property Project. Such write-
down was made consequential to the discussions with the Fusong
Government on the possible buy-back of the Fusong Undeveloped
Land; and with reference to the Letter from the Fusong Government
setting out the maximum buy-back amount offered by the Fusong
Government. No independent property valuation was carried out by
valuer on the Fusong Property Project as of 30 September 2020.

Given the gloomy outlook of the Fusong Property Project as affected
by (i) the policy change; (i) the macro-economic environment; (iii) the
potential risk of being considered as “idle land”; and (iv) the level of
capital expenditure required to realise the potential market value of
this project even if the Fusong Government do not proceed with the
buy back, the Board estimates that the Group will very unlikely be able
to make any profits out of this project under the current development
plan in the foreseeable future. Furthermore, the Group is currently
having severe difficulties to further raise funds to finance the future
capital expenditure, in light of the relatively weak financial positions of
the Group. Therefore, the Board believes that it is not economically
sensible or viable to further develop the Fusong Property Project in the
foreseeable future. The Group’s management is looking for possible
divestment of the Fusong Property Project in the near future and has
continued ongoing discussions with the Fusong Government and
potential buyers in respect of the possible divestment. The divestment
would provide the Group an opportunity to off load the Fusong Property
Project, thereby alleviating the Group’s debt and financing costs burden
which is currently borne by the Group.

HUA YIN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED # Z BB #Z R B R A A

~

Fi5oEE (&)
YRR (&)

BRRTEERFERRER (A)

R-ZB-ZFAA-+—B  AEEREHE

Mﬁﬁlﬁzfiﬂfu(ﬂfuJ) AE AT -
WIABRABSBAR —E_F2F\A8T

g% Eﬁ%@ﬁ%?ﬁi@*ﬁﬁ?&iiﬁZ%ﬂ iz
CHFIEDBERE - #HEXAREEH - =
RAELRE 2 RBRRERX - 1IN - FRFE
Rk B SEBREEEBRE L
WER B - T ASKE TRl PrE S 2 AR
MXHBETERBER - FLt - BIEE AT
BTN EBAE - MFEFETERA
SEBMAARRBE L RKBEHARE
312,400,000 7T °

RAMBRERE E¥F AEERENRE
WMEBEENERTFDEMBOARE
442,300,000 7T © FZ MR 2 AL 1B B AL BT
WLA]AE Ol B MEAN R BB L b 1T ST ER FT 1R
o WREBERBAEEAER - ERH
ELABFRENSSOESE N2 =%
FNAZ+H - EREHEERB W E BTG
BT TIB L E -

ERRE)BRES : () RBEBERE ¢ (i) 1%
BRIAEL ] ZBEERR : N (v)ERE
?MVABUHTZE??EE%Z’I‘ESRT BERZIEAR
BETEMBZERNRSKFEREE 3L
%M}%f@EIEEZE?%%/ﬁ BEFEEEEA
SEGERARRTE T TAAIEEERNER
AR IR B R RER o peoh - ERAKEAR
R/ BRR - AEERBEE TS
SRS RAREARIBNES T EBIEK
ERE - it EFSRA 0 EAARKE
ﬁ-i%&@%@%ﬂﬂ?lﬁ BELHELITE
B AT - AREEREES KA
SN HAER B VA RE - I B SRR AT
BEBE RN HERMARERN R ©
SEE G TASE RN H NMEREHETRR
ZHE - femRE B AT AREAE AR
BEBLBEKARE -



BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)
Property Development (continued)

Projects under development and held for development
(continued)

In the second half of the financial year, the Group continued to look
for other potential buyers and had ongoing discussions with these
potential buyers for divestment of the Fusong Property Project within a
short period of time. After potential independent third party buyers were
identified and for the year-end accounting purpose, the management
engaged Savills Valuation and Professional Services Limited (the
“Valuer”) in April 2021 to carry out a valuation of the Fusong Property
Project as of 31 March 2021. The net realisable value of approximately
RMB644.8 million as at 31 March 2021 was determined by the Group’s
management with reference to the property valuation of the Fusong
Property Project and applying a discount factor on such valuation result
with the assumption for a short term sale within three months, which
gave rise to a reversal of the write-down by approximately RMB260.4
million during the second half of the financial year.

The said valuation of the Fusong Property Project as of 31 March 2021
was carried out on a bare land basis and based on a direct comparison
approach by making reference to comparable land transactions as
available in the market, which was consistent with that for the previous
financial year end (i.e. 31 March 2020). The accommodation values
of comparable undeveloped land, as the major input for the valuation,
ranged from RMB1,250 per sq.m. to RMB3,082 per sg.m..
it was determined by the Group’s management that the discount rate

In addition,

to be applied on the valuation of the Fusong Property Project is 38%,
taking into account of a possible discount range of 20% to 45% on the
basis that the sale will be completed within three months as advised by
the Valuer.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
B ERwED T

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)
Property Investment

As at 31 March 2021, the Group’s self-owned investment properties are
the retail shopping units at Guangze International Shopping Centre. The
fair value of the investment properties decreased three RMB550 million
at 31 March 2020 to RMB507 million at 31 March 2021 with an average
occupancy rate of 75.0% (At 31 March 2020: 88.3%).

In January 2021, the Group agreed to extend the leasing period of the
leased portion of Guangze International Shopping Centre for a further 5
years.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

In February 2021, the Group entered into a conditional share transfer
agreement with a deemed connected person for the disposal of
Ground Real Estate Group Company Limited* and its three subsidiaries
(the “Disposal Group”) as detailed in the section headed “BUSINESS
REVIEW” of this annual report. As at the year end date, the disposal has
not yet completed.

Preparation of the Group’s financial statements for the
year ended 31 March 2021

For the purpose of the financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 March 2021, the results of and the assets and liabilities of the
Disposal Group remains consolidated into the Group. In accordance
with HKFRS 5, given that the Disposal Group is only part of the
Group’s property development and management business, it does
not constitute a discontinued operation. Accordingly, all assets and
liabilities associated with the Disposal Group are grouped under “Assets
associated with disposal group classified as held for sale” and “Liabilities
associated with disposal group classified as held for sale” under current
assets and current liabilities, respectively.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Bt ¥ o8 (&)

Key changes to profit or loss B TESH
Revenue from continuing operations BESEER 2 W
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
BE-_ZE-_—f HE_T-TF
=ZA=+—HLEE —A=+—HLHFE
RMB’000 % RMB’000 %
ARET T ARETTT
Sale of properties HEME 107,142 69.9 186,862 77.0
Rental income HeA 11,281 7.4 20,592 8.5
Property management Y5 E IR RIS
service income 34,913 22.7 35,231 14.5
153,336 100.0 242,685 100.0

The Group’s revenue from continuing operations decreased from
RMB242.7 million for the year ended 31 March 2020 to RMB153.3
million for the year ended 31 March 2021 or an decrease by 36.8%,
mainly due to the decrease in sale of properties by 42.6% or RMB79.7
million as compared with the corresponding year. The decrease in sales
of properties during the year ended 31 March 2021 was attributable
to the fact that there was no property projects newly completed
and delivered during the year ended 31 March 2021; and a gradual
decrease in sales and delivery of remaining units of the prior years
completed property projects.

Rental income decreased by 45.2% for the year ended 31 March 2021
as compared to last financial year mainly attributable to the rent free
period offered to tenants over the COVID-19 pandemic period and the
decrease in average occupancy rate during the year ended 31 March
2021 in respect of the shopping mall units in Baishan City, the PRC.
Also, the Group disposed of the investment properties in Hong Kong in
March 2020 which contributed rental income of RMB8.5 million during
the corresponding period in last year.

Property management service income decreased from RMB35.2 million
for the year ended 31 March 2020 to RMB34.9 million for the year
ended 31 March 2021, mainly attributable to the decrease in number
of managed units, caused by the decrease in average occupancy rate
during the year ended 31 March 2021 in respect of the shopping mall
units in Baishan City, the PRC.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEENWED

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)
Key changes to profit or loss (continued)
Gross loss and gross margin

For the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group recorded an overall
gross loss of RMB84.5 million (2020: gross loss of RMB44.6 million).
The gross loss for the year was mainly contributed from (i) the sales of
certain car park units at Guangze Amethyst City — Phases | and |l at
a loss; and (i) further write-downs of RMB43.6 million mainly on the
remaining car park units at various property projects.

Other income and gains

The Group’s other income and gains decreased from RMB43.5 million
for the year ended 31 March 2020 to RMB1.5 million for the year ended
31 March 2021 which was mainly attributable to the one-off gain on
disposal of subsidiaries of RMB38.5 million and prior year’s property tax
refund of RMB3.3 million recognised for the year ended 31 March 2020.

Selling and distribution costs

The increase in selling and distribution costs by RMB1.8 million from
RMB7.2 million for the year ended 31 March 2020 to RMB9.0 million
for the year ended 31 March 2021 was mainly due to the increase in
the promotion and advertising expenses incurred for the new property
project in Jiutai District, namely Guangze Jiuxi Red House, launched for
per-sale during the year.

Administrative expenses

The decrease in administrative expenses by RMB17.3 million from
RMB50.4 million for the year ended 31 March 2020 to RMB33.1 million
for the year ended 31 March 2021 was mainly attributable to (i) the
decrease in travelling expenses as a result of travel restriction from the
COVID-19 pandemic; and (i) the decrease in office expense contributed
by continual cost control implemented on the Group.

Q HUA YIN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED # Z BB #Z R B R A A
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)
Key changes to profit or loss (continued)
Other expenses

Other expenses for the year ended 31 March 2021 mainly related to
write-downs of RMB181.9 million in relation to the property under
development for Ground Pine Townshop International Resort in
Fusong County and other completed property projects in Jilin City
(year ended 31 March 2020: RMB877.6) as a result of the persistently
unfavourable change in the operating environment in the surrounding
area and impairment loss on other receivables of RMB13.0 million (year
ended 31 March 2020: RMB297.9 million) caused by the worsening
local economic environment in Jilin Province resulting in the significant
increase in credit risk of certain debtors.

Finance costs

Zl-i&@gg(mﬁ)
BasTESE ()
HtpA <

HEZZT-Z—4F=-A=+—HLFEZH
ftb A 2 3 22 B AMOR MR AL 85 B = R AN N B
BEBNZBERMERSMT 2HME
?*WWJ%IEE AR #181,900,000 7T (B =
—ZE-TF=ZA=F+—HIEFE: AR
877,600,0007T) B #E - ThE X s R 5%
BT 2 & P IR R I B HL fth P SRR TE R (B /S
BARK 13,000,000 (BE-_S-_FF=
A=+—RHILFE : AR¥297,900, ooom
B DEREMEEHEERERL
WAETEBAZEERBEZILM -

BE A

Year ended 31 March
HE=A=1t—HLEE

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-THF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR AREFIT
Interest on bank and entrusted loans ~ $R1TRZEEERF A 91,208 80,437
Interest on Convertible Bonds ATRRESFE 7,233 7,550
Interest on other loan EMERF & 4,934 528
Interest on lease liabilities HEEEFB 2,156 3,574
Other borrowing costs accrued on LR TR IE
receipts in advance from customers 2 Efh{EERAR 6,296 28,271
111,827 120,360
Less: interest capitalised into W BRPMEZERERE
properties under development (6,695) (16,998)
105,132 103,362

Annual Report 2020/21 44 G



Management Discussion and Analysis
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)
Key changes to profit or loss (continued)
Finance costs (continued)

The finance costs for the year ended 31 March 2021 increased by
RMB1.8 million from RMB103.4 million for the year ended 31 March
2020, which was mainly attributable to the fact that (i) an increase in
interest on bank and entrusted loans as a result of increase in interest
rate upon renewal of bank loans and new entrusted loans; and (i) less
project loans were qualified for capitalisation as most of the related
projects had been completed resulting in an immediate charge to profit
or loss as incurred.

Change in fair value of investment properties

For the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group’s investment properties
stated at fair value had a further decrease in the fair value of RMB45.8
million, mainly attributable to the deterioration of the market rent.

Change in fair value of derivative financial instruments

A loss in fair value of RMB69,000 of the derivative financial instruments
was recognised for the year ended 31 March 2021 (year ended 31
March 2020: loss in fair value of RMB5.0 million). The derivative financial
instruments represented the Company’s early redemption right features
of the convertible bonds which are due on 27 July 2021. The change in
fair value was mainly attributable to the volatility of the Company’s share
price and deterioration of the time value.

Income tax

The Group’s current income tax includes Corporate Income Tax (CIT)
and Land Appreciation Tax (LAT). For the year ended 31 March 2021,
the Group’s current income tax amounted to RMB5.6 million (year
ended 31 March 2020: RMB7.0 million). The decrease in CIT and LAT
for the year ended 31 March 2021 was mainly attributable to decrease
in taxable income as fewer properties units were delivered and sales
recognised during the year. A tax charge from deferred tax of RMBO.7
million was recorded for the year ended 31 March 2021 (year ended
31 March 2020: tax credit of RMB209.0 million) was mainly attributable
by the provision of deferred tax liabilities during the year.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)
Key changes to financial position
Investment properties

As at 31 March 2021, the Group’s investment properties are certain
shopping mall units in Baishan City, Jilin Province, which include self-
owned portion and leased portion. These investment properties were
stated at fair value and were valued by Savills Valuation and Professional
Services Limited (an independent professional qualified valuer) at
RMB547.1 million (as at 31 March 2020: RMB550.0 million). The
balance as at 31 March 2021 decreased compared to 31 March 2020,
mainly attributable to the fact that a loss in fair value of RMB45.8 million
of the investment properties in the PRC was recognised for the year
ended 31 March 2021 (year ended 31 March 2020: loss in fair value
of RMB189.0 million); and partly offset by the recognition of leased
properties in accordance with HKFRS 16 and HKAS 40 in respect of the
leased portion of the shopping mall units in Baishan of RMB42.9 million.

Properties under development and completed properties
held for sale

The Group’s properties under development and completed properties
held for sales are located in Jilin Province. The decrease in properties
under development and completed properties held for sales from
RMB1,600.3 million as at 31 March 2020 to RMB1,211.8 million as at
31 March 2021 was mainly attributable to (i) the transfer of development
costs to costs of sales in respect of the properties delivered during the
year ended 31 March 2021; and (i) the write-downs during the year of
RMB181.9 million mainly in respect of the project under development,
namely Ground Pine Township International Resort, and car parks
from the completed property projects as a result of the persistently
unfavourable operating environment in the surrounding area. As at 31
March 2021, accumulated write-downs of RMB1,012.9 million and
RMB33.3 million were made on properties under development and
completed properties held for sale (as at 31 March 2020: RMB877.5
million and RMB66.3 million) respectively.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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R
LR N
FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued) Bt E e (48)
Key changes to financial position (continued) BBEARR 2 EERE (F)
Trade and other receivables W E SRR 5 B R IE
As at 31 March
R=B=+—H
2021 2020
—E-—F —T-TF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Fi7E ARET T AREEFTT
Trade receivables JEUE R 19,512 18,097
Less: Provision for impairment B ORERE (5,691) (4,135)
(i) 13,821 13,962
Other receivables HAtb fEUGRIR
— Deposits for land development - THERAT &S
expenditure (ii) 22,095 337,487
— Deposits for construction and - BENBEYEIEE
pre-sale of property projects Z2E® (i) 6,741 31,496
— Prepaid business tax and other taxes - FE{ 4 21 & L Fi 78 15,367 19,622
— Consideration receivable from - HEERER 2 EYRRE
the disposal of FR Guarantee (iv) - 122,000
— Other receivables, prepayments - HAbEUCRIE « TR 3B
and deposits MiE® 45,936 76,085
Less: Provision for impairment W ORERE v) (64,279) (308,802)
25,860 277,888
39,681 291,850

(i)  Trade receivables were mainly related to rental receivable from tenants and
property management fee receivables from property unit owners. At 31
March 2021, the trade receivable balance remained stable as compared to
that at 31 March 2020.

(i) Land development expenditure made by certain subsidiaries of the Group
represented monies advanced to the local government for land development
works at various land sites. The Group will be reimbursed for the amount
advanced to the local government in carrying out the land development
respective of whether or not the Group will obtain the land use rights of the
land in the future.

The decrease was mainly attributable to the reclassification of RMB319.8

million to “Assets associated with disposal group classified as held for sale”
at 31 March 2021.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Key changes to financial position (continued)

Trade and other receivables (continued)

(i)

The balances represented various deposits paid directly attributable to
construction and pre-sale of property projects which would be refundable
upon completion of the property projects.

The amount as at 31 March 2020 represented the consideration receivable
for the FR Guarantee Disposal. During the year, the amount has been fully
settled in accordance with the share transfer agreements.

The decrease in provision for impairment from RMB308.8 million as at
31 March 2020 to RMB64.3 million as at 31 March 2021 was mainly
attributable to the reclassification of the provision of RMB257.5 million to
“Assets associated with disposal group classified as held for sale”.

Trade and other payables

Br 5 El A (4R)
Bk 2 = B2 8 (F)

W E 5 ARk R E b B RO ()

(i)

BMEERRAERENAEYRER ZRA
BEfEE - AIRYEAE TRERE ©

BRRERSBEREBEEREZ BENLE -
RER ERBEOHEZRBRABBENRZ
ECRF=RA=t+—HZZE®E -

BEBBEH-_T-TF=A=T—HAR
# 308,800,000 LM P E—_FE - —46 =1
=+—H AR¥64,300,0007C © EEZHRE
B AR 257,500,000 tEFHDEE[H
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P B 5 RRAR R EL A Y 7R TE

As at 31 March

R=B=+—H
2021 2020
—E-—F BT
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
BsE ARET ARBTIT
Trade payables BB SR 56,587 126,437
Accrued construction costs TERRIBEEMK A 271,097 338,187
Interest payable FERTFILE 94,571 44,481
Deposits received from government  WEUKfFiZ & - 14,501
Other creditors and accruals HibEsRIERETER 48,995 97,761
Other deposits received B E IS 35,960 26,138
507,210 647,505

The decreases in trade payables and accrued construction costs from
RMB126.4 million and RMB338.2 million as at 31 March 2020 to RMB56.6
million and RMB271.1 million as at 31 March 2021 respectively were mainly
attributable to gradual settlement of construction cost payable balances
arising from the completed properties projects. Also, a balance of RMB57.0
million was reclassified to “liabilities associated with disposal group classified
held for sale” as at 31 March 2021.

ERNEBSERRBREENEAS BT
—THE=A=+—H AR%¥126,400,000 T
K AR #338,200,000 T HE T - —F=
A=+—B8 AR#¥56,600,0007T K% AR
271,100,0007C * X ZHEAREEKMETR
B ZENBRERABREE TS o o
R AR 57,000,000 TER =S - —F =
A=+—HEBEHHHEZE [HEIBEHEZH
EMHRIBEzAaE] -
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Key changes to financial position (continued)

Trade and other payables (continued)

(i)

The amount represented the deposits received from the government
as the Group is responsible for the construction of commodity housing
which includes but is not limited to the removal of the existing buildings
situated on the land, the provision of infrastructure systems including roads,
drainage system, water, gas and electricity supply and the construction
of public facilities. The amount was unsecured and interest free and the
unused amount will be refunded to the government after the construction
is completed. Also, the balance of RMB14.5 million was reclassified to
“Liabilities associated with disposal group classified as held for sale” as at
31 March 2021.

Br 5 El A (4R)
BBz EEL B (F)

B E 2 R R E b B FOR ()

(i)

ZAAE R AR EE & B HEE 5 5 M R R AT
WHRzEE  BRETRRFEHEIEZ
RERT  RHERZERS(2FEER -
BOKERFE - K - HERME) RERAHK
Rite ZRARBEERRLE  KFAE
BENRIRERTIREEBRN - HHRARKE
14,500,000 tERN —E - —F=HA=+—H
EFOBE [ENEAREREZHEMAR
BRza’E]l -

Contract liabilities SHEE
As at 31 March
R=B=+—H
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETTF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
MaE AR®T T AREETTT
Deposits from sale of properties HEMFE & () 216,718 223,695
Receipt in advance from TEWEREREE R
management services (ii) 11,192 10,831
227,910 234,526

(i)

Deposits from sales of properties represent contractual payments received
from customers in connection with the Group’s pre-sale of properties.
The deposit will be transferred to profit or loss upon the Group’s revenue
recognition criteria are met. The decrease in balance was mainly attributable
to (i) the units delivered and sales recognised during the year; and (i) the
reclassification of deposits from sale of properties in respect of projects
in Jilin City to Liabilities associated with disposal group classified as held
for sale” and partially offset by the cash received in respect of pre-sale of
Guangze Jiuxi Red House.

Receipt in advance from management services represent the property
fee received in advance for property management. The receipts will be
transferred to profit or loss upon the Group’s revenue recognition criteria are
met.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Liquidity and financial resources
Cash position

As at 31 March 2021, the carrying amount of cash and bank deposits
of the Group was approximately RMB117.9 million (as at 31 March
2020: approximately RMB30.5 million), representing an increase of
approximately 286.6% as compared with that as at 31 March 2020,
which was attributable to the net proceeds raised the Company’s
placing in March 2021. Details of the placing are set out in the section
headed “Fund raising activities during the past twelve months”.

Debt and gearing

The Group’s bank and other borrowings as at 31 March 2021
decreased by RMB66.1 million to RMB800.1 million which were payable
as follows:

Zl-i& IE' EE (IIIE. )
RBEERMBEIR
BEeAR

EA_?_ FZA=+—H Xx&EEHReK

TERZEAELN A AR 117,900,000
m(ﬁAfyf?i ﬂ + H:HARE
30,500,0007T) * RZZE=ZFF=A=+—
B 1% hn 49286.6% TJEE ARRBIRZE
T = AETREMEFEZMBRIBFE
FTet - BLE S HEFABER [RNBEXT+=@A
EITEERE] -

EBREXERELR

RZZE-_—F=A=+—8 " XEBERTK
HMEER D AR 66,100,000 TE AR
800,100,000 7T * FEZIA MBI

As at 31 March

R=B=+—H
2021 2020
—E-—F ZETHF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREBTFT
Current BNER 448,497 695,497
Non-current JERNEA 351,593 170,690
800,090 866,187
Analysed into: PRV
Bank loans and entrusted loan AR THIERREE R 2 IRITE K
repayable: MEFTEN
Within one year or on demand —FRHIZEK 430,897 655,897
In the second year F_F 60,897 56,897
In the third to fifth year, inclusive FoEFAT (BIEBERT) 290,696 113,793
782,490 826,587
Other borrowings repayable: AR TYIEEERE 2 BB s -
Within one year —FR 17,600 39,600
800,090 866,187
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)
Liquidity and financial resources (continued)
Debt and gearing (continued)

The current portion of bank and other borrowings decreased from
RMBG695.5 million as at 31 March 2020 to RMB448.5 million as at
31 March 2021 and the non-current portion of bank and other
borrowing increased from RMB170.7 million as at 31 March 2020 to
RMB351.6 million as at 31 March 2021 as the Group refinanced the
short term bank loans by replacing with new long term loan, and the
repayment of bank loans by instalment.

The Group’s gearing ratio as at 31 March 2021 was as follows:

Br 5 El A (4R)
RBEERHBER (&)
ERRERAFEER(R)

RITREMEE NP> BH_Z_F
F=HF=+—H2Z AR®695500,0007T
RE_E-_—F=ZA=Z=+—HZARHK
448,500,0007C © MRTT R EALfEE 2 FERD
HE R T -_EF-A=+—HZARK
170,700,000 T E-ZF=-—F = =+—
Bz AR¥351,600,0007C © ERZRNER
D EHERDAREHETERBRENUR
DEMEERITE ©

AEER T —F=ZA=+—HZEXE
BHRINT

As at 31 March

R=HA=+—8H

2021 2020

—E-—&F ZETHF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR%T R ARETTT

Loan from controlling shareholder S EN =GN 121,415 105,891
Bank and other borrowings RITREAMBEE 800,090 866,187
Trade and other payables FETE 5 AR5 R Eo b B~ 508 507,210 647,505
Less: Cash and cash equivalents B BeMReEEY (117,938) (30,500)
Pledged and restricted deposits BEM R ZR BT (8,715) (19,009)

Net debt (EvE ] 1,302,062 1,570,074

Liability component of AMRESFEESD

Convertible Bonds 72,879 73,155
Equity = (13,707) 451,916
Adjusted Capital IRTHBENR 59,172 525,071
Capital and net debt BRREBFE 1,361,234 2,095,145
Gearing ratio EXRBELE 96% 75%

The gearing ratio of the Group as at 31 March 2021 increased
compared with that as at 31 March 2020 due to the decrease in equity
contributed by the loss for the year ended 31 March 2021.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)
Liquidity and financial resources (continued)
Cash flows for the Group’s operating and investing activities

For the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group recorded net operating
cash outflow of RMB201.6 million (year ended 31 March 2020: outflow
of RMB105.4 million). The outflow was mainly attributable to the net
settlement of trade and construction cost payables of RMB113.3 million
and interest expenses of RMB49.7 million paid during the year ended
31 March 2021. For investing activities, the Group recorded a net
cash inflow of RMB121.9 million (year ended 31 March 2020: inflow of
RMB20.1 million). The inflow was mainly as a result of the consideration
received for disposal of subsidiaries in relation to the FR Guarantee
Disposal which generated a net cash inflow of RMB122 million.

Fund raising activities during the past twelve months

On 16 March 2021, the Company entered into a placing agreement
with Fosun Hani Securities Co., Limited in respect of the placement of
up to 290,885,000 shares (the “Placing Shares”) at a placing price of
HK$0.35 per Placing Share to not less than six places (the “Placing”).

On 24 March 2021, the Placing was completed and a total of
290,885,000 Placing Shares were issued under the general mandate
of the Company and the net proceeds from the Placing were
approximately HK$99.8 million (equivalent to approximately RMB84.2
million).

Details of the Placing are set out in the Company’s announcements
dated 16 March 2021 and 24 March 2021.

1 %5 [ /B (7))
RBEERMEER ()
FEEEERREEDZRERE

HE_ZT_—F=ZA=t+—HLEE"
AEEHSLCEReREFEARYE
201,600,000 C(HBE-T-_TF=A=1+—
HIEFE & ARE105,400,0007T) °
BN EEARNEBE_E-_—F=A=+—
HIEFEREMNE ZRARENEERALEE
SFEAA R % 113,300,000 7T M B A FI B B2
AR#49,700,0007T - & REHE - A&
B3/ 53R M AARE 121,900,000 7T (&,
E_E-_TF=ZA=ZF+—HIEFE  RAA
R 20,100,000 7T) ° 7t AJhE Z B R UER
EALESHBERZEEWBARIZARE -
ELEFRERAARE 122,000,000 7T

RBE+-ERAETSEES

RZZEZ—F=A+"H  AQ6HRELE
FEHFERAFFLEESHH LT
A 7S % AL A BL & A % 290,885,000 A A% 19
(TEERMD ) - BREEBREREEMRN0.35
Br((REEHE]) -

RZZBZ—F=AZ+WMA  BEFELE
TERK A 290,885,000 A% B & %15 B 1R
BARAz —MEREET BESHEZME
FRIEFEEX) £ 99,800,00078 7T (FHE A HIA
R # 84,200,000 7T) °

IREFEFBHARNAAFBHA-—ZTE——F
=At+RBR-ZE-Z—EFE=ZA=-1+MHAZA

==
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued) B ¥ ol g (48)
Liquidity and financial resources (continued) RBESRMKER (&)

Fund raising activities during the past twelve months RBE+-{EAETEETEH (&)
(continued)

As at 31 March 2021, the net proceeds of the Placing had been applied HRZZE=Z—F=A=+—H EE&FHIM
as follows: 150 /%%EE{’ELATFH

Utilised net Unutilised net

proceeds as at proceeds as at

Intended use of the net proceeds Allocation 31 March 2021 31 March 2021
R=ZB=—-F RZ-T=-—-F

=ZH=+—H Z=ZA=+-H

BAZMmE EARE A2

FIERUERHE2RERR pali MIEFE  FSRUEEH
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBFIT ARBFIT ARBFT

Settlement of the costs and expenses HEAREEREEE 2

of the Group’s existing projects A R 2 50,503 - 50,503
Settlement of the Group’s finance costs 4 EAREBE 7 @& A 25,252 - 25,252
Settlement of the Group’s administrative ~ #E AREE 2

and operation expenses TR REERY 8,445 4,421 4,024

84,200 4,421 79,779

COMMITMENTS FOR DEVELOPMENT EXPENDITURE ¥ RBX 2 i&iE

As at 31 March 2021, the Group had contracted but not provided for ~HZZT_—F=A=+—H KEEHZER
commitments in respect of properties under development of RMB25.3  H#IEZ EEJ B RBEHERNEAEAAR
million (as at 31 March 2020: nil). The development expenditure was ¥ 25,300,0007c (R=ZE=ZEF=F=+—
prepaid and funded by the Group’s internal resources and/or project B : &) o SRR B TE I LA & B A 3

loans. ER N, SIBE B o
PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES FERRETHEBARZE

The principal risks and uncertainties that may cause the Group’s A 8E3| BUAN S B B F5 iR ok 3 45 B 78 AR =X 3@
financial conditions or results materially different from the expected or ~ FEELBREXREZ 2 F 2R KT HAE
historical results are described below. R T »
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES (continued)

Risks pertaining to the property development and
management business

The Group’s property projects are located in Jilin Province, the PRC
and the related assets accounted for 96.4% of the Group’s total assets
as at 31 March 2021 (as at 31 March 2020: 94.6%). The Group is
therefore subject to the risks associated with the PRC property market
both nationally and regionally. The Group’s property development and
management business in the PRC may also be exposed to the risks of
policy change, interest rate change, demand-supply imbalance and the
overall economic conditions, which may pose an adverse impact on
the Group’s business, financial conditions or results of operations. The
Group is looking for projects at other regions in the PRC and overseas
in order to diversify the risk.

Risks pertaining to the property investment business

The rental rates and the occupancy rates depend on various factors,
including but not limited to, prevailing supply and demand conditions,
economic conditions as well as the quality of the properties. There is no
assurance that the Group will be able to look for new tenants within a
short period of time or procure new leases or renew existing leases at
the prevailing market rates. The Group has other exit options to realise
the property as and when considered necessary.

Financial risks

As a matter of policy, the Group continues to manage the market risks
directly relating to its operations and financing activities and does not
undertake any speculative derivative trading activities. All treasury risk
management activities are carried out in accordance with the Group’s
policies and guidelines, which are reviewed as and when needed.

FTERRRFHABRERZE (F)
FRNEBRNEEXER 2ER

REBZMEEBEBURTRBEENE - HEE
EEAEBR T —F=A=+—R%4&
EZ96.4% (R _E_TE=A=+—0H":
94.6%) ° 7S5 (B X B AR B 2 B K 4 2 )
ET5HEE B o REBRPE 2
EBREEBEBNIJERRKRE - FIEK
B R RSB A E R -
SRR E 2 ¥ - BRI S RS
PRS2 o NS B IE pAFP BH 308 J2 %
IMEYEIER - B ES AR -

BRMEREXL 2ER

M REHEXBRRZHEE - BREETR

NERIESKBR - @B EESR - I
MrENEE R AN EHARSHHEL L
UNEmMmEESESHEOKNEEREH
Mo mMBERE AKEBHEMEZEREED
EER -

B F5 R B

REBEE  AEBERFETEELZXENME
ABEERBRZMSRAR - B A EEEMA
KREUEITETRAE SES - MAMBRARE
RS IMRBEASE 2 RREIESETT - I
NEHEREITIR
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES (continued)
Currency risk

As at 31 March 2021, the Group was exposed to currency risk on
financial assets and liabilities that were denominated in Hong Kong
Dollars (HK$). At 31 March 2021, approximately 59.0% of the Group’s
total cash and bank balance (including pledged bank deposit) were
denominated in HK$ (as at 31 March 2020: 13.6%) and 100% of the
Group’s total borrowings were denominated in RMB (as at 31 March
2020: 100% denominated in RMB). The Group currently does not have
a foreign currency hedging policy in respect of foreign current assets
and liabilities. The Group will monitor its foreign currency exposure
closely and will consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure
should the need arises. The Group will continue to monitor the change
in the trend of interest rates and the potential causes that trigger large
fluctuation in the exchange rates of RMB and HK$, and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency exposure if necessary so as to
mitigate the foreign currency exposure arising from the Group’s business
operation and to minimise the Group’s financial risks.

Interest rate risk

As at 31 March 2021, none (as at 31 March 2020: 2.5%) of the Group’s
total bank and other borrowings were interest free, 100% (as at 31
March 2020: 94.2%) bore interest at fixed rates ranging from 5.39% to
12% per annum, and none (as at 31 March 2020: 3.3%) of the Group’s
total borrowings bore interest at floating rates at benchmark interest
rate plus margin of 120%. The Group does not enter into any financial
instruments to hedge its interest rate risk exposure.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES (continued)
Credit risk

As at 31 March 2021, the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk
which would cause a financial loss to the Group due to the failure to
discharge an obligation by the counterparties arising from the carrying
amounts of the respective recognised financial assets as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to pledged bank deposits,
bank balances and cash and trade and other receivables. Substantially
all of the Group’s pledged bank deposits and bank balances and cash
were deposited in creditworthy global banks and stated-controlled
financial institutions in the PRC, which management considers they are
without significant credit risks. At the end of the reporting period, the
Group has minimal concentration of credit risk as the trade receivables
from the largest single customer represented less than 5% (as at
31 March 2020: 5%) of the total trade receivables.

In order to minimise this credit risk relating to trade and other
receivables, the management has established credit approvals and
other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to
recover overdue debts. In this regard, the management considers that
the Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

Liquidity risk

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity requirements
and its compliance with lending covenants, to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed lines of funding
from major financial institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the
short and long term.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD

Other than disclosed elsewhere, the Group did not have any other
significant investments held as at 31 March 2021.

FTERRRFHABRERZE (F)
FERERE

R-ZF-_—F=ZA=+—8 A&EEEHT
BEBTREESIBMBRAMAR Z&SE
fﬂ B TRBERE M B RRMAS S8R
EREREMEEREE -

AEBZEERREIZSNEERRITE
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FHRARRITEBIRSEAGEEBRIFZE
FRIRTT MBIIES RS - BEERAZ
EER - RITERERETPREANEER
B REWBPR - ARNRERAE-FFZ
FEWE 5 BR R FE W E B Bk SR ARBE D 10 6%
(RZZF-_FTF=ZA=1+—H8:5%)  #&K
SEZEEETRBRTK -
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group has arranged bank financing for certain purchasers of
property units developed by subsidiaries of the Group that provided
guarantees to secure obligation of such purchasers for repayments.
As at 31 March 2021, guarantees amounting to RMB790.9 million
were given to banks with respect to mortgage loans procured by
purchasers of property units (as at 31 March 2020: RMB803.4 million).
Such guarantees terminate upon the earlier of (i) issuance of the real
estate ownership certificate to the purchasers and (i) the satisfaction
of mortgage loans by the purchasers of properties. Pursuant to the
terms of the guarantees, upon default in mortgage payments by these
purchasers, the Group is responsible for repaying the outstanding
mortgage principals together with accrued interest and penalty owed by
the defaulted purchasers to the banks and the Group is entitled to take
over the legal title and possession of the related properties. The Group’s
guarantee period starts from the dates of grant of the mortgages.
During the year, the Group did not incur any material losses in respect
of any of these guarantees. The Directors consider that the likelihood
of default in payments by the purchasers is minimal and therefore the
financial guarantee measured at fair value initially is immaterial. Also,
in case of default in payments, the net realisable value of the related
property units would be sufficient to repay the outstanding mortgage
loans together with any accrued interest and penalty, and therefore no
provision has been made in connection with the guarantees.

CHARGE ON ASSETS

As at 31 March 2021, the Group had the following assets pledged
against bank and other loans granted:

égl;

=R

AEBARETHBEARMAZRMESGZ
ETERELRITRELH  BERZE
BERBITENRETRBER R=Z2F=—
FZA=1+—H HUEBELERERZ
RBERARITREZEREEAARY
790,900,000 L (R =ZE=FF=A=+—

B : AR#803,400,0007T) ° B EAERE
RUATREFRRLE: ((RMERBELEE
B RVDEERINIRBER - RIFERF

R - MRFERBRIZBMAR - AEEA
BEMRITEEZNEFTARAZRNZE
A FEEHEREIR  MARBEAER
WM E A EMBRNERE - A5E
Rt BARBBIRER L BHBES - FR
AEEN EAEAZEERMBRERER
BX - EEARBLEEFERNR AR
BRIE - Bt MFRAAEBEFEZMEE
RIALATER © I - FR SR - BIERE YD
%EMZTmiﬁi%@ﬂ%i%%ﬁ%*ﬁﬁ%%
R R R A SRR - A B L F
ERFTRE MBS -

EERH

R-ZE-_—F=ZA=1+—H AKECHE
BZIRITREAME TR T EE

As at 31 March

R=A=+—AH
2021 2020
—E- & ZETHF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T R AREEFTT
Investment properties REMZE 507,000 550,000
Properties under development BRFPYIHE 644,800 858,213
Completed properties held for sale BIEHEC BN E 11,034 -
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EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES EE R EFHMBUR

As at 31 March 2021, the Group had 239 (as at 31 March 2020: 228) RKRZ-E-_—F=A=+—H ' AEBEHH
full-time employees. Total staff costs (including directors’ emoluments)  239&Z (R _ZT_THF=H=+—H : 228
incurred for the year ended 31 March 2021 amounted to approximately %) 2BEE - BHE—_ZT - —F=-A=+—
RMB21.4 million (year ended 31 March 2020: RMB20.9 million); the HIEFEMEAE I ARH(BREES
increase was mainly attribute to the gradual increase in staff number B & ) 49 /% A K % 21,400,000 7 (# & —
for the new project, namely Guangze Jiuxi Red House. The Group's ZTZZF=-A=+—HLEFE:@ AR%
remuneration policy is in line with prevailing market practice and ~ 20,900,0007T) : HIREEFEZHRETH
performance of individual staff. In addition to salaries, the Group also & ABEZENRALNT 2 ¥ FEHEIE B X #hig
offers other benefits to its staff, including share options, discretionary Ml ° A& E 2 HIEER BB THISEN R E
bonus, training allowance and provident fund. TEAREE - BREFEIN ZEETAE
BETIRHEMBEN  2EBRE  WIBE
AL SBINRR R ATER o
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EENEREEEREER

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. Cui Xintong (“Ms. Cui”), aged 31, was appointed as an
Executive Director of the Company and the deputy chairperson of
the Board in September 2016, and was further appointed as the
chairperson of the Board, a member of Remuneration Committee, a
member of Nomination Committee and authorised representative of the
Company in December 2017, and the chairperson of the Remuneration
Committee in April 2019. She is also the controlling shareholder of the
Company and a director in various subsidiaries of the Company.

Ms. Cui is responsible for exploring new business opportunities,
formulating business plans and executing systematic prospecting,
maintaining relationships with existing and potential business partners,
developing, coaching and managing a team to deliver professional
service and ensure business sustainability. Ms. Cui was an assistant
president of FEEKREZEREE B AR (Ground Investment Holding
(Group) Company Limited*, a related company established in the PRC)
from September 2013 to February 2015. Ms. Cui obtained her Bachelor
degree of Science in Business Administration from Northeastern
University, Boston, USA in August 2013. Ms. Cui is the niece of Ms.
Ji Ping, a former Executive Director. She is also the director of Ka Yik
Investments Limited and Charm Success Group Limited, of which has
each interest in the shares and/or underlying shares of the Company.

Mr. Li Junjie (“Mr. Li”), aged 62, was appointed as an Executive
Director and chief executive officer of the Company in September 2020.

Mr. Li has worked in various county and city government departments
in Yanbian Prefecture, Jilin Province for more than 30 years. He was
responsible for government general management, strategic policy and
decision-making, investment promotion, urban and rural economy, and
management in new development zone. Prior to joining the Company,
Mr. Li joined the government department in Yanbian prefecture, Jilin
Province in December 1982 and held important positions in different
cities. He served as the Executive Deputy Mayor of Helong City
Government of Yanbian Prefecture, Jilin Province from 1998 to 2005.
He served as Executive Deputy Mayor and District Supervisor of
Yaniji City Government, Yanbian Prefecture, Jilin Province from 2006
to 2018. He served as the Supervisor of the Standing Committee of
Yanji Municipal People’s Congress in Yanbian Prefecture, Jilin Province
from 2013 to 2018. Since his retirement from the government in
December 2018 up to now, he worked as President in Yanji Chamber of
Commerce of Enterprises. Mr. Li graduated from Jilin Provincial Institute
of Education in 1986 major in Physics and completed a postgraduate
research course in enterprise development strategy profession at
Peking University in July 1999.
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Mr. Cong Peifeng (“Mr. Cong”), aged 44, was appointed as a
non-executive Director of the Company in December 2017 and was
redesignated as an Executive Director of the Company in March 2021.

Mr. Cong, has over 19 years of experience in tourism management
and hospitality management. He has been the deputy general manager
of the administration and human resources department of E2#&&
R EE AR A7 (Ground Investment Holding (Group) Company
Limited*) since 2016, and has been a distinguished lecturer of
tourism management profession at Changchun Vocational Institute of
Technology since 2014. Mr. Cong had served as supervisor, deputy
manager or manager of different departments in South Lake Hotel of
Jilin Province from 2002 to 2016. He received a Bachelor degree in
Economics from Changchun University in 2000 and graduated from the
postgraduate programme of Tourism Economic of Shanghai Academy
of Social Sciences in 2002.

Mr. Xu Yingchuan (“Mr. Xu”), aged 49, was appointed as an
Executive Director in March 2021 and has been a director in various
subsidiaries of the Company.

Mr. Xu joined the Ground Real Estate Group (“Real Estate Group”)
in October 2009, as a design director, responsible for the design
management of Amethyst City in Jilin City. He was promoted to vice
general manager of research and development centre of the Real Estate
Group in November 2010 and responsible for the design management
of Amethyst City and Guangze International Shopping Centre of the
Real Estate Group. He was further promoted to the general manager
of the research and development centre of the Real Estate Group in
September 2011 and responsible for design management of all projects
of the Group. Mr. Xu was appointed as project general manager of it
EMHREFMERZEAEMR AR (Yanji Huize Real Estate Development
Company Limited*) in May 2012. Mr. Xu is responsible for the overall
operation of the Guangze Red House. Prior to joining the Real Estate
Group, Mr. Xu was a chief project management officer of K&+ HE
HEFREZEAFR A F (Changchun Zhongdong Real Estate Development
Company Limited*) from October 2007 to September 2009. Mr. Xu was
the officer of architecture department in EME &R EEBRE R
&) (Jilin Jianyuan Design Group Company Limited*) from August 1994
to October 2007. Mr. Xu obtained his Bachelor degree of Science in
Architecture from Jilin Institute of Architecture and Civil Engineering (&
MEEETFREPR), the PRC in July 1994,
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management
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Ms. Liu Hongjian (“Ms. Liu”), aged 46, was appointed as an
Executive Director in November 2017 and had been a director in various
subsidiaries of the Company. Ms. Liu resigned as an Executive Director
on 29 June 2020.

Ms. Liu has solid experience in financing guarantee business and over
22 years’ experience in financial management. Ms. Liu has been the
legal representative and general manager of FR Guarantee from 2013
to 2020, and is primarily responsible for the operation of financing
guarantee business and had received industry awards. Ms. Liu was
the financial manager and the project general manager of & #%& &2
HEBR AT Jiin Ground Real Estate Company Limited*) (currently a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) from 2009 to 2012. She was
also the financial controller of EMA EZILZEBR AR (Jilin Ground
Dairy Industry Co., Ltd.*) (currently known as Ground Dairy Industry Co.,
Ltd. F2FLE AR A a)) from 2001 to 2006. Ms. Liu graduated from the
Changchun Taxation College (currently known as the Jilin University of
Finance and Economics) specialised in professional accounting in 1996.
She was also qualified as an intermediate-level accountant granted by
the Ministry of Finance of the PRC.

Ms. Ji Ping (“Ms. Ji”), aged 45, was appointed as an Executive
Director in July 2020 and resigned in March 2021. Ms. Ji remains as a
director in various subsidiaries of the Company.

Ms. Ji has solid experience in administration and over 20 years of
experience in purchasing and financing section. She joined the Group
in February 2011 and was appointed as assistant president of Group
Real Estate in May 2015. She is responsible for tendering, purchasing,
human resources and administrative management of the Group. Prior
ro joining the Group, Ms. Ji was the purchasing director in Ground Dairy
responsible for the purchasing management from September 2001 to
February 2011. Ms. Ji completed her study in financial account from
Jilin Radio and TV University (&5 MEEE R KZ), the PRC in July 1998.
Ms. Jiis an aunt of Ms. Cui (the controlling shareholder and chairperson
of the Board).
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Zhu Zuoan (“Mr. Zhu”), aged 66, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director, a member of the Audit Committee,
a member of the Remuneration Committee and member of the
Nomination Committee of the Company in December 2017. Mr. Zhu
was further appointed as chairperson of the Nomination Committee of
the Company in May 2018.

Mr. Zhu has over 37 years of experience in banking industry. He had
served as section chief, vice president, president or general manager
in Agricultural Bank of China (Jilin Province Branch), Agricultural Bank
of China (Tonghua City Centre Sub-Branch) and various branches of
Agricultural Development Bank of China from 1980 to 2014. Mr. Zhu
has served as an executive director of EERKEERER QA
(Shanghai Hui Sheng Investment Management Limited*) since 2017.
Mr. Zhu graduated from Jilin College of Finance and Trade (currently
known as Jilin University of Finance and Economics) majoring in
Agricultural Financing in 1984 and obtained qualification of the research
course in Economic Management from fFEEMREZER (Party
School of Chinese Communist Party of Jilin Province*) in 2008. He has
also obtained the qualification of senior economist awarded by the
Agricultural Bank of China.

Mr. Wang Xiaochu (“Mr. Wang”), aged 58, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director, a member of the Audit Committee,
a member of the Remuneration Committee and a member of the
Nomination Committee of the Company in July 2018.

Mr. Wang as more than 22 years of experience in the legal profession in
business investment, financing and mergers and acquisitions. He has
served as corporate legal counsel for a number of sizable corporations
since 2007, such as Jilin Investment Group, Jilin Cultural Industry
Investment Holding (Group) Company Limited., etc. He is also currently
a legal advisor to the Jilin Provincial Government, a decision-making
advisory committee member of the Jilin Provincial Government, and
a member of the 13th CPPCC National Committee of Changchun.
Mr. Wang graduated from the China University of Political Science and
Law in 1985 and was qualified as a Chinese lawyer in 1988. He has
also published various academic theses on the theory and practice of
Civil and Commercial Law.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management
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Mr. Tsang Hung Kei (“Mr. Tsang”), aged 50, was appointed as
independent non-executive Director, a member and chairperson of the
Audit Committee and a member of the Nomination Committee and a
member of the Remuneration Committee of the Company in April 2019.

Mr. Tsang has more than 25 years of experience in financial
management and reporting and corporate governance. He is a Fellow
of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, a Fellow of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a Fellow of the
Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales. Mr. Tsang
had years of working experience in an international accounting firm
and is currently the chief financial officer of Pak Fah Yeow International
Limited (stock code: 239), a company listed on the main board (the “Main
Board”) of the Stock Exchange and an executive director of its major
subsidiaries. Mr. Tsang is also an independent non-executive director of
China Success Finance Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 3623) and
Palace Banquet Holdings Limited (stock code: 1703). Mr. Tsang was
an independent non-executive director of China Wah Yan Healthcare
Limited (stock code: 648) from July 2018 to January 2021. The issued
shares of all three companies are listed on the Main Board. Mr. Tsang
holds a Bachelor degree in computer science and accounting at the
University of Manchester, United Kingdom.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Ng Man Kit Micky (“Mr. Ng”), aged 45, joined the Company as
the finance and investor relations director in January 2015, where he
was responsible for the Group’s financial management and general
management of operation in Hong Kong until he was appointed as
chief financial officer and company secretary of the Company in March
2016. Mr. Ng is also a director in various subsidiaries of the Company
and is responsible for advising the Board on corporate governance
matters. He reports to the chairperson of the Board directly and assists
the Board in ensuring effective information flow among the Board
members and that the Board policy and procedures are followed. Mr.
Ng has extensive auditing and accounting experience having been
with an international professional accounting firm for 15 years and is a
member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Ng
obtained his joint degree of Bachelor of Science in Mathematics and
Management Science from the University of Hull, United Kingdom in
July 1998 and a Postgraduate diploma in Business Administration from
the University of Birmingham, United Kingdom in June 1999. Mr. Ng
had duly complied with the relevant training requirement under Rule 3.29
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on
the Stock Exchange.
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Directors’ Report

ESERE

The Directors submit herewith their report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
March 2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. During
the year, the Group was principally engaged in property development
and management including planning, designing, budgeting,
licensing, contract tendering and contract administration, and
property investment. The principal activities and other particulars
of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out in note 1 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Details of the analysis of the performance of the Group for the year by
operating segments are set out in note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the business of the Group, including description of the
principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group, important events
since the end of the financial year, future development and analysis
of the Group’s key financial performance indicators are set out in
“Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 7 to 29 to this annual
report; while the Group’s environmental policies and performance can
be found in “Environmental, Social and Governance Report” on pages
68 to 88 to this annual report. During the year, the Company has
complied with all the relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the Company.

In addition to the above mentioned, the Directors would like to maintain
the Group’s relationships with its stakeholders. The Group’s success
depends on, among other things, the support from key stakeholders
which comprise employees, customers and suppliers.

Employees

Employees are regarded as the most important and valuable assets of
the Group. The objective of the Group’s human resource management
is to reward and recognise performing staff by providing a competitive
remuneration package with appropriate incentives, and to promote
career development and progression by appropriate training.
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Directors’ Report

ESERE

Customers

The Group maintains a good relationship with its customers. It is the
Group’s mission to provide excellent customer service whilst maintaining
long term profitability, business and asset growth. Various means have
been established to strengthen the communications between the
customers and the Group in the provision of excellent customer service.

Suppliers

Sound relationships with key suppliers of the Group are important in
supply chain, meeting business challenges and regulatory requirements,
which can derive cost effectiveness and foster long term business
benefits. We have developed long-standing relationships with a number
of our suppliers and take great care to ensure that they share our
commitment to quality and ethics.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or
redeemed any listed securities of the Company during the year ended
31 March 2021.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company who held office during the year and up to
the date of this report were:

Executive Directors
Ms. CUI Xintong (Chairperson)

Mr. LI Junjie (Chief executive officer)
(appointed on 8 September 2020)
Mr. CONG Peifeng (redesignated on 1 March 2021)
Mr. XU Yingchuan (appointed on 1 March 2021)
Ms. JI Ping (appointed on 10 July 2020 and resigned on 1 March 2021)

Ms. LIU Hongjian (resigned on 29 June 2020)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. TSANG Hung Kei

Mr. WANG Xiaochu

Mr. ZHU Zuoan

Mr. Xu Yingchuan shall retire from office as Director by rotation at the

forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible, will offer himself
for re-election in accordance with the bye-law 85(2) of the Bye-laws.
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DIRECTORS (continued)

Mr. Cong Peifeng and Mr. Tsang Hung Kei shall retire from office as
Director by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting and,
being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election in accordance with the
bye-law 86(1) of the Bye-laws.

Biographical details of Directors and Senior Management are set out on
pages 30 to 34 to this annual report, and details of the Directors to retire
and subject to re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting
of the Company are also contained in the circular to be despatched
together with this annual report.

The Company has received from each of the Independent Non-
executive Directors a written annual confirmation of their independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules on Stock Exchange. The
Company considers all the Independent Non-executive Directors are
independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract or a letter
of appointment with the Company which is not determinable within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

MATERIAL INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed under the sections headed “Connected Transaction”
and “Continuing Connected Transactions” in this report, (i) no other
transactions, arrangement or contracts of significance in relation to
the Group’s business to which the Company or any of its holding
companies, or any of their subsidiaries was a party and in which a
Director or an entity connected with the Directors had a material interest
and (i) no other contracts of significance between the Company, or its
subsidiaries, and its controlling shareholder or any of its subsidiaries,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted during or at the end of the
financial year.
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Directors’ Report
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

As at the date of this report, none of the Directors or their respective
associates are interested in any business which competes or is likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the Group’s businesses.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Bye-laws, the Directors and other officers of the
Company shall be indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets
and profits of the Company from and against all actions, costs, charges,
losses, damages and expenses which shall or may incur or sustain by
or by reasons of any act done, concurred in or omitted in or about the
execution of their duties or otherwise in relation thereto. In addition, the
Company has appropriate liability insurance coverage for the Directors
and officers.

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF THE
DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES OF THE
COMPANY IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY
OR ANY ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 March 2021, the Directors and chief executives of the
Company had the following interests or short positions in shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQO”)) as recorded in the register required
to be kept pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Codge”) in the Listing Rules:
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF THE
DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES OF THE
COMPANY IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY
OR ANY ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS
(continued)

(a) Interests in ordinary shares of the Company (the
“Shares”)
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Approximate
percentage of

Name of Directors/ Nature of No. of issued voting

Chief Executives interest Position Shares held Shares
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(Note 1)

(Btat1)

Ms. Cui Xintong Interest in a controlled Long 3,659,748,124 54.10%
(“Ms. Cui”) corporation (Note 2)
EFEart ([Ext]) REEEE 2 TR (WteF2)

(b) Interest in the underlying shares of the Company
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Approximate
percentage of

Name of Directors/ No. of issued voting
Chief Executives Nature of interest Position shares held Shares
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(Note 1)
(Htat1)
Ms. Cui Settlor of a trust Long 542,838,368 8.03%
(Note 3)
EZt ERESIN HE (H1:3)
Mr. Xu Yingchuan' Beneficiary owner Long 1,000,000 0.01%
TRER || A BERHEA A e (Note 4)
(Hizt4)

T Appointed on 1 March 2021
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF THE EERAQDARSITHRAERE
DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES OF THE AR EEMEBEEERS - M
COMPANY IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING EROREFFZERRAR
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY (#&)

OR ANY ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS
(continued)

(b) Interest in the underlying shares of the Company
(continued)

Notes:

1. The percentage is calculated on the basis of 6,764,285,867 issued
voting Shares as at 31 March 2021.

2. These 3,659,748,124 Shares consist of (i) 434,320,694 Shares held by
Charm Success Group Limited (“Charm Success”) and (i) 3,225,427,430
Shares held by Ka Yik Investments Limited (“Ka Yik”). Charm Success
and Ka Yik are companies wholly owned by Deep Wealth Holding
Limited (“Deep Wealth”), which is in turn held by TMF (Cayman) Ltd. as
trustee of the Ground Trust. The Ground Trust is a discretionary trust
set up by Ms. Cui as settlor and protector, and TMF (Cayman) Ltd. as
trustee on 27 July 2016. By virtue of the SFO, Ms. Cui is deemed to be
interested in the securities of the Company held by Charm Success and
Ka Yik, and such interest duplicated the interest of Charm Success, Ka
Yik and Mr. Lee Ken-yi, Terence (“Mr. Lee”) (Ms. Cui’s spouse) for the
purpose of SFO.

3. As set out in note 2 above, Ka Yik is a company held under the Ground
Trust where Ms. Cui is the settlor and protector. Ms. Cui is deemed to
be interested in those Shares and underlying shares of the Company
by virtue of the SFO and such interest duplicated Ms. Cui’s partial
interest for the purpose of SFO. Those 542,838,368 underlying shares
consist of (i) convertible bonds in the aggregate principal amount of
HK$87,962,612 (convertible into 103,485,427 Shares in total); and (i)
439,352,941 convertible preference shares issued by the Company
on 27 July 2016. All of such underlying shares are unlisted and
physically settled under SFO. Mr. Lee is the spouse of Ms. Cui, an
Executive Director and chairperson of the Board. Mr. Lee is deemed
to be interested in those securities by virtue of being Ms. Cui’'s spouse
under the SFO and such interest duplicated to Ms. Cui’s interest for the
purpose of SFO. All of the relevant underlying shares are unlisted and
physically settled under SFO.
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF THE
DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES OF THE
COMPANY IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY
OR ANY ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS
(continued)

(b) Interest in the underlying shares of the Company
(continued)

Notes: (continued)

4. Those underlying shares are the share options granted by the Company
under the share option scheme of the Company, information of which
was shown in the section headed “Share Option Scheme” of this report.
All of such underlying shares are unlisted and physically settled under
SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2021, none of the
Directors and chief executives of the Company had any interests or
short positions in any shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the
Company and any of its holding companies and subsidiaries, a party
to any arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate.
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ESERE

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN
SECURITIES

As at 31 March 2021, the interests or short positions of the parties
other than the Directors and chief executives of the Company in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the

g
TN

ETERFENES 2 S

RZFZ—F=A=+—H  BEFERARQA

Fmﬁﬂl B UINZ ALRAR R R AE
BAR {0 o B 1R IR 8 5 S B 160 55 336 16k
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register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of ~ FEERANA RIZBHE T A B MR 2 5ok
the SFO were as follows: BT
(a) Interests in Shares (a) Rp =
Approximate
percentage of
No. of issued voting
Name of shareholder Nature of interest Position Shares held Shares
KRB BT
FRi%s RERRG
BEREHE ERtE Be RBEE B
(Note 1)
(Btat1)
Charm Success Registered owner Long 434,320,694 6.42%
(Note 2)
E FRHB A e (HteF2)
Ka Yik Registered owner Long 3,225,427,430 47.68%
(Note 2)
e BB A HE (HisE2)
TMF (Cayman) Ltd. Trustee Long 3,659,748,124 54.10%
(Note 2)
ZEEA S (H1522)
Deep Wealth Interest in controlled Long 3,659,748,124 54.10%
Holding Limited corporation (Note 2)
(‘Deep Wealth”) REZEEE - e (Hfi#2)
Integrated Asset Interest in controlled Long 486,584,427 7.19%
Management (Asia) corporation (Note 4)
Limited
FEBEER (M) REEHER 2 e (WteF4)
BRAA
Yam Tak Cheung Beneficial owner Long 486,584,427 7.19%
(“Mr. Yam”) (Note 4)
FEE(FEEED EnEBA HE (Hizt4)



SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN TERRRESF 2% (&)
SECURITIES (continued)

(a) Interests in Shares (continued) (a) o HE= (48)

Approximate

percentage of

No. of issued voting

Name of shareholder Nature of interest Position Shares held Shares

KIS BT

F%s REERG

BREREE EEME BE ik ¢E| BaL

(Note 1)

(Bfat1)

China Investment Interest in controlled Long 1,050,000,000 15.52%
Fund Company Limited corporation (Note 5)
FREIEEESBRAR] MNEEHER 2 s (H1e5)

Flying Goddess Limited Interest in controlled 1,050,000,000 15.52%
corporation (Note 5)
REIEHER 2 (HteEs)

Eternity Sky Limited Interest in controlled 1,050,000,000 15.52%
corporation (Note 5)
REEHER 2 (HtaE5)

Final Destination Limited Interest in controlled 1,050,000,000 15.52%
corporation (Note 5)
MNEEHER 2 s e (H1e5)

Hong Kong Toprich Registered owner Long 1,050,000,000 15.52%
Investment Limited (Note 5)
AARERERRAR BB A e (HteEs)

Lee Ken-yi Terence Interest of spouse Long 3,659,748,124 54.10%
(“Mr. Lee”) (Note 6)
Foagk ([ZEE]) i Eh e S=) (Htste)
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN TERRRESF 2% (8)
SECURITIES (continued)

(b) Interest in the underlying shares of the Company

(b) RA X BRI AEEE MR 17 2 #E 5

Approximate

No. of percentage of
underlying issued voting
Name of shareholder Nature of interest Position shares held Shares
HIEEBIT
Fr¥s1EE REER G
BREHE ERtE ¥ RAEE Bk
(Note 1)
(KiaE1)
Ka Yik Registered owner Long 542,838,368 8.03%
(Note 3)
e BREBA 5] (Hte3)
TMF (Cayman) Ltd. Trustee Long 542,838,368 8.03%
(Note 3)
ZEEA e (H17E3)
Deep Wealth Interest in controlled Long 542,838,368 8.03%
corporation (Note 3)
AR GIERE 2 s S (#z£3)
Mr. Lee Interest of spouse Long 542,838,368 8.03%
(Note 3)
A Ao B 5] (H1e3)
Notes: 5T -

1. The percentage is calculated on the basis of 6,764,285,867 issued

voting Shares as at 31 March 2021.

2. These 3,659,748,124 Shares consist of (i) 434,320,694 Shares held by
Charm Success and (i) 3,225,427,430 Shares held by Ka Yik. Charm
Success and Ka Yik are companies wholly owned by Deep Wealth,
which is in turn held by TMF (Cayman) Ltd. as the trustee of the Ground
Trust. The Ground Trust is a discretionary trust set up by Ms. Cui as
settlor and protector, and TMF (Cayman) Ltd. as trustee on 27 July
2016. By virtue of the SFO, Ms. Cui is deemed to be interested in the
securities of the Company held by Charm Success and Ka Yik, and such
interest duplicated the interest of Charm Success, Ka Yik, Mr. Lee (Ms.

Cui’s spouse) for the purpose of SFO.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN
SECURITIES (continued)

(b) Interest in the underlying shares of the Company
(continued)

Notes: (continued)

3. As set out in note 2 above, Ka Yik is a company wholly-owned by Deep
Wealth, which is in turn held by TMF (Cayman) Ltd. as trustee of the
Ground Trust where Ms. Cui is the settlor and protector. Each of TMF
(Cayman) Ltd., Deep Wealth and Ms. Cui is deemed to be interested
in those Shares and underlying shares of the Company by virtue of the
SFO. Those 542,838,368 underlying shares consist of (i) convertible
bonds in the aggregate principal amount of HK$87,962,612 (convertible
into 103,485,427 Shares in total); and (ii) 439,352,941 convertible
preference shares issued by the Company on 27 July 2016. All of such
underlying shares are unlisted and physically settled under SFO.

4. Integrated Asset Management (Asia) Limited is a company wholly and
beneficially owned by Mr. Yam. Mr. Yam deemed to be interested in
those Shares by virtue of being its controlling shareholder under SFO.
The interests duplicate each other.

5. Hong Kong Toprich Investment Limited, Final Destination Limited,
Eternity Sky Limited and Flying Goddess Limited are all wholly-owned
subsidiaries of China Investment Fund Company Limited (formerly
known as China Ding Yi Feng Holdings Limited) (“China Investment
Fund”). China Investment Fund is a company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands, whose shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange. The interests duplicate each other.

6. Mr. Lee is the spouse of Ms. Cui, an Executive Director and Chairperson
of the Board. Mr. Lee is deemed to be interested in those securities
by virtue of being Ms. Cui’s spouse under the SFO and such interest
duplicated to Ms. Cui’s interest for the purpose of SFO. All of the relevant
underlying shares are unlisted and physically settled under SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2021, none of the parties
other than Directors and chief executives of the Company had any
interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying shares which
would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of
Division 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

FERRNES 2w ()

(b) RA X RIEEE MR 7 2 #E st ()

BieE - (8

3. kX W 2R # © R 3 fiDeep
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AR ARARRZERD KBRS
A o 52542,838,368 X B RA AL (7
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Details of the share option scheme of the Company and the movements
in the share options are set out in note 28 to the consolidated financial
statements.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group were entered
into or existed during the financial year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTION

On 26 February 2021, the Company entered into a share transfer
agreement with the FEEFERCFINBRAR (Zhongmao
Business Consulting (Shenzhen) Company Limited* ( ‘Zhongmao”)),
pursuant to which the Company conditionally agreed to sell the entire
equity interests in Ground Real Estate Group Company Limited* at the
consideration of RMB1.0 (equivalent to approximately HK$1.2). On
4 June 2021, the Company entered into a supplemental agreement
with Zhongmao and HMAE LR E B PR A A (Jiin Province Hongjing
Industry Company Limited*, “Jilin Hongjing”), pursuant to which the
equity interests of Ground Real Estate Group Company Limited* will
be sold as to 85% to Zhongmao and 15% to Jilin Hongjing; and the
long stop date of the transaction is to be extended. As Jilin Hongjing is
a wholly-owned subsidiary of Zhongmao and their ultimate beneficial
owner is namely Mr. Dou Jinlong, who is a relative (as defined under the
Listing Rules) of Ms. Cui, the above transaction constituted connected
transaction as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. As one or
more of the applicable percentage ratios calculated under Rule 14.07
of the Listing Rules exceed 5% but none of them exceeds 25%; and
as the consideration does not exceed HK$10 million, the transaction
is a de minimis connected transaction of the Company and is subject
to the reporting and announcement requirements but is exempt from
the circular (including independent financial advice) and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements under Rule 14A.76 of the Listing
Rules.

Further details are set out in the Company’s announcements dated 26
February 2021, 15 March 2021 and 4 June 2021, respectively.

@ HUA YIN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED # Z BB #Z R B R A A
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

On 17 July 2019, the Company entered into a corporate guarantee
and financial assistance framework agreement with Ground Investment
Holding (Group) Company Limited (“Ground Investment Holding”), Ka
Yik and Charm Success (both companies being beneficially owned
by Ms. Cui), pursuant to which the Company shall provide corporate
guarantee to the controlling shareholders group (being Ground
Investment Holding, Ka Yik and Charm Success and their respective
associates) and the said controlling shareholders group shall provide
shareholder loans to the Group for a period of three years covering the
financial year ended/ending 31 March 2020, 2021 and 2022. As Ka
Yik and Charm Success are companies beneficially owned by Ms. Cui;
and Ground Investment Holding is a company established in the PRC
with limited liability which is beneficially owned by Ms. Cui’'s parents,
accordingly, each of Ground Investment Holding, Ka Yik and Charm
Success is a connected person of the Company. The above transaction
constituted a continuing connected transaction as defined in Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

The annual caps under the corporate guarantee and financial
assistance framework agreement in respect of the aggregate corporate
guarantee amounts are RMB115,000,000, RMB115,000,000 and
RMB115,000,000; and the aggregate amounts of financial assistance
are RMB174,000,000, RMB202,000,000 and RMB232,000,000 for the
years ended/ending 31 March 2020, 2021 and 2022 respectively.

Details of the above agreement are set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 17 July 2019 and circular dated 20 August 2019.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

In September 2020, Ground Investment Holding had fully repaid the
bank loan; and the corporate guarantee granted by the Company had
consequently been released. The corporate guarantee and financial
assistance framework agreement with Ground Investment Holding
was terminated on 30 November 2020. As a result, the continuing
connected transaction ceased to be in force.

The Company has complied with the disclosure requirements as
prescribed in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules with respect to the above
continuing connected transactions of the Group.

All independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the above
continuing connected transactions, and confirmed that these
transactions were entered into:

1. in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

2. under normal commercial terms, or on terms better than terms
available to or from independent third parties; and

3. in accordance with the agreements governing the above continuing
connected transactions, the terms of which are fair and reasonable
and in the interests of the Shareholders as a whole.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (revised) “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter
on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing
Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

Based on the work performed, the auditor of the Company confirmed
to the Board that the aforesaid continuing connected transactions:

1. have been approved by the Board;
2. are in accordance with the pricing policy of the Group;

3. have been entered into, in all material respects, in accordance with
the relevant agreements governing the transactions; and

4. have not exceeded the relevant cap.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the auditor has issued
an unqualified letter containing their conclusions in respect of the
continuing connected transactions of the Group. A copy of the auditors’
letter has been provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.

Certain connected and continuing connected transactions that are
fully exempted are disclosed in note 33 to the consolidated financial
statements.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for disclosed in the sections headed “Continuing Connected
Transactions”, “Share Option Scheme” and “Issue of Shares,
Convertible Preference Shares and Convertible Bonds” in this report,
the Company did not enter into any equity-linked agreements during the
financial year.

ISSUE OF SHARES, CONVERTIBLE PREFERENCE
SHARES AND CONVERTIBLE BONDS

Details of the shares, convertible preference shares and convertible
bonds issued by the Company and their movements during the year
ended 31 March 2021 were set out in notes 26, 27 and 25 to the
consolidated financial statements respectively.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the five largest customers of the
Group accounted for less than 30% of the Group’s total revenue. The
five largest suppliers of the Group accounted for less than 30% of the
Group’s total purchases.
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DIVIDEND

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend for the
year ended 31 March 2021 (2020:Nil).

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained
sufficient public float of not less than 25% of the Company'’s total
number of issued shares as required under the Listing Rules throughout
the year ended 31 March 2021 and up to the date of this report.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the financial year ended 31
March 2021 were audited by Mazars CPA Limited (“Mazars”) who would
retire at the conclusion of the forthcoming annual general meeting
and being eligible, offer itself for re-appointment. A resolution will be
proposed in the forthcoming annual general meeting to re-appoint
Mazars as the auditor of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, there has been no other change in auditor of
the Company in the preceding one year.

On behalf of the Board
Cui Xintong
Chairperson

Hong Kong, 29 June 2021
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Corporate Governance Report
TERERTE

The Board recognises the importance of good corporate governance
and is committed to maintaining a good governance standards within
the Group. The Board adopts and continuously develops a set of
internal guidelines, practices and policies on the corporate governance.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company adopted the principles in the applicable code provisions
of the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in
Appendix 14 to Listing Rules on the Stock Exchange and complied with
all the applicable code provisions during the financial year, except for a
deviation specified below:

Code provision A.6.7 of the CG Code requires that independent non-
executive directors and other non-executive directors, as equal board
members, should give the board and any committees on which they
serve the benefit of their skills, expertise and varied backgrounds and
qualifications through regular attendance and active participation.
Generally, they should attend general meetings to gain and develop
a balanced understanding of the views of shareholders. Due to the
COVID-19 pandemic, certain of the independent non-executive
Directors and executive Directors were unable to physical attend the
Company’s annual general meeting on 3 September 2020 and special
general meeting held on 8 February 2021 but attended these meetings
by means of video conference.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules as the Company’s code of conduct for dealings
in securities of the Company by the Directors. All Directors have
confirmed, following specific enquiries by the Company, that throughout
the year ended 31 March 2021 they complied with the required
standard as set out in the Model Code.
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THE BOARD
Composition

During the financial year and up to the date of this report, the Board
comprised the following Directors:

Executive Directors
Ms. CUI Xintong (Chairperson)
Mr. LI Junjie (Chief Executive Officer)
(appointed on 8 September 2020)
Mr. CONG Peifeng (redesignated on 1 March 2021)
Mr. XU Yingchuan (appointed on 1 March 2021)
Ms. JI Ping (appointed on 10 July 2020 and resigned on 1 March 2021)

Ms. LIU Hongjian (resigned on 29 June 2020)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. TSANG Hung Kei

Mr. WANG Xiaochu

Mr. ZHU Zuoan

During the financial year, the Board maintained a balanced composition
of Executive Directors and Non-executive Directors which generated
a strong independent element to the Board. All Directors are subject
to retirement by rotation and re-election at the general meeting of
the Company (in case of filling a casual vacancy) or at the annual
general meeting of the Company (in case of an addition to the Board)
following their appointment and at least once every three years in
accordance with the Bye-laws. A list of the Directors identifying their
role and function is published on the Stock Exchange’s website and
the Company’s website. The biographical details of the Directors in
existence during the financial year are set out on pages 30 to 34 to this
annual report.

Other than disclosed, the Board members have no financial, business,
family or other relationships with each other.

The Board received from each of the Independent Non-executive
Directors a written annual confirmation relating to their respective
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company
considered all of the Independent Non-executive Directors were
independent.
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THE BOARD (continued)
Responsibilities of the Board and Management

The Board is responsible for setting the strategic goals of the Company,
providing leadership and guidance to the Group’s activities and for
oversight of the management of the Company and direction of its
business strategies, with the ultimate aim to maximise the shareholder
value and long-term success of the Company while the management
is responsible for management and administrative functions on running
the day-to-day operations of the Group within the authority delegated
by the Board and properly informing the Board of the status of these
operations. Matters specifically for the consideration of the Board mainly
cover, among others, overall corporate strategies, major business plans
and objectives and risk policy of the Group, annual and interim results,
major acquisitions and disposals, major capital investments, material
contracts and transactions, appointment of Directors, other significant
operational and financial matters as well as corporate governance
matters. In addition, the Board has various Board committees and
delegates to these committees various responsibilities set out in their
respective terms of reference.

Continuous Professional Development

All Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills so as
to ensure that their contributions to the Board remain informed and
relevant. Every newly appointed Director shall be given an induction
package covering, inter alia, the Group’s business, the statutory and
regulatory obligations and duties of a director of a listed company.
In addition, all Directors are provided with monthly updates on the
performance and position of the Group to enable the Board as a whole
and each Director to discharge their duties. Furthermore, all Directors
are updated from time to time on the latest changes and development
regarding the Listing Rules, corporate governance practices and other
regulatory and statutory regime with reference materials in order to
ensure compliance and provide their advice on corporate governance.
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THE BOARD (continued) EE2(E)

Continuous Professional Development (continued) BFESXERE (&)

Directors are requested to provide the Company with their respective ~ ZE ZBRIE TG E A5 KM AR FER
training record pursuant to Code Provision A.6.5. During the financial ~— fE%5& 8 25lc8k - MBEERN - £F
year, Directors participated in continuous professional development E2HEIFEEXERE - BEMNEEHENE
through reading materials on regulatory updates, director’s duties and ~ E#TE - EEHERBEURDEEAEIE
responsibilities and corporate governance matters and/or attending  Z# k- K sk E E E KB FTE I 2 HE
relevant seminars or courses provided by professional bodies. Directors ~ #f 5] & S iRiE « EEE RIA R AR HAR K
have provided the Company with a record of the relevant training ~ FERZEXABEI L8 - BEBMEN
undertaken during the financial year as summarised below: ™

Attending briefing/

Directors seminars/courses Reading Materials
HEZENE

o g RE BEM R
Executive Directors HITES

Ms. CUI Xintong EFELL v/ v
Mr. LI Junijie’ ?@1@%5‘&&1 v v/
Mr. CONG Peifeng? EMIE A2 v/ v
Mr. XU Yingchuan? R oA e v/ v
Ms. JI Ping* st v/ v/
Ms. LIU Hongjian® ke 2z 45 v/ v

Independent Non-executive Directors BN IEHTES

Mr. TSANG Hung Kei SIRE L E v v/

Mr. WANG Xiaochu FREYIEE v/ v/

Mr. ZHU Zuoan RIERFTHE v v

Note: BFsE -

1. Appointed on 8 September 2020 1. RZZEZTFNAN\BEZF

2. Redesignated on 1 March 2021 2. RZEZ—F=F—AKERE

3. Appointed on 1 March 2021 3. RZZB-_—F=A—HAEZHE

4. Appointed on 10 July 2020 and resigned on 1 March 2021 4, RZE_ZFLATHEZERR-Z=
F=A—HEME

5. Resigned on 29 June 2020 5 RZZZZTFARA=Z+NHEHT

@ HUA YIN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED # Z BB #Z R B R A A



THE BOARD (continued)

Board Meetings, General Meetings and Attendance of
Directors

During the financial year ended 31 March 2021, the Company held
four regular Board meetings held at approximately quarterly intervals,
an annual general meeting (“AGM”) and one special general meetings
(“SGM”). The attendance of each Director is as follows:

BEEE2(E)
BEEE2E2E REASREZLHE
15R

HE T - F=-A=+—BULFHEE
N AR HBTNIEHESTFSSE (K
NEFE—X)  —RBRRBFAS ((RE
BEXE])E—rBRERERAS ([RRER
Ag]) FEZZHERFHIWNT :

Attended/Eligible to attend

HEaEREE
Board Meeting AGM SGM
Ezaggl BRERBFRE RESBIAE
Ms. CUI Xintong EFEL+ 4/4 1/1 1/1
Mr. LI Junijie’ TG A 3/4 - 1/1
Mr. CONG Peifeng? E e 4/4 11 1/1
Mr. XU Yingchuan? EREIIF e 1/4 - -
Mr. TSANG Hung Kei LR E A 4/4 1/1 1/1
Mr. WANG Xiaochu TR E 4/4 1/1 1/1
Mr. ZHU Zuoan RIERFTHE 4/4 1/1 1/1
Ms. JI Ping* FRa S 3/4 1/ 1/1
Ms. LIU Hongjian® Bt Zr 4 1/4 - -
Note: Bi3E
1. Appointed on 8 September 2020 1. RZZE_ZFNANBEZT
2. Redesignated on 1 March 2021 2. WZEZ—H=HA—HERE
3. Appointed on 1 March 2021 3. RZZE-Z—F=A—HEZ{E
4. Appointed on 10 July 2020 and resigned on 1 March 2021 4, RZZEZTFLATHBRZERR =T =—
F=HA—HEHE

5. Resigned on 29 June 2020 5 RZZEZZEFNAZ+TNAHE
Apart from the said Board meetings, routine/operational matters  [& FitEE @ @RI SBEE@ i E )

requiring Board approval were arranged by means of circulation
of written resolutions with supporting materials, supplemented by
additional verbal and/or written information from the company secretary
of the Company as and when appropriate. The Chairperson of the
Board attended the AGM and invited the chairpersons of the audit,
remuneration, nomination committees to attend. In case of absence of
committee chairperson, the Chairperson invited another member of the
committee attended to answer questions at the AGM.
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RERBEXHERRBRERBAARRZA
AIMERMEINOER RETHTERR
2REZENEMEHEE -EFgXRN
FERERAFRE - WEEEZ - FH - 128
§A521ﬁﬁﬁ WMEBEEEER ' =
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CHAIRPERSON AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The positions of the Chairperson and the chief executive officer of
the Company are held by separate individuals in order to enhance
independence and a balanced judgment of views. The Chairperson,
Ms. Cui Xintong, is responsible for overall corporate planning and
strategic policy making and the effective functioning of the Board
in accordance with good corporate governance practices. On 8
September 2020, Mr. Li Junjie was appointed as an executive Director
and chief executive officer of the Company. He is responsible to execute
the corporate planning and strategic policy.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Pursuant to Rules 3.10(1), 3.10(2), 3.10(A) and 3.21 of the Listing Rules,
every board of directors of a listed issuer must include at least three
independent non-executive directors, at least of three independent non-
executive directors must have appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise, an issuer must
appoint independent non-executive directors representing at least one-
third of the board, and the audit committee must comprise a minimum
of three members.

During the financial year ended 31 March 2021, the Group had at least
three Independent Non-executive Directors at all times. The Company
was in compliance with the requirements under Rules 3.10(1), 3.10(2),
3.10(A) and 3.21 for the Listing Rules during the year.

All of the Non-executive Directors have entered into letters of
appointment with the Company for a specified period of three years
(renewable), subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the
annual general meeting of the Company at least once every three years
in accordance with the Bye-laws.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has three Board committees, including the Remuneration
Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Audit Committee to
help with the discharge of its responsibilities.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Remuneration Committee

As at 31 March 2021, the Remuneration Committee comprises Ms.
Cui Xintong (chairperson of the Remuneration Committee), Mr. Zhu
Zuoan, Mr. Tsang Hung Kei and Mr. Wang Xiaochu. The Remuneration
Committee’s duties as set out in its terms of reference include, inter alia,
to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and
structure for the remuneration of all Directors and senior management,
making recommendation to the Board on the remuneration packages
for individual Directors and senior management, and administering and
overseeing the Company’s share option scheme(s). No Director or any
of his/her associates is involved in deciding his/her own remuneration.
The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee setting out its
role and responsibilities are available on the Stock Exchange’s website
and the Company’s website.

The Board adopted a remuneration policy for directors and senior
management to provide guidelines for structuring all remuneration of
directors and senior management. The remuneration policy is reviewed
annually by the Board and the Remuneration Committee. The policy
sets out, among others, the remuneration structure which mainly covers
director’s fee, basic salary, discretionary bonus, other benefits in kind,
pension scheme, share option scheme(s) and termination payments,
and determination or review of remuneration packages. The Directors’
and senior management’s remuneration packages are determined,
or reviewed annually, taking into consideration the criteria such as
experience, responsibilities, workload, time commitment, individual’s
and the Company’s performance as well as the prevailing market
conditions. Meetings of the Remuneration Committee shall be held at
least once a year.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Remuneration Committee (continued)
The Remuneration Committee held three meetings during the financial

year ended 31 March 2021. The attendance of each member is set out
as follows:

i%;ﬁ (nlﬁ)

FMEES (&)
HE-Z-—F=A=1T—HIVHFE -
FNEEEHBITZRGH - SKEZHF
EHIILT :

Number of meetings attended/
Eligible to attend

HEGEREESERRE
Ms. CUI Xintong (Chairperson) EFEZL(FE) 3/3
Mr. TSANG Hung Kei BIEE ST A 3/3
Mr. WANG Xiaochu TREASEE 3/3
Mr. ZHU Zuoan RIELR A 3/3
The work performed by the Remuneration Committee during the year ~ ¥ ENZ B &R F R NATETT 2 TIER a0
are summarised as follows: ™
(a) reviewed the remuneration policy and structure of all Directors and ~ (a) R 2 EEE MR EE A S 2 FHEHEK

senior management; RIRBRE

(b) reviewed the terms of reference in compliance with the prevailing
CG Code;

(c) reviewed and recommended the Board on the remuneration
packages of all Directors and senior management; and

(d) administer and oversee the share options granted under the share
option scheme of the Company.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Nomination Committee

As at 31 March 2021, the Nomination Committee comprises
three Independent Non-executive Directors namely Mr. Zhu Zuoan
(Chairperson of the Nomination Committee), Mr. Tsang Hung Kei and
Mr. Wang Xiaochu and one Executive Director, Ms. Cui Xintong. The
Nomination Committee’s duties as set out in its terms of reference
include, inter alia, formulating, reviewing and implementing nomination
policy for Directors, reviewing the structure, size and composition of
the Board, identifying individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members, receiving nominations from shareholders or Directors,
assessing the independence of the Independent Non-executive
Directors and undertaking an annual performance evaluation of the
Board. The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee setting
out its role and responsibilities are available on the Stock Exchange’s
website and the Company’s website. The Board adopts a nomination
policy for Directors to provide guidelines for effective functioning in the
course of director’s nomination process. The policy sets out, among
others, the selection procedures and evaluation criteria for selecting
and recommending the candidates for directorship. The Nomination
Committee first assesses the needs of the Board in respect of its
structure, size and composition, identifies potential candidates by
considering, among others, their personal ethics, integrity, skills,
professional knowledge and experience and time commitment and then
develops a short list of potential appointees for recommendation to the
Board.

The Board also adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity
Policy”) from 2013 which sets out its approach to diversity on the Board.
The Board recognises and embraces the benefits of board diversity to
enhance the quality of performance and endeavours to ensure that the
Board has a balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives
appropriate to the requirements of the Company’s business. The
Company seeks to achieve board diversity through the consideration of
a number of factors, including but not limited to, gender, age, cultural
and educational background, ethnicity, professional qualification and
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. The Nomination
Committee will consider candidates on merit and contribution that
they will bring to the Board and then recommended the appropriate
person(s) to the Board for consideration. The Nomination Committee
will review, as appropriate, and monitor the implementation of the Board
Diversity Policy to ensure its effectiveness.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Nomination Committee (continued)
The Nomination Committee held three meetings during the financial

year ended 31 March 2021. The attendance of each member is set out
as follows:

i%;é (nlﬁ)
REZEE (&)
BE_T-_—F=A=+—HIIBFE

RAEEGYRTREH - SREZHE
EHIIMT :

Number of meetings attended/
Eligible to attend

HEGEREESERRE
Mr. ZHU Zuoan (Chairperson) RIERFHE (F/E) 3/3
Ms. CUI Xintong ExEat 3/3
Mr. TSANG Hung Kei LR E ST 3/3
Mr. WANG Xiaochu =2 b 3/3
The work performed by the Nomination Committee during the year are IR RZ B RF R NFTETT 2 TIER M0
summarised as follows: N
(a) nominated the incumbent Directors for re-election; (a) RERATEFTZEE
(b) reviewed the nomination policy for Directors; (o) W ERRABUR
(c) reviewed the Board Diversity Policy; () WMANEEEHEZITTLEUR

(d) reviewed the terms of reference in compliance with the prevailing
CG Code;

(e) reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board; and

() assessed the independence of the Independent Non-executive
Directors.

Audit Committee

As at 31 March 2021, the Audit Committee comprises all the
Independent Non-executive Directors namely Mr. Tsang Hung Kei
(Chairperson of the Audit Committee), Mr. Zhu Zuoan and Mr. Wang
Xiaochu. One of the three Committee members possesses appropriate
professional accounting qualifications and expertise. The Company
was in compliance with the requirements under Rule 3.21 of the Listing
Rules.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Audit Committee (continued)

The Audit Committee’s duties as set out in its terms of reference
include, inter alia, reviewing and monitoring the financial reporting,
overseeing and reviewing the Company’s financial reporting system,
risk management and internal control systems and the Group’s financial
and accounting policies and practices with the management and the
external auditor and considering the appointment, re-appointment and
removal of the external auditor and the external auditor’s remuneration
and terms of engagement. The terms of reference of the Audit
Committee setting out its role and responsibilities are available on the
Stock Exchange’s website and the Company’s website.

The Audit Committee held two meetings during the financial year ended
31 March 2021. The attendance of each member is set out as follows:

EEZE2 (&)
BRE

Sg (&)
ERZBEENERREEZBERE (HEH
BIE) EEEE RIS BE R M ERY
BHRE - BB RREANR R Z MR R
B - EeE T K R EP BRI T R AN SR B 2 B
BREFABERED - A ERBINEZEEN 2
R - BB MR EINSZBENF B KA T
R - AT 2R B @R M E 2 g
B PRBE 3Z P AR Je AR A B AR AT B o

HE_Z-_—F=RA=1+—HILWEFE
ERZEGHBTRMASH - SKEZHE
RHFHT

Number of meetings attended/
Eligible to attend

HEAEREESERE
Mr. TSANG Hung Kei (Chairperson) EIEELE (F/E) 2/2
Mr. WANG Xiaochu TR E 2/2
Mr. ZHU Zuoan KIERTAE 2/2

The work performed by the Audit Committee during the financial year
are summarised as follows:

(@) reviewed the annual results for year ended 31 March 2020 and the
interim results for six months ended 30 September 2020 and the
reports from external auditor, management representation letters
and management’s response in relation thereto;

C3

reviewed the respective reports on the Group’s continuing
connected transactions and internal control;

S

reviewed the accounting policies and practices as well as the
financial reporting system and risk management and internal control
system of the Group;

(d) reviewed the terms of reference in compliance with prevailing CG
Code;
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Audit Committee (continued)

(e) reviewed the continuing connected transactions of the Group
pursuant to Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules; and

(f) reviewed the effectiveness of financial reporting system and internal
control system of the Group.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the following main corporate
governance functions as set out under the written responsibilities of the
Board:

(@) To develop and review the Company’s terms of reference, policies,
practices, codes and guidelines on corporate governance and to
make recommendations thereof;

(b) To review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

(c) To review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(d) To develop, review and monitor the code of conduct applicable to
employees and Directors; and

(e) To review the Company’s compliance with the code and disclosure
in the corporate governance report. During the reporting year, the
Board has reviewed and performed the said corporate governance
functions.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 March 2021, the Company’s external auditor,
provided the following services to the Group:
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RMB’000

ARETFIT

Audit services E1ZRTE 1,001

Non-audit services IEEIZ RS

— Interim review — AR 348
— Professional services in relation - ERAEEWRBRH 2 ZERS

to a major transaction 157

Total 45T 1,506
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RESPONSIBILITY FOR PREPARATION AND
REPORTING OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements of the Group which give a true and
fair view, and were prepared in accordance with the relevant statutory
requirements and applicable accounting standards in force, and were
published in a timely manner. The Directors of the Company are also
responsible for selecting appropriate accounting policies and applying
them consistently, ensuring timely adoption of Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. The Directors of the Company acknowledge their
responsibility for preparing the consolidated financial statements of the
Group and report that the Company has announced its annual and
interim results in a timely manner after the end of the relevant period as
laid down in the Listing Rules.

Save as disclosed in the “Independent Auditor’s Report” of the auditor
under the heading “Material Uncertainty Relating to Going Concern”, the
Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to event or
conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern.

The Directors wish to make the following statement with regard to the
Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern in the independent
auditor's report:

The Group incurred a loss of approximately RMB515,199,000 for the
year ended 31 March 2021 and as of that date, the Group had net
current liabilities and net liabilities of approximately RMB133,164,000
and RMB13,707,000 respectively.

These conditions indicate the existence of a material uncertainty which
may cast significant doubt about the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern and, therefore, the Group may be unable to realise its
assets and discharge its liabilities in the normal course of business.

Given the above conditions, the Company's directors have prepared
a cash flow forecast covering a period up to 30 September 2022 after
taking into account of the following arrangements:

(i) the Group is in negotiation with have financial institutions and
other lenders for the renewals of the Group's short-term bank and
other borrowings that expired or upon expiry and obtaining new
borrowings; and expected to be able to renew existing borrowings
and obtain new bank borrowings subsequent to the date of
reporting period;
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RESPONSIBILITY FOR PREPARATION AND
REPORTING OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

(i) the Group is expected to generate adequate cash flows to maintain
its operations;

(i) the disposal of the entire equity interests in Ground Real Estate
Group Company Limited* ("Ground Real Estate") and its subsidiaries
which was completed in June 2021;

(iv) the proposed possible divestment of the Fusong Property Project in
the near future. The Group's management has commenced ongoing
discussions with the Fusong Government and potential buyers in
respect of the possible divestment;

(v) the Group is expected to obtain continuous financial support from
the Group's controlling shareholder, and the controlling shareholder
has confirmed that it will not demand the Group for repayment of
the loans from controlling shareholder within the next twelve months
should the Group not be in the financial position to make such
repayment; and

(vi) the Group is currently under negotiation with Ka Yik Investments
Limited ("Ka Yik") for the settlement arrangement of the Convertible
Bonds and Ka Yik has preliminarily agreed to fully convert on or
before the maturity date.

Based on the above, the directors are of the opinion that the Group
will have sufficient working capital to meet its financial obligations as
and when they fall due within the twelve months from 31 March 2021.
Accordingly, the consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on a going concern basis. The Audit Committee has reviewed the
Group's audited consolidated financial statements and annual results
for the year ended 31 March 2021; and are of the opinion that the use
of going concern basis in the preparation of the financial statements is
appropriate.

The statement of the auditor of the Company about its reporting
responsibilities is set out in the “Independent Auditor’'s Report” on
pages 89 to 96 to this annual report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
SYSTEMS

The Board has overall responsibility for maintaining an adequate system
of risk management and internal control and reviewing its effectiveness.
The system is designed to facilitate the effectiveness and efficiency of
operations, safeguard assets against unauthorised use and disposition,
ensure the maintenance of proper accounting records and the truth and
fairness of the financial statements, and ensure compliance with relevant
legislation and regulations. It provides reasonable, but not absolute,
assurance against material misstatement or loss and management,
rather than elimination of risks associated with its business activities.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
SYSTEMS (continued)

During the year, the Board, through the Audit Committee, conducted
an annual review on the effectiveness of both the design and
implementation of the risk management and internal control systems
of the Group during the year, covering all material controls, including
financial, operational and compliance controls, with a view to ensuring
that resources, staff qualifications and experience, training programme
and budget of the Group’s accounting, internal audit and financial
reporting functions are adequate. In this respect, the Audit Committee
will communicate any material issues to the Board.

During the year, the Group had performed internal control review
and assessed effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems. The results of the review and assessment
were reported to the Audit Committee and the Board. Moreover,
improvements in internal control and risk management measures to
enhance the risk management and internal control systems of the
Group and mitigate risks of the Group were adopted by the Board.
Based on the findings and recommendations as well as the comments
of the Audit Committee, the Board considered that the internal control
and risk management systems of the Group are effective and adequate.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Ng Man Kit Micky, the Company Secretary of the Company, is a full-
time employee of the Company and has confirmed that, in compliance
with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, he took no less than 15 hours of
relevant professional training during the reporting year.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

(a) Procedures for convening special general meetings
and putting forward proposals

Pursuant to the Bye-laws, subject to the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda (as amended), shareholders of the Company holding at
the date of deposit of the requisition holding not less than one-
tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company carrying the right of
voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all time have
right, by written requisition to the Board or the secretary of the
Company, to require a SGM to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition; and such
meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit of such
requisition. If within twenty-one days of such deposit the Board fails
to proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionists, or any of
them representing more than one half of the total voting rights of all
of them, may themselves convene a meeting, but any meeting so
convened shall not be held after the expiration of three months from
the said date.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (continued)

(a) Procedures for convening special general meetings
and putting forward proposals (continued)

Shareholders may put forward proposals for consideration at a
general meeting in accordance with the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda (as amended), while the procedures for a shareholder
to propose a person other than a retiring director of the Company
for election as a Director at a general meeting are available on the
Company’s website.

(b) Procedures for sending enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may send their enquiries and concerns to the Board,
together with their contact information, by post to the principal
place of business of the Company or by fax for the attention of the
company secretary of the Company.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS

The Board recognises the importance of maintaining an effective
communication with the shareholders and investors of the Company. A
shareholders’ communication policy adopted by the Board is to ensure
the promotion of effective communication. The principal communication
channels with shareholders and investors are established as set out
below.

General Meetings

Shareholders’ meeting, including AGM or other general meeting, of the
Company provides a communication channel between the Shareholders
and the Board that the Shareholders are encouraged to participate in
such meeting for expressing their views and raising enquiries about the
Company’s performance while the Board members who attended such
general meeting shall reply and answer the enquiries and questions
raised by the Shareholders.

Any vote of shareholders at a general meeting is taken by poll except
where the chairperson, in good faith, decides to allow a resolution
which relates purely to a procedural or administrative matter to be voted
on by a show of hands. The poll results are published on the Stock
Exchange’s website and the Company’s website after the conclusion of
the general meeting.
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COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS (continued)

Other Communication Channels

The Company will provide corporate communications, including annual
and interim reports, notices of meeting and circulars, to shareholders
in printed form by post and on the website of the Company to facilitate
the shareholders’ understanding.

The Company also maintains a website at www.huayininternational.com,
as alternative communication channel for the shareholders of the
Company and investors, for posting the corporate communications,
disseminating information and updates on the Company’s business
developments and operations, financial information, corporate
governance practices and other shareholders information as well as
other corporate communications in a timely and convenient manner.

For enquiries about shareholdings, the shareholders of the Company
may contact the share registrars of the Company and for other
enquiries, the shareholders, the investors, media or the public may
contact the Company directly, contact details of which are posted on
the Company’s website.

The memorandum of association and the updated Bye-Laws of the
Company are available on the website of the Stock Exchange and the
website of the Company.

By order of the Board
Cui Xintong
Chairperson

Hong Kong, 29 June 2021
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE - HERERRE

1. COMPANY OVERVIEW 1. AFEN

Hua Yin International Holdings Limited (formerly known as Ground
International Development Limited) ("Hua Yin", together with
its subsidiaries, the "Group") (Stock Code: 989) is a property
development company based in Hong Kong and has been listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
"Stock Exchange") since 1997. In addition, the Group invested in
property development, management and investment to customers
in diverse sectors in the People’s Republic of China (the "PRC").

2. ABOUT THIS REPORT 2.

2.1.Reporting Period and Boundary

This Environmental, Social and Governance ("ESG") Report (the
"Report") is covering the financial reporting period from 1 April
2020 to 31 March 2021 (the "Reporting Period"). The scope
of the Report covers the Group’s operation in its Hong Kong
office, — and nine property management premises in Jilin. The
reporting scope was expanded when compared to ESG Report
2020 while the approach remains the same.
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2. ABOUT THIS REPORT (continued)

2.2.Reporting Standard and Principles

The Report is prepared in accordance with Appendix 27 —
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide (the
"ESG Guide") issued by the Stock Exchange. The Group
adheres to the principles of materiality, quantitative, balance and
consistency to report on the measures and performances during
the Reporting Period. The Report has attached a content index
on pages 80 to 88 for readers to navigate specific ESG topics.
More in-depth Information regarding corporate governance is
addressed in the section of corporate governance in the annual

2. BRARE (&)
2.2. & 2RI K R R

report according to the Appendix 14 of the Main Board Listing EBOHEE o
Rules.
Materiality Materiality environmental and social issues were
BE identified by the Board. The relevant content was
prioritised and disclosed in this Report.
BRI TEARENMLEGEE - ~AREEE
FHRBEHEAR -
Quantitative The Group records and discloses key performance
=1t indicators in quantitative terms as appropriate.
AEEEMESNER T AR AL RIEE
ARG RUEIR -
Consistency As far as practicable and unless stated otherwise,
—E5 the Group employs consistent measurement

methodology to allow for meaningful comparison
of ESG data over time.
ERTHERT @ BRIERARHRA - BRIKREER
R—BWErEm%  WEHIRE 18  JRIEH
BETEERNER
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RIR - HERERE

RS

3. SUSTAINABILITY GOVERNANCE 3. IHERREER
3.1.Sustainability Governance Structure MOUBERREREE

The board of directors (the "Board") has the overall responsibility rEEE=Eg((E5e)2MA8E
of the oversight of the ESG governance of the Group, and EEREENRE HeRkER I
subject to compliance of the Stock Exchange Listing Rules. AT P ETRA - EEEEK
The Board has established a committee of the Board known VEERZEE  BARE HER
as the Environmental, Social and Governance Committee (the ERZBE([ESGZE®T]) HE
"ESG Committee") with its constitution and particular duties. BEETHE -ESGREETR - W
The chairman, the secretary and the members of the ESG ENKEREESRIT -ESGLZEE
Committee shall be appointed by the Board. The responsibilities FBER :

of the ESG Committee are:

ESG Committee
ESGZE®E

Identifying the relevant matters that significantly affect the operation of the Group
or the interests of other stakeholders in ESG aspects
BAIEAS B LS MR EEESG FENNHE ERAZEMNHMEEE
Adopting and updating as necessary the Group’s policies on production safety,
environmental protection, social responsibility management and corporate
governance

BEFERANENAEBANLT24AE  RIFRE HSEEEENGEE
JARIBER

Reviewing and adopting the risks assessment in respect of the Group’s impact
on health, safety, environmental and society

BEEWERABAAEEHER 22  REMEgXE0 R

Monitoring the Group’s ESG activities

EEEEMESGER

Reviewing the Group’s annual report or special reports (if any) on ESG
EHAEEBNESGHFERE RIS (0F)

Reporting the ESG Committee’s findings and recommendation to the Board on a
regular basis

TEHRESEEMEESCEZEGNATERNER

Continuing application of the articles of association of the Company
HERAAEE 2
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3. SUSTAINABILITY GOVERNANCE (continued) 3. AIFEEREER (&)

3.2.Stakeholder Engagement and Materiality 2B ESENMEE T

Assessment

The Group maintains effective communication with stakeholders BRFNENE RSB EKE
by collecting and listening to their comments and opinions via EEHEE  ARAKERASEFH
emails and meetings, as the opinions of stakeholders are critical HRgZEENERFOHENER
the Group’s business operations. The Board identified and HENERBERED - £ 2IRIE
confirmed the following material issues, both environmental and BhHENBEE  BEWRERTUTE
social, that are relevant to the Group’s commercial activities, in SEREEERENEARSENTE
accordance with stakeholders’ concerns: fRE :

e Energy saving e |abour standards
EKIREIR T )

e Greenhouse gas ("GHG") emission control e Training and development
R SR BB B R R R

e Water conservation e (QOccupational health and safety
B AT K BERERRZE

e Waste management e Employees’ wellbeing
BEEMER BT

e Supply chain management
HEEER

e Quality assurance

BERE

e Anti-corruption
RES

e Community investment
HERZE

e Customers’ privacy and data protection

BEFILEMBIRRE
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BiE B REABE o

4. CONSERVING THE ENVIRONMENT 4, RERE

}W‘

4.1.Environmental Policy

In order to achieve sustainability goals and fulfill the expectations
of stakeholders, the Group has developed and implemented a
set of environmental policies. While promoting economic growth
and social welfare, the Group is committed to conserving the
environment and embedding the sustainability concept into its
corporate operations.

The Group complied with all relevant environmental laws and
regulations such as the Air Pollution Control Ordinance in Hong
Kong and the Environmental Protection Law of the PRC during
the Reporting Period.

4.2.Energy Saving and GHG Emission Control

The Group strives to reduce the major GHG emissions by
improving the energy efficiency of our daily operations. The
most significant contributor to the Group’s GHG emissions is
electricity use in the property management facilities. The Group
has developed an electricity consumption management policy
in this regard. Employees and tenants are encouraged to switch
off all unnecessary lighting, air conditioning, computers, and
other electronic appliances. The administration department
conducts regular inspections and equipment maintenance
to monitor energy efficiency, and ensure the safety of the
appliances. Furthermore, the indoor air conditioning temperature
is maintained at 25°C or above to save energy.

Unit

By
Total Energy Consumption kWh in 000
HRE T ERE '000 T EL

Total Energy Consumption Intensity

HREIRBFERE

kWh in '000/RMB’M revenue
‘000 FEE “BREBARKEIIRA

41 RRBUR

BT EIAHERRBREIMERD
EOHE - AEEHIELERT —F
FIRIRIRIR  AE(RERBIR RANE
SRMORE - ARERIRRER
5 WRAREERESBRALEE

REHA - NEBETHRARBR
BREER - DINEBERITRE
DI K BRI RAEE o

4.2 B BE TR AR E RS BERUIZ

REEHBBRS AR EENGER
MEFHOE T ZREREIN - D
XEEEBTNENEREAEER
EREHRANRARR - Bt - K&
ECHIEENEEREEK - AEEE
BT REFPREMME T Zr KA

= BERRBEEFRE - RER

R R HERRE L E - TIRARPT
S HEITREREMAERE o I

\

B

ERNEARERIFTE2EZ A L
LABRE R
2021 2020
8,663 9,511
56.50 39.19

(Note 1) (F£1)

Note 1: As the revenue decreased, the energy consumption intensity increased subsequently.

1 ARREHARRARYD - EREFERERE 2 -
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4. CONSERVING THE ENVIRONMENT (continued) 4. {REIRIE (&)

42Energy Saving and GHG Emission Control 4.2. BT A BE IR AR = R B8 HERUIE 4l

(continued) (&)

Unit 2021 2020
B

Total GHG Emissions tonnes of CO2 equivalent ("tCO2,.") 9,595.77 10,536

R E RSP ME— SR E 8

Total GHG Emissions Intensity tCO2 /RMB’M revenue 62.58 43.41

BREREBHNGRE Wo_StREE/ SEEARKIKRA  Noen @D

Note 1: As the revenue decreased, the GHG emissions intensity increased subsequently.

1 BEERSHARARD  RERBHHMGAERE Z G o

4.3.Water Conservation 4.3. 8 FK

THRIKERERE — @2 KM
o At - EFBEREUIR L EEF
RAKE - ETABAKGEREER
KERIRES - REBEHKKRET
BAHUKERIERT - EAORKE S E

Understanding that water scarcity is a global issue. Hua
Yin strives to reduce water consumption in its operations.
Employees’ daily water use accounts for the majority of the
Group’s water consumption. The Group does not encounter any
significant issues on water sourcing where the supply comes

from the municipal water supplier. Despite that, the Group is
working to improve water efficiency by installing water-saving
equipment such as dual flush toilets, sensor faucets, and other

water-saving devices.

WEBE M EAREE - EELL -
AEEERBLEEKRME - e
K - RRE/KBESR M A M ER/KE
B BHRSEHHAKEE -

Unit 2021 2020
B (Note 1) (i£1)
Total Water Consumption m? 86,279 77,848
BRKE AVA N
Total Water Consumption Intensity m3/RMB’M revenue 562.66 320.76
(Note 2) (7£2)

BRKERE MFK/SGEEBARKKA

Note 1: Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, the data collection was affected so the water data from the properties in Jilin was
incomplete.

i1 HRFRERRSEEBRER BBRRERIFE RS EKEURETTE -

Note 2: As the revenue decreased during the Reporting Period and the total water consumption increased due to the larger
scope, the total water consumption intensity increased subsequently.

g2 ARREHARRARY - ARKERBERAMEN - 2RKEREHE LM -
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4. CONSERVING THE ENVIRONMENT (continued) 4. {fREIRIE (&)

44.ERYER

4.4 Waste Management

)&

The Group’s waste is mainly generated from the daily operation
of tenants, customers, the domestic waste of residents, as well
as the construction of properties. The Group seeks to minimise
its waste generation by embedding different waste management
measures into the business operation. In order to reduce paper
consumption and raise the environmental awareness of the
employees, the Group has incorporated the concept of the
green office into practice at the office. The Group also promotes
waste separation by placing recycling facilities in the properties
and offices. The Group, meanwhile, assigned licensed waste

treatment companies to collect and handle the non-recyclable
waste.

AEENEZRYTIEREES - P
MBEFEE  EPHEERLIRA KLY
EHER - ARBEBBKTRMER
WEBERAAFEEE  IKEE
MAOBRMNEL - RELBRER
REEIRRES - ARERKREH
NENESBMAMDEF - KEETT
BREMERRRENE B R -
REBEEYDE - R - AEEZIK
FrhR R )R 1R 1 AR M BRI N AT
Bl IR ©

Unit

B
Total Non-Hazardous Waste tonnes
BIEEREY) 73

Total Non-Hazardous Waste Intensity

fREEREREYEE

tonnes/RMB’M revenue
e EEEARBERA

2021 2020
0.35 8.74
0.002 0.036

Note 1: Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, the data collection was affected so the waste data from the properties in Jilin was
incomplete. In the previous Reporting Period, non-hazardous waste included office waste generated in Hong Kong
office and Jilin office. During the Reporting Period, non-hazardous waste only included office waste generated in

Hong Kong office.

1 ARFRERRSEREEE  BRRERIFE  FRERESEMMYE (BIFRELR) WEEMEE - £—
BEHA BETEEVEETERLAZNEMRAZTEENRAEREY - REHN - BESEEVERBERERA

EELNRABERY
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5. THE EXCELLENT TEAM

5.1.Acquiring Talents

The Group believes that employees is the crucial factor of the
Group’s business success. Therefore, the Group is eager to
acquire suitable talents for driving its sustainable business
development.

To retain employees, the Group has developed policies on
promotion, working hours, remuneration, other benefits and
welfares in addition to recruiting the suitable candidates. Based
on the "Performance Assessment Management Guidelines,"
the Group reviews staff's promotion and salaries on an annual
basis. Besides, employees can also benefit from the company’s
meal allowance, social insurance, medical care, and festival
presents. Since the Group values work-life balance, any action
of involuntary overtime work is forbidden.

The Group forbids any form of discrimination and implements
a fair employment policy. Throughout the recruitment process,
every candidate is given an equal opportunity. Applicants are
objectively assessed based on their capability, experience, and
potential, and in regardless of gender, age, religion, nationality,
and ethnicity. Furthermore, the Group strictly prohibits
child employment and forced labour. The human resources
department ("HR") responsible for screening the applicants by
carefully verifying their identity and age. The Group complied
with the PRC Labour Law as well as other relevant labour laws
and regulations during the Reporting Period.

5. =2 i & B
51. {818 A7

AEEREETRERBKINNEES
WE - At - AREELEIRFREDN
AF A E AR BRI ER

SBREET  ARERBEEAEAE
S BERERBET - TR - &
B - EAbtEF R BR - RIE
(BREREREWER)  ~"EEEFE
HETWENNHHETER - It
o BB ZRNAIMKRAER -
HeRk  BE  SARYEREH -
RN AEEER T ERAETEN T -
LI HEAISF B BEINIIRTT /A -

AEREZE TP AR - WETT
NP EBER - £EERBBER
F BUREAEFSORE - KN
SEREHBANES ~ ERAE
ETEBG - TR FER R
¥ BEFEMER o I - REEERLE
ERMETIMEFISET - ANWERETE
BB ARERFANT DMFR
KEPERPBA - NEENRE NG
SKREARANMBLEE) N EMA
FASSEARAEM -
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5. fER (&)
5.2 fRFEAF

5. THE EXCELLENT TEAM (continued)

5.2.Safeguarding Talents

The Group’s business operations place a high priority on
occupational health and safety. The Group is dedicated to
providing a healthy and safe working environment for its workers.

The Group has developed and implemented a thorough safety
management strategy in order to reduce potential workplace
hazards. As part of the tendering procedures, the project
management department and procurement department are
appointed to assess the contractors’ safety measures, such as
occupational accident insurance and number of safety officer
involved. Besides, the project management department is
responsible for conducting daily on-site inspection and regular
safety management meeting to ensure the compliance with the
applicable laws, regulations and standards in the workplace.

The Group complied with all relevant laws and regulations
related to health and safety, and did not record any work-related
fatalities during the Reporting Period.

5.3.Cultivating Talents

Hua Yin International supports its employees’ professional
growth and development. The Group is dedicated to providing
a variety of training and development programmes to fit in
the roles of its employees. This includes orientation training
to new employees introducing the Group’s polices, culture,
organisation and standard operating procedures. For the
property management team, the Group provides specialised
training in customer services, data protection and security. In
addition, the Group also provides professional training on laws
and regulations, loaning procedures, risk control and relevant
financial topics to the financial guarantee services team.

Moreover, the HR department is responsible for formulating
and implementing customised training programmes based
on business development and position requirements. The HR
department assesses the training’s effectiveness through training
appraisals upon the completion of the training programmes. The
HR department shall then review the training plans and make
corresponding modification in order to maximise the benefits of
training activities for the employees.

@ HUA YIN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED # Z BB #Z R B R A A

AEENEHLESEERRERE
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AEEEHELEREANLTEEE
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6. RFFRMRKTE

bl

6. PROVIDING THE BEST QUALITY TO
CUSTOMERS

il

6.1.Supply Chain Management 6.1. it E R

Hua Yin International’s business relies heavily on the quality of
its suppliers and contractors. Thus, the Group selects suppliers
and contractors by adopting a halistic procurement and bidding
management approach. In order to select the ideal business
partners, the Group assesses them based on their safety
measures, including accidental injury insurance, machinery
safety, and safety certificate.

Additionally, to ensure the suppliers and contractors comply
with relevant social and environmental Laws and regulations,
the Group has implemented monitoring mechanisms. Also, the
Group regularly reviews the performance of the contractors to
minimise the operational risks.

6.2.Assuring Quality

One of the Group’s core values is "customer-focused." The
Group has established quality assurance mechanism to select
quality contractors and suppliers in order to ensure that service
quality aligns with the customers’ expectations.

The key to build customers’ trust and loyalty to the company is
to secure their data. Hua Yin’s employees are required to obtain
customers’ consent before collecting any personal information.
To avoid data leakage, the Group periodically reviews the
security of information systems. Furthermore, the code of
conduct also stipulates clearly that access to customers’
personal data shall only be restricted to authorised personnel.
The Group complied with all applicable data protection and
privacy laws and regulations during the Reporting Period.

6.2

FZERNEBREEHEERNAE
BHEE - At - ARERBEER
BARRE R R R B R R A
BE - RTERBENEERLYE - K
SEREMPIH R 2B EETTRT
i BEBIMEERR - L2
LEHEE -

BESN - REERHIE A AR B8 ST AR
LS  IRIDAENER - AEH
EEREEES - B AEETEH
e A RENRRAREEERR o

EERE

AEEOZLEEZ ——RIAERP
BEL] - AEBECETEEREH
B ERFEEARBMMER - X
ERRGEENAEPHHIE -

B EFPHARMNEEMEHER
REREMMNEIE - EFERNE
THRKSEEMEAE S ZATBAES
BEFHORE - RBREIBRE - &A%
BEMBEEEERAGNLEE - It
S ITRERIRRERE - RAEFH
BEABURERNIZEAR - REER
BEHNETHA B RBURRENE
FRBREDERAER
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6. PROVIDING THE BEST QUALITY TO
CUSTOMERS (continued)

6.3.Ensuring Integrity

Hua Yin has implemented comprehensive anti-corruption
policies and focuses on ethical business practices in showcasing
integrity. Any misbehaviour related to bribery and corruption
is intolerable. The Group prohibits employees from soliciting
or offering any benefits from/to third parties without the
management’s permission. To eliminate corruption, the Group
encourages employees to anonymously report suspicious
activities by establishing whistle-blowing channel. The Group
would take disciplinary and legal actions promptly in case of any
confirmed corruption cases.

The Group complied with the laws and regulations relating to
bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering, and no relevant
litigation was identified during the Reporting Period.

7. COMMUNITY CONTRIBUTION

As a property developer, the community of the neighbourhood
is an important part of Hua Yin’s business development. In order
to create positive values and maintain a close relationship with
the community, the Group encourages its employees to make
contributions to society, and care for others. As a result, the
Labour Union of the Group organises community activities and
volunteer services occasionally. The Group will continue to make a
contribution to the community, and fulfil its commitment to bearing
social responsibilities.

@ HUA YIN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED # Z BB #Z R B R A A
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6.3 FEAR =B 15

FZERERT2HNRBRBERR
AERRBRREARRAE - BT
RRETEBERMBRAENOTRT
R REER B TAREEBREA
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8. LOOKING FORWARD 8. REARR

In commitment to the vision of "Create a better life and bring dreams FARIAIEEGEE  EREE | NFE
to duration", improving ESG performances remains the Group’s top = FERANRITHELT &5
priority even amid the global pandemic. Hua Yin does not hesitate ESGEBMARAEEN G EEH - 2
to continue in seizing the opportunity of sustainable development, FEEBAMESHNENRE - #E
through strengthening stakeholder engagement. The Group also MEAFEEEOEE - NEBIT A
pledges to consistently deliver quality services to its customers, and SERERFPIRBEELRY  WEAEE
promote the idea of sustainability in daily operations. BREENBERERES -
9. SOCIAL PERFORMANCES INDICATOR 9. HERRERF
Total Workforce 239
BES
By Gender Male 135
ZIERIE D S
Female 104
z
By Employment Type Management 19
RERELE S EIEE
Senior 28
FE
Junior 192
NHRET
By Age Group 30 or below 43
LEHRMARE S 30BRFIAT
31-50 164
51 or above 32
515%AE
By Geographical Region Hong Kong 8
[ A E e
China 231
A
By contract Permanent 239
REEBEHNE S o
Part-time 0
Fe
Overall Turnover Rate Note 1) 27%

BEEESMALLRED

Note 1: Turnover is defined as employees who leave the company voluntarily 1 RAETFEEAAERBSERK - 7
or due to retirement, dismissal or other reasons. The turnover rate is B EAMREARBOET - HAXIR
calculated based on the following formula: BIATARNGE -

Turnover % = NELDY/(NEBY+NEEY)/2) 74 % 9%=NELDY/(NEBY+NEEY)/2)
Where: NELDY=F[Z BB A 21

NELDY = Number of Employees who Left During the Year NEBY=4#IH B T A

NEBY = Number of Employees at the Beginning of the Year NEEY=F# BT A

NEEY = Number of Employees at the End of the Year
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10.ESG CONTENT INDEX

SUBJECT AREA (A) ENVIRONMENT

energy indirect (Scope 2)
greenhouse gas emissions
(in tonnes) and, where
appropriate, intensity (e.g.
per unit of production
volume, per facility).

RER AP E (CANEGT
)R (wER) mE (AE
ES B - §EREAHE) -

Emission Control
4.2 ETARE IR AR E R EEHEL
2l

A RE
A1: EMISSIONS
Al B
General Information on: 4. Conserving the R7I-R7S
disclosure (@) the policies; and Environment
— P E (b) compliance with relevant | 4. {RiEIRIE
laws and regulations that
have a significant impact
on the issuer
(@) BER : &
(o) HEERER
Al.1 The types of emissions and The Group did not generate Not
respective emissions data. a significant amount of Applicable
PEriR A R ABRABEREUE o | air emission during the i A
Reporting Period. Therefore,
data on waste emission was
A not disclosed in the Report.
REBAEREHEREES
RERERBEN - BB
R EWRTER R RN
B BRI
A1.2 Direct (Scope 1) and 4.2 Energy Saving and GHG | P71-R.72
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10.ESG CONTENT INDEX (continued)

- HEERRR R (B)

SUBJECT AREA (A) ENVIRONMENT
A RR
A1: EMISSIONS
Al HER
A1.3 Total hazardous waste The Group did not generate Not
produced (in tonnes) and, hazardous waste during the Applicable
where appropriate, intensity Reporting Period. Therefore, i@ B
(e.g. per unit of production data on generation of
volume, per facility). hazardous waste was not
FTEEEEEEDRE (A disclosed in the Report.
WEETE) R (WER)BE (1 | AEBEREHRIEES
NEES BN - §IERE | BEEEY  BEWRBERA
g BRERBEREEEEDN
Bz -
Al.4 Total non-hazardous waste 4.4 \Waste Management P74
produced (in tonnes) and, 44 BEEYEIR
where appropriate, intensity
(e.g. per unit of production
volume, per facility).
A FrE+ BEREZEYEE (DA
WEETE) & (aniE A ) B (18
INGESEAMN - BIEKRER
) -
Al1.5 Description of measures 4.2 Energy Saving and GHG P71-P.72
to mitigate emissions and Emission Control
results achieved. 4.2 EHIBL IR TR = RS HE
HAUREBER 2 V5 1 K2 P P
TR -
A1.6 Description of how hazardous | 4.4 Waste Management P74
and non-hazardous wastes 4 ARSEYEIR
are handled, reduction
initiatives and results
achieved.
R ERIRE E N EEEEY)
% BUREEEHNEE
NPISARR °
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Rk - HERERRE 2
N
10.ESG CONTENT INDEX (continued) 10.81% - HEEARBRS| (H)

SUBJECT AREA (A) ENVIRONMENT
A RR
A2: USE OF RESOURCES
A2 : BREM
General Policies 4. Conserving the P71-P.73
disclosure R Environment
—RBEE 4. RERE
A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy | 4.2 Energy Saving and GHG P71-P.72
consumption by type (e.g. Emission Control
electricity, gas or oil) in total 4.2 BiRIRE IR TR = RESBEA
(KWh in ’000s) and intensity bl
(e.g. per unit of production
volume, per facility).
RERNEISONERE R, HE
ZoelR (A0 - REh) 485
E(UTETERGE) REZ
E (A G ES SR - FIER
MeEtHE) -
A2.2 Water consumption in total 4.3 Water Consumption P73
and intensity (e.g. per unit 43 FKE
of production volume, per
facility).
BEKEBREE (MAGES
By - BIERMEETH) ©
A2.3 Description of energy 4.2 Energy Saving and GHG P71-P.72
A2 efficiency initiatives and Emission Control
results achieved. 4.2 BiRREIR TR = RESHEM
e IR A e 5T 81 K Py P
SRR -
A2.4 Description of whether there | 4.3 Water Consumption P73
is any issue in sourcing water | 4.3 F7K=
that is fit for purpose, water
efficiency initiatives and
results achieved.
F AR EGER R ERI B E
IRIRE - ARRIRFRK
FTEIRPTISRCR -
A2.5 Total packaging material The Group did not use Not
used for finished products packaging material during the | Applicable
(in tonnes) and, if applicable, | Reporting Period. Therefore, | @A
with reference to per unit data on consumption of
produced. packaging materials was not
SR MATABEMERLE | dsclosed in the Report.
(ABEEHE) K (W@ER) 84 | AEEEREHEDREER
EBMEE - BEME - B2 ARAR
EREAHEBEMEAEN
iz o
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10.ESG CONTENT INDEX (continued)

SUBJECT AREA (A) ENVIRONMENT
A RIR

1035 - HEEEART RS (A)

A3: THE ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES
A3 RERRXRER

B1
by gender, age group and

geographical region.
R - Fhed R K2 &
DEEBMKLE -

Indicators
9. HEEEIER

The Group only disclosed
the overall turnover rate.
However, the Group plans
to disclose the remaining
information in the future.
REBEERBEERAE
BAREBEGF SN ARREER

General Policies 4. Conserving the P71-P.73
disclosure s Environment
—MRBE 4. RERIR
A3.1 Description of the significant | 4. Conserving the P71-P73
impacts of activities on the Environment
A3 environment and natural 4. (RERTE
resources and the actions
taken to manage them.
A EBRBERIT R RA
BRNERTENDHRINE
BEBATENTTE -
SUBJECT AREA (B) SOCIAL
B.it&
B1: EMPLOYMENT
B1: EfE
General Information on: 5. The Excellent Team P75-P.76
disclosure (a) the policies; and 5. BB
— LI PE (b) compliance
(@) BER : &
(o) HEEEREER -
B1.1 Total workforce by gender, 9. Social Performance P79
employment type, age group Indicators
and geographical region. 9. HEHEMEIER
R - EERDE - Fied
Al K3 B 3 rO e B 4R
B1.2 Employee turnover rate 9. Social Performance P79
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10.ESG CONTENT INDEX (continued)

A

N\

- HEERRNR R (B)

category.
R REERRESD -
Z 1R B FER K FI) TR o

Group plans to disclose the
information in the future.
NEE B AT RS IEIE
1B BAREEE SR AR
BABER -

SUBJECT AREA (B) SOCIAL
B.#&
B2: HEALTH AND SAFETY
B2 : @REZRE
General Information on: 5.2 Safeguarding Talents P76
disclosure (a) the policies; and 52 REAL
— R EE (b) compliance
@ BUEE: &
(o) HEEEREER -
B2.1 Number and rate of work- 5.2 Safeguarding Talents P76
related fatalities. 5.2 (REEAA
ETERREME TR AR
- b .
B2.2 Lost days due to work injury. | 5.2 Safeguarding Talents P76
AITIBEXTIERE - 5.2 REAS
B2.3 Description of occupational 5.2 Safeguarding Talents P76
health and safety measures 5.2 {R[E AA
adopted, how they are
implemented and monitored.
PR AN B S fE R R
IR ARERBERITRE
BHE e
B3: DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING
B3 : &R KRIEI
General Policies 5.3 Cultivating Talents P76
disclosure 1285 53BA AT
—RIFEE
B3.1 The percentage of 9. Social Performance P79
employees trained by gender Indicators
and employee category (e.g. | 9. HEE(TIEE
senior management, middle
management).
R R EERR (neRE
B3 BE FHRERES) SHH
XIlEEASL -
B3.2 The average training hours The Group currently does Not
completed per employee not report the training Applicable
by gender and employee information. However, the TE

@ HUA YIN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED # Z BB #Z R B R A A

\



10.ESG CONTENT INDEX (continued) 10.R1% - HEERREES| (M)

SUBJECT AREA (B) SOCIAL
B.#&

B4: LABOUR STANDARDS
B4 : % T %A

General Information on: 5. The Excellent Team P.75-P.76
disclosure (@) the policies; and 5. =lEK
— R E (b) compliance

(@ BUE: &

(o) HEEEREOER -
B4.1 Description of measures to 5.1 Acquiring Talents P75
review employment practices | 5.1 {3{& A A
to avoid child and forced

B4
labour.

Fst i T 1R AR B B A0 HE B A
WRET REHIZT -
B4.2 Description of steps taken 5.1 Acquiring Talents P75
to eliminate such practices 51BEBAS
when discovered.

R IR RIE IR HRR
B RABSUPTEREREY B -
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10.ESG CONTENT INDEX (continued)

SUBJECT AREA (B) SOCIAL
B.#&

B5: SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT
B5 : HEEER

suppliers, number of
suppliers where the practices
are being implemented, how
they are implemented and
monitored.

G S B ER 18

Bl - EBRITEBEEHI A
JEEE R - ARBBEHI
HITRERTE -

6.1 fEEERE

General Policies 6.1 Supply Chain P77
disclosure s Management
—MRBE 6.1 fIEGRE R
B5.1 Number of suppliers by The Group currently does Not
geographical region. not report the training Applicable
@ E D EREE o | information. TEmA
However, the Group plans
to disclose the information in
the future.
REE B A RIS R
B5 BE - BAREEGFEIRARK
WERBER -
B5.2 Description of practices 6.1 Supply Chain P77
relating to engaging Management
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10.ESG CONTENT INDEX (continued)

SUBJECT AREA (B) SOCIAL
B.#&

1035 - HEEEART RS (A)

B6: PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY
BEB6 : EmE(E

General Information on: 6.2 Assuring Quality P77

disclosure (@) the policies; and 6.2 B2 {RE

— R EE (b) compliance
(@) BER &
(o) HEEEREOER -

B6.1 Percentage of total products | Product responsibility is not a | Not
sold or shipped subject to material issue to the Group’s | Applicable
recalls for safety and health operation. Thus, it is not @A
reasons. disclosed.
EERCEXEREHTE | EmBEETIFAREEKS
ZEREFERBAMARKEY | NEEZHE - ALKRERE -
ERia

B6.2 Number of products and Product responsibility is not a | Not
service-related complaints material issue to the Group’s | Applicable
received and how they are operation. Thus, it is not TiEA
dealt with. disclosed.
EEMNERMRBORST | EmBEELIEAEEEKT

6 HEAREEIDE - WEREE - FUIAREHRE -

B6.3 Description of practices Product responsibility is not a | Not
relating to observing and material issue to the Group’s | Applicable
protecting intellectual operation. Thus, it is not i A
property rights. disclosed.
G ERRBANBEE | ERETWEASEEKD
BRATIER - WEZERE - FRERE -

B6.4 Description of quality 6.2 Assuring Quality P77
assurance process and recall | 6.2 & £1R%
procedures.
HE 2R TEBIENEME
Wi -

B6.5 Description of consumer 6.2 Assuring Quiality P77
data protection and privacy | 6.2 & £/F%&
policies, how they are
implemented and monitored.
U B & ERURE RFLE
TR - AR AERARIT M B R
I e
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10.ESG CONTENT INDEX (continued)

B.itE

SUBJECT AREA (B) SOCIAL

A

N\

- HEERRNR R (B)

EBEB7: RES

B7: ANTI-CORRUPTION

General
disclosure

—RIKEE

Information on:

(@) the policies; and
(b) compliance

(@) BER &

(o) HHEERENERS

6.3 Ensuring Integrity
6.3 FERMIE

P.78

B7

B7.1

Number of concluded legal
cases regarding corrupt
practices brought against
the issuer or its employees
during the reporting period
and the outcomes of the
cases.
REREAAE 1T A EE
BREWEHEENETHFA
RIFMEE RFRER o

6.3 Ensuring Integrity
6.3 HELRH(Z

P.78

B7.2

Description of preventive
measures and whistle-
blowing procedures, how
they are implemented and
monitored.

A rE b R B
ASAEREMAT MR TTE o

6.3 Ensuring Integrity
6.3 FELR I

P.78

[EHEBS : HERE

B8: COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

General
disclosure

—MRREE

Policies

KR

7. Community Contribution
7. HEER

P.78

B8

B8.1

Focus areas of contribution
(e.g. education,
environmental concerns,
labour needs, health, culture,
sport).

X EREE (WHE - BE
EFE BIFK @#E X

1t ®85) -

7. Community Contribution

7. HERERE

P.78

B8.2

Resources contributed (e.g.
money or time) to the focus
area.
ERISRABHAER(IE
el EE)

The Group currently does
not report the information of
the resources on community
investment. However, the
Group plans to disclose the
information in the future.
REEBRWARREHLRE
BB RER - BARKEE
EIRNARKBEBEEAER -

Not
Applicable
A

HUA YIN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED # Z BB #Z R B R A A

\



Independent Auditor’s Report
B 2 EEh RS

mazdars

To the shareholders of

Hua Yin International Holdings Limited

(formerly known as Ground International Development Limited)
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Hua Yin
International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) set out on pages 97 to 250, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March 2021, and
the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the financial position of the Group as at 31 March 2021, and
of its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the
“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Mazars CPA Limited

PERIR (F8) STMEEMERLAT
42nd Floor, Central Plaza,

18 Harbour Road,

Wanchai, Hong Kong
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Tel EE: (+852) 2909 5555
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B 2 EE RS

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSASs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements” section of
our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY RELATING TO GOING
CONCERN

We draw attention to the “Going concern basis” section in note 2.1 to
the consolidated financial statements concerning the adoption of the
going concern basis on which the consolidated financial statements
have been prepared. The Group incurred loss from continuing
operations of RMB515,199,000 for the year ended 31 March 2021 and,
as at that date, the Group had net current liabilities and net liabilities
of approximately RMB133,164,000 and RMB13,707,000 respectively.
These conditions, along with other matters as set forth in note 2.1 to the
consolidated financial statements, indicate that a material uncertainty
exists that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern and, therefore that it may be unable to realise its
assets and discharge its liabilities in the normal course of business. The
directors, having considered the measures to be taken by the Group as
disclosed in note 2.1 to the consolidated financial statements, are of the
opinion that the Group would be able to continue as a going concern.
Accordingly, the directors have prepared the consolidated financial
statements on a going concern basis. The consolidated financial
statements do not include any adjustments that would result from a
failure of achieving the measures. We consider appropriate disclosures
have been made in this respect. Our opinion is not modified in respect
of this matter.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements for the current year. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. In addition to the matter described in the
“Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern” section, we have
determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to
be communicated in our report.

Key Audit Matter

Net realisable value of properties under development and completed
properties held for sale

At 31 March 2021, the Group’s properties under development and
completed properties held for sale were stated at RMB950 million and
RMB262 million respectively, and they were carried at the lower of
cost and net realisable value. The determination of the net realisable
value is based on the management judgement and estimation or the
valuation performed by external independent valuer (the “Valuer”) which
is highly dependent on management’s judgement and estimates, such
as assumptions of the expected selling price and, if applicable, costs
to be incurred until completion and sale; or the valuation basis and
methodology used and the assumptions applied by the Valuer. The
assumptions adopted in the estimation and valuation are affected by
expectation of future market or economics conditions.

We identified the net realisable value of properties under development
and completed properties held for sale as a key audit matter because
of its significance to the consolidated financial statements and the
judgement and estimation involved in determination of the net realisable
value.

Related disclosures are included in notes 2.4, 3 and 18 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Our key procedures in relation to management’s assessment on net
realisable value of properties under development and completed
properties held for sale included:

e Checking the expected selling price to the prices of the Group’s
similar properties presold recently or adjacent properties sold or
subsequently sold on a sample basis;

e Understanding, evaluating and validating the assumption in
estimating the costs to be incurred until completion and sale on a
sample basis;

e [f the net realisable value is based on the valuation performed by the
Valuer,

(i) Reviewing the valuation report from the Valuer and discussing
with management and the Valuer to understand the valuation
basis and methodology used, and underlying assumptions
applied;

(i) Evaluating the objectivity, capabilities and competence of the
Valuer; and

(i) Obtaining, on a sample basis, the underlying data including

comparables of market transactions being used and assessing
the appropriateness.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information in the 2020/21 annual
report of the Company but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information, and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.

HifEs

ERNREESTHHMEEAER - HiEE8
RETER BRR-Z-%/ ——FERE
NEIE B - BT BIEGRE U BRI LR MW
ZEEN RS o

B GREMBHRROBRAL TREELME
B BRI EZEEMEREREMEN
Y EERE A ©

BAEBMERAMBHRRNEFZ - RFINE
TRMABEBEMES  EUBET  EEHEAM
EERBEFAMBRRARMEFZBRE
RATRENIE A FEEREEEUTFE
BEREHOBR - ERERAEHITHTIE -
MREFIRREMESFEEAHER - K
FBEREXFE - wEh | RIVREEMA
|

EENGRESYBBRRAARENE
(55

BERAERRAARBRBGASHEM
W& RS 2R R AR RHERDDR
BHRERMEEM AL MEREMBERE - A
HERR/EGREVHREMNERTFER
RERFF R R M BB ERERAF AR
ZHaR -

ERBUREMBERE EFRANE &
SEFBRLENES  WEERBRTHE
HEHEKEEANER  URERRFELEE
SEFTER  RIEFAEN EKEER
HFILEE  SREEBEROBERTE

ERZEGHY EAREZERTRER
B ESENMBHREBIE -

Annual Report 2020/21 F % @



Independent Auditor’s Report
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as
a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e (Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

e FEvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

@ HUA YIN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED # Z BB #Z R B R A A

N

RERT R B4R S M IR aRARNE
HEE

BMMBER  REHRAVBRREBRES T
TFE RN EGF SRR M S B E ARG
BEMAE - W ASRERRMERZEER
Feo HMEHZBERRELRSE - I
Sh - REREWEEMALE - FFITEHIZE
BM¥R &S AR FEAE M A TR L soRFE(E
AEE -

ERARBRERKFEORE - BTEERELRR
(BREREAETHES AR —EAHE
WAL R - SHRA DARRRFEER
51 - MRS ERHEMIERFLERLRA
RER BRA MIEMREMERBLRE MR
RETELEVEEORTE - Bl BE A 88 i A] AR
TEEX -

ERE(EBERELDETEZHBRES -
BFVERTEXHE R TERERE
J& o AT :

o BRIMFHERRAFFRERMEBES
MR FEERNEROAR - RET R
HITEZIEF AR ELRR - JANE
RARMEEWEZERE  (EREFAE
REERE - RAEERIBES RRRR - 18
- EBRER ERRL HEERA
#RES 2 £ Rt R BB RAKRFEME
HOBRERNER SN R EREHE
RSB ERFROER -

TR R AR R M ERIES]
EREZIEF  BREOLIESE
WEREHIN B RIERERER

ARt i
BE&H

o HEEFEMERASTERRMNBEMERE
SEHERT AR REN AR -

~



AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

e FEvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

e (Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities and business activities within the Group
to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law and regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Mazars CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 29 June 2021

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is:

Chan Wai Man

Practising Certificate number: P02487
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

e
For the year ended 31 March 2021 #HE—ZT—-_—F=A=+—HIFE
2021 2020
—E-—fF ZT-TF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
BisE AR¥T R ARETTT
Continuing operations BEQEEK
Revenue W= 5 153,336 242 685
Cost of sales and services 85 RARTER AR (237,845) (287,238)
Gross loss EB (84,509) (44,553)
Other income and gains H AU Je lezs 5 1,458 43,458
Selling and distribution expenses $HE R KA (9,022) (7,150)
Administrative expenses TRER (33,149) (50,363)
Finance costs E:- N 7 (105,132) (103,362)
Other expenses HipAk (232,676) (1,213,529)
Change in fair value of investment REMENDRBEZE
properties 15 (45,800) (189,015)
Change in fair value of derivative TESBMIENDREECE
financial instruments 25 (69) (4,976)
LOSS BEFORE TAX FROM BEREEBR BB
CONTINUING OPERATIONS 3] 6 (508,899) (1,569,490)
Income tax FTiS® 10 (6,300) 201,999
LOSS FOR THE YEAR FROM FEREXKZER
CONTINUING OPERATIONS B8 (515,199) (1,367,491)
Discontinued operations BRIEREEK
Loss for the year BRI EEBFA
from discontinued operations i 13 - (416,883)
Loss for the year FREE (515,199) (1,784,374)
Attributable to: BEfh
Owners of the parent SARIEEA
— continuing operations - BELEE (515,199) (1,367,491)
— discontinued operations - BRI ISR - (416,883)
(515,199) (1,784,374)
LOSS PER SHARE BARBEBEAEREER
ATTRIBUTABLE TO 5]
OWNERS OF THE PARENT 12
Basic BN
— for loss for the year - REREBEME RMB(8.94) cents RMB(33.84) cents
AR (8.94) % ARM(33.84) %
— for loss from continuing - R EREER 2 ER
operations mE RMB(8.94) cents RMB(25.93) cents
AR%(8.94) 5 ARM (25.93)
Diluted 8
— for loss for the year -BEREEME RMB(8.94) cents RMB(33.84) cents
AR (8.94) 7 AR (33.84) 7
— for loss from continuing - BB EER
operations ZEBEmE RMB(8.94) cents RMB(25.93) cents
AR (8.94) 7 AR (25.93)
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

A
For the year ended 31 March 2021 #HZEZE—ZT—-—F=A=+—HIFE ' !\
2021 2020
—EC-—F —E-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARET T
LOSS FOR THE YEAR FREE (515,199) (1,784,374)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME HfttZHEU A
Other comprehensive income that HEW A ER SR 180
are/may be reclassified to profit ZHMEEIHA -
or loss in subsequent periods:
Exchange differences on translation ~— HREGINEREL ZIEH =5
of foreign operations (36,362) (49,687)
Reclassification of exchange reserve RHENB R RIRFEH D8
upon disposal of subsidiaries ANGEE {5 1 - (42,334)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FREMEEUA - MBRFE
FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX (36,362) (92,021)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FRZMHW AL
FOR THE YEAR (551,561) (1,876,395)
Attributable to: P
Owners of the parent ISYNSIEZEPN
— continuing operations - R ETS (551,561) (1,459,512)
— discontinued operations - BRI EETS - (416,883)
(551,561) (1,876,395)

@ HUA YIN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED # Z BB #Z R B R A A




Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e IR R

As at 31 March 2021 R—Z——®#=A=+—H1

2021 2020
—E-—F ZETF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5T AR®F T ANEYSE
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment YIE - IS R 14 322 6,131
Investment properties WA 15 547,100 550,000
Goodwill EES - 4,999
Right-of-use assets EREEE 16 2,070 11,397
Lease receivables THERWGRIA 16 - 446
Deferred tax assets BIEFIIEEE 17 13,524 25,840
Total non-current assets kRBEELE 563,016 598,813
CURRENT ASSETS RENEE
Properties under development and BRAVERBELE
completed properties held for sale BRI 18 1,211,824 1,600,263
Trade and other receivables JEWE B IR
R H A EY IR 19 39,681 291,850
Lease receivables HER WA 16 = 2,970
Prepaid income tax TEf PSR 6,067 12,333
Derivative financial instruments PTEEmITA 25 22 96
Pledged and restricted deposits [T ER 20 8,715 19,009
Cash and cash equivalents ReRkReEEYD 20 117,938 30,500
1,384,247 1,957,021
Assets associated with disposal HEAFEHBELHEZ
group classified as held for sale HEHARBREZEE 30 334,018 -
Total current assets REBEEHAE 1,718,265 1,957,021
CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE
Trade and other payables BB ZHRM
R EH A FERTFRIR 21 507,210 647,505
Contract liabilities BHBE 22 227,910 234,526
Lease liabilities HEBE 16 12,246 27,577
Loans from a controlling shareholder ~ — A IERR IR E R 23 121,415 105,891
Bank and other borrowings RITREMER 24 448,497 695,497
Liability component of the Convertible R & (&5 & B 55
Bonds 25 72,879 -
Income tax payable FERTFR1SHE 67,595 74,872
1,457,752 1,785,868
Liabilities associated with HABEABEHEZ
disposal group classified HEHNBREZEE
as held for sale 30 393,677 -
Total current liabilities REIAELE 1,851,429 1,785,868
NET CURRENT (LIABILITIES) REN(BE) EEFE
ASSETS (133,164) 171,153
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

& A -
e AR R g
As at 31 March 2021 R=—ZE—_—&=F=+—H ! \\
2021 2020
—EC-—F —E-TF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
i AR®FT T AREFIT
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT X EHERABERE
LIABILITIES 429,852 769,966
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ERBAR
Liability component of the ABRESFEESS 25 - 73,155
Convertible Bonds
Bank and other borrowings RITREMEE 24 351,593 170,690
Deferred tax liabilities EEHIBRE 17 59,284 72,189
Lease liabilities HEaE 16 32,682 2,016
Total non-current liabilities FRBEEEEE 443,559 318,050
NET (LIABILITIES) ASSETS (BB EERE (13,707) 451,916
EQUITY R
Share capital &N 26 292,554 228,370
Convertible preference shares AT RRAE SE R 27 299,515 1,181,940
Equity component of the Convertible  RI#2 I EHE RS &0
Bonds 25 40,368 40,368
Reserves (e 29 (646,144) (998,762)
TOTAL EQUITY R (13,707) 451,916

These consolidated financial statements on pages 97 to 250 were ~ $B97TE250E 7 ZEFHFE M BHMEN T

approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 29 June = —F XA T AKESSIERRES
2021 and signed on its behalf by: %o WHNATATREEE
Cui Xintong Li Junjie
EyE 208
Director Director
BE BF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

REERBER

For the year ended 31 March 2021 HZE—-Z—

== B =7 EllesEEs

Reserves
i
Equity
component
Convertble ~~ of the Share
Share  preference Convertble ~ Share  Exchange Contributed ~ option Other  Statutory ~ Retained Total
captdl  shares  Bonds premum  reseve  suplus  reseve  reseves  resenve  eamings  Subdotdl  equity
T8 ThRES
ke iR cEEHA ROER NEEE 902K BRERE HbRh ieRE REEM 0 ERSE
RMB000 RMBOOO RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'OO0 RMB'O00 RMB'OO0 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB0OO RMB'000 RMB000
ARETT ARETL ARETRL ARETRL ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETT ARETT ARETL ARETL
(Note 26)  (Note27) ~ (Note 25) (Note 29()) (Note 29(i)) (Note29(i) (Note 29()) (Note29() (Note 29(i)
(kon) (Wskor) (Hkos) (Wkoon) (Psroom) (Wiskooq) (Wizoon)) (soon) (W20
At 1 Apr 2019 RZE-NELA-A 28370 1181940 40368 3535130 33400 184684 24558 (3246631) 65871 219612 877,633 2328311
Loss for the year EnEE - - - - - - - - - (1784374 (1,784,374) (1,784,374
Other comprehensive EREBRENA -
income for the year:
Tensferupondisposalof ~ NHEHBARBES
subsidiaries - - - - - - - 81 - 81t - -
Bxchange diferences arisng 5N ERE A Z B EH
from foreign operations - - - - (49,687) - - - - - (49687) (49687
Redassfication of exchange ~ RENBATREN
reserve upon disposal of SENERE
subsidiaries - - - - (423 - - - - - (A3 (4033
Total comprehensive Eh2EHNEE
income for the year - - - - (902 - - 8159 - (1776223 (1,876,399) (1,876,3%)
Transaction with owners: EEEARS:
Contribution and distoutions ~ ¥ERAR
Trnlerto statutory resenve. EAR TR - - - - - - - -3 3 - -
Lapsefforeture of share options - BRIER 1,/ 24 - - - - - -8 - -3 - -
- - - - - - 388 - 230 14 - -
At 31 March 2020 RZE-FF=A=1-A 28310 1181940 40368 3535130  (68621) 184684 20716 (3263782 68241 (1495139 (998762) 451,916

Annual Report 2020/21 44 @



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

GAEREHE

“§
For the year ended 31 March 2021 B ZE == —4=F=—+—HIL4FE \«
Reserves
il
Equity
component
Convertible of the Share
Share preference Convertible Share  Exchange Contributed option Other ~ Statutory  Retained Total
capital  shares Bonds  premium  reserve  surplus  reserve  reserves  reserve  earnings  Sub-total equity
TaR TRRES R Bi
kx  BRR Z2BE®S ROEE MERE AAEH R 2BREE iERE  REEA it ]
RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
AR¥TR ARMTR ARMTR ARBTR ARBTR ARNTR ARMTR ARMTR ARBTR ARBTR ARMTR ARMTR
(Note 26) ~ (Note27)  (Note25) (Note29 (i) (Note 29 (ii)) (Note 29 (iil) (Note 29 (iv)) (Note 29 (v)) (Note 29 (vi)
(W26)  (Witor)  (Witos) (Wiskoof) (Wskoofiy) (MEtoofi) (MEtoofv) (WEE2o()) (KFE2oni))
At 1 Apri 2020 RZE-FERA-A 28310 1181940 40368 3535130  (58,621) 184684 20716 (3253,782) 68241 (1495,139) (998762 451916
Loss for the year FRER - - - - - - - - - (15199 (515199) (515,1%9)
Other comprehensive income ~ ERE2EMA
for the year
Exchenge diferences arisng BN EBEEZEREE
from foreign operations - - - - (36,362 - - - - - (6362 (36,362
Total comprehensive ER2ENNEE
income for the year - - - - (36,362 - - - - (515,199)  (551,561)  (551,961)
Transaction with owners: BEEARS:
Contioution and distoutions {2 R A%
Issuance of new orcinary RERGEELTHLER
shares under share
placement 12217 - - 13661 - - - - - - 361 8598
Shares issued upon comversion - AT EEREHERE TR
of convertible preference
shares 5,007 (862425) - 830518 - - - - - - 830518 -
Lapse/foreturs of share options BIRIE /2 - - - - - - 93) - - ® - -
Tensfertostatutoryresere. ~ BAZETHE - - - - - - - - 2804 2804 - -
64,184 (882,425) - 904179 - - (99) - 2,804 @m) 94119 8598
At 31 March 2021 R-F--F=f=1-A 202554 200515 40368 4430318 (04983 184684 20628 (3253782) 71,045 (2013,049)  (646,144) (13,707

@ HUA YIN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED # Z BB #Z R B R A A



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

MERTRER

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #HE—ZT—-_—F=A=+—HIFE
2021 2020
—E-—fF ZETF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B EE ARET ARKETTT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES R
Loss before tax FRAAIEE
— from continuing operations - BEREEK (508,899) (1,569,490)
— from discontinued operations - BRIEREET
(note 13) (PfFzE13) - (375,630)
Adjustments for: FTYFEEDFE
Finance costs BERA 7 105,132 103,362
Bank and other interest income IRIT R H AL F B ULA (1) (3,194)
Write-down of properties under WOR R Y3 RIS E
development and completed HEBE AR
properties held for sale 6 225,552 890,365
Loss on derecognition of right-of-use 42 IFHER{E AEEE
assets ZEia 16 - 16,464
Impairment on trade and other FEW B 5 BR 5% Ie Bt
receivables FENGRIBRE 14,858 598,127
Impairment on goodwill 27 RE 6 4,999 =
Impairment on property, W% - R NERE
plant and equipment ZRE 6 3,651 -
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMB ARz M - (38,478)
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HEMB AR ZEE - 14,627
Change in fair value of investment REMEA R BEES)
properties 15 45,800 189,015
Change in fair value of derivative TTEEMIAERARERE
financial instruments = 25 69 4,976
Depreciation e 11,228 24,552
(97,611) (145,304)
(Increase)/decrease in properties under ZEEFRYELIFEHE
development and completed BEREE (380) R
properties held for sale (46,339) 85,950
Decrease/(increase) in trade and other  FEUK 2 5 B 3k Iz E b fE UL
receivables IR, () 7,540 (7,867)
Decrease in lease receivable THE W FRIE R, > 3,416 1,738
(Decrease) /increase in trade and JERTE SRR R M FE(TS
other payables FIECRA) (113,266) 72,727
Decrease in pledged and 2R KPR AR OR
restricted deposits 6,709 7,892
Increase/(decrease) in contract liabilites & #)&&1E 0,7 G 2>) 97,097 (33,380)
Cash used in operations BEMAZAE (142,454) (18,244)
Interest received EHFIE 1 3,194
Interest paid BFE (49,738) (86,121)
Tax paid: EARHIE
— The People’s Republic of China - BATHRE AR LM
(the “PRC”) corporate income ([HFE ) EEME/H
tax paid (6,300) (1,483)
- PRC land appreciation tax paid - BB LR ER (3,086) (2,780)
Net cash flows used KRR RE
in operating activities ME S (201,577) (105,434)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

n/j_\ Iﬁlﬁlﬂbi’%‘:{

2 3
For the year ended 31 March 2021 #HZEZE—ZT—-—F=A=+—HIFE \ \
2021 2020
—B-—-F —E-FTF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
FaE ARET ARET T
INVESTING ACTIVITIES RETH
Purchases of items of property, plant BB E ¥ - #E LR EEE
and equipment (63) (1,193)
Proceeds from disposal of items of HEYE - KB NREEE
property, plant and equipment Z B3R - 97
Net cash inflow from disposals HEMBAR RS
of subsidiaries MAEER 122,000 21,224
Net cash flows from investing "EEE
activities ZBEREFR 121,937 20,128
FINANCING ACTIVITIES MEEE
Proceeds from shares issued under  RIEAR(DBCE TR
share placement Z TS R0R 85,938 -
Proceeds from new bank and other ~ ¥TIZRIT R HMEE
borrowings ZFT1S5RIE 341,000 259,032
Repayment of bank and other BEERITREMEE
borrowings (356,097) (101,334)
New loans from a controlling PERR R BRI B X
shareholder 183,994 12,293
Repayment of a controlling EEERRRER
shareholder’s loan (58,330) (60,258)
Payment on lease liabilities HEBBEN® (28,532) (24,409)
Net cash flows from financing activities EbE REIFTS 2R e R 2 F5E 167,973 85,324
NET INCREASE IN CASH RERRESEY /M
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FHE 88,333 18
Cash and cash equivalents at the FUBReMREEED
beginning of the year 30,500 30,064
Effect of foreign exchange rate EREB LT
changes, net (499) 418
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS HRzEESREREESZEY
AT THE END OF THE YEAR 20 118,334 30,500
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR M
For the year ended 31 March 2021 #HE—ZT—-_—F=A=+—HIFE

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. RAAREEESR

Hua Yin International Holdings Limited (the “Company”, together
with its subsidiaries referred to as the “Group”), is a limited liability
company incorporated in Bermuda. The registered office of the
Company is located at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton
HM11, Bermuda and its shares are listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

Following the passing of the special resolution approving the
Proposed Change of Company Name by the Shareholders at the
Special General Meeting held on 8 February 2021, the name of the
Company was changed from Ground International Development
Limited to Hua Yin International Holdings Limited with effect from 10
February 2021.

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Company was principally
engaged in investment holding and the Group was principally
engaged in property development and management, including
planning, designing, budgeting, licensing, contract tendering and
contract administration and property investment.

Information about subsidiaries

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31 March

Hua Yin International Holdings Limited
EZEBERERAB(ARQA] - &
REWBARGHEAEE]) ARERE
EFMEKZ 2 BR AT o RAR 2 M
% 25 7 (i 1 Clarendon House, 2 Church
Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda @
BOREBHERZMBR AR ([BR
Frl) ER £ o

BREARA—_E-_—F_ANBETIZRE
RIS LmBERABRUIERER
ERAREEE  ARRZAHARER
HRERBR AR ELAES BEER
ERAT BZE-_—F_-A+H#E4
R o

HE"Z-_—F="A=+t—HILFE"
AR ETEREREZERMASE T E
EYEBRRNEE (BEME - R
BE - EE - ANBEEREHNEIEARL
MERE) -

TENBEARZER

R-ZE-_—F=A=+—H8  ARFF*

2021 are as follows: ZWBARIZFFBERT -
Place of
incorporation/
registration and
business; and legal Issued ordinary Percentage of
form if established share/registered equity attributable to the
Name in the PRC capital Company Principal activities
FMRL/ BER
EENE
R (A E BRTLER/ KRR
#8 ) ERR R R BEEAL TEED
Direct Indirect
E# of
Ground Holdings Limited British Virgin US$100 100% - Investment holding
Islands (‘BVI") 100%7T RERER
EERARKES
([EEARRES])
Ka Yun Investments Limited (Note) BVI US$10,001 - 100% Investment holding
REREBRAR (M) EERARES 10,001%7T RERER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R AR A

For the year ended 31 March 2021 BE—Z-——F=A=+—HItFE k
1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. REIREEER (E)
(Continued)
Information about subsidiaries (Continued) EBEMBARZER (&)
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31 March RZE-Z—F=A=+—H ARQR=E
2021 are as follows: (Continued) EMBRRIZFHBAOT : (&)
Place of
incorporation/
registration and
business; and legal Issued ordinary Percentage of
form if established share/registered equity attributable to the
Name in the PRC capital Company Principal activities
FMRL/ BER
EEBY
R (JIRSE BRITEER/ KRR S
#8 i) EEKR R BEADL TEEH
Direct Indirect
B# 5f
Jilin Ground Real Estate The PRC, wholly RMB134,000,000 - 100% Property development
Company Limited* domestically AR#134,000,000 7T business
EMEEREERAR owned enterprise MEBRED

E - ARELR

Jiin Znujia Real Estate The PRC, wholly RMB134,000,000 - 100% Property development
Development Company Limited* domestically AR#134,000,000 7T business
ERMEREHEREERAR owned enterprise NEBEED

E @aRELE

Baishan Ground Real Estate The PRC, wholly RMB50,000,000 - 100% Property development
Development Company Limited* domestically AR#50,000,000 7T business
BLTEERSEREERAR owned enterprise MERREB

hE - AREDE

VYanji Huize Real Estate The PRC, wholly RMB50,000,000 - 100% Property development
Development Company Limited* domestically AR®50,000,0007C business
EEMEERHEREERAR owned enterprise MEBRER

E - ARELER

Fusong Ground Real Estate The PRC, wholly RMB110,000,000 - 100% Property development
Development Company Limited* domestically AR®110,000,000 7T business
BLEREUEREERAR owned enterprise NEBEEY

E @RELE
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(Continued)

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31 March

2021 are as follows: (Continued)

1. RAAREEER (&)

TENBEAR2ER (&)

R-ZEBE-_—F=A=+—H ARQR=E
EMBARIZFEBAT : (B)

Place of
incorporation/
registration and
business; and legal Issued ordinary Percentage of
form if established share/registered equity attributable to the
Name in the PRC capital Company Principal activities
FRAL LR
e
R (AFE BRIZER/ NG i3
£ ) EEFR ZRBRE EREESL TEEE
Direct Indirect
BB EF:
Fusong Changbaishan Ground Tourism The PRC, wholly RMB10,000,000 - 100% Tourism development and
Development Company Limited* domestically AK®10,000,0007C management business
BINRAILEEREREERAR owned enterprise REERRERER
hE - ARERE
Jilin Wan Sheng Property Development The PRC, wholly RMB269,000,000 - 100% Property development
Company Limited (“Wan Sheng’)* foreign-owned AR 269,000,0007T business
AT EARHEREERAR (BT ]) enterprise LESE S
R NEBERE
Baishan Ground Business The PRC, wholly RMB500,000 - 100% Real estate rental
Management Company Limited* domestically AR®500,0007C management
BT EEEEERARAT owned enterprise FHERKER
TR ANERE
Jilin Ground Property Services The PRC, wholly RMB3,000,000 - 100% Real estate property
Company Limited* domestically AR®3,000,0007 management
ENTEENERBERAR owned enterprise BHENEER
hE - ARERE
Jilin Province Xisheng Real Estate The PRC, wholly RMB30,000,000 - 100% Property development
Development Limited* domestically AR#30,000,000 7T business
EMEREENEREERAR owned enterprise NERRER

*

For identification purpose only

E @aRELE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR M

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #HZEZE—ZT—-—F=A=+—HIFE

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(Continued)
Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31 March
2021 are as follows: (Continued)

Note: Pursuant to a sale and purchase agreement (as amended by a
supplemental agreement dated 3 July 2015, a second supplementary
agreement dated 22 December 2015 and an extension letter dated
31 March 2016) dated 26 May 2015 entered into among Frontier
Power Investments Limited (“Frontier Power”, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company), Ka Yik Investments Limited (“Ka Yik”,
a company wholly owned by Ms. Cui at those dates) and Ms. Cui,
Frontier Power agreed to acquire and Ka Yik agreed to sell the
entire equity interest in Ka Yun Investments Limited (“Ka Yun”) for a
consideration of HK$4,650 million (the “Ka Yun Acquisition”). The Ka
Yun Acquisition was completed on 26 July 2016.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the
opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for the year or
formed a substantial portion of the total assets of the Group. To give
details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors,
result in particulars of excessive length.

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”), which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting principles generally accepted
in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong).
These consolidated financial statements also comply with the
applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”). They
have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except
for investment properties and derivative financial instruments which
have been measured at fair value. These consolidated financial
statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB”) and all values are
rounded to the nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.

@ HUA YIN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED # Z BB #Z R B R A A

. ARREEER (&

TEMEAR2ER (&)

RZBE-_—F=A=+—H ' KQAF=E
ZMBARZFERAT : (B)

Bff5E © R4 Frontier Power Investments Limited
([Frontier Power] » A"NA G2 2 &M &
AR REBEREARAA(RE]
ERTRZEBHME2ERAZAA)
RELZLTHIVAAE-T—HFH
A+ BzEER#(ERE A=
T—RAFLA=ZBz@ExRE B
RZE-RAF+TZAZ+TZHZEZ=
DHxERERARAE=-S— X FE=A
=+—BZEERHFTIEET) + Frontier
Power IZWEMRZRAELERH
FEBRAR(TRE]) 2250 0%E -
RAE /54,650,000,00078 7T ([ RE U
FHE]) REUBESER =T —F
+AZ+NBEEK -

ERBEARRZHBEBRAT  BEFEAR
ZEMBRARUAFEXEATEDE
IBAAREREEERRND - EFR
REHREGBHBRRZFHBHESRIE
BRILEK e

21 RBE %

RIEEMBRRDREBLEEIMAE
(IEEGEIAE]) B 2B BMBR
SR (TEBMBREER]) - toehE
EREMETEMBREEN FEE
AAEA(EE G LR kg &E
EREERAZEHRAUREFBATRD (F
BIEDIF 622F) ZWERTE MRS © A&
RAEMBHRERTARBNABRMES L
mARA (T EMRAN) Z ERBFERZ
BRE - BRAABEFEZREVER
TEERT A REERA M BREE
THLARE SE BRANE REt B2 E - & BT
BEUARE (TARK] 25 B5E
BRI ESRYERBRERZO T
o



2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

Going concern basis

The Group incurred a loss of approximately RMB515,199,000 for the
year ended 31 March 2021 (31 March 2020: RMB1,367,491,000)
and as of that date, the Group had net current liabilities and net
liabilities of approximately RMB133,164,000 and RMB13,707,000
respectively. These conditions indicate the existence of a material
uncertainty which may cast significant doubt about the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern and, therefore, the Group
may be unable to realise its assets and discharge its liabilities in
the normal course of business. Notwithstanding the aforesaid
conditions, the consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on a going concern basis on the assumption that the
Group is able to operate as a going concern for the foreseeable
future. In the opinion of the directors, the Group can meet its
financial obligations as and when they fall due within the next
twelve months, after taking into consideration of the measures and
arrangements made by the Group as detailed below:

(i) the Group is in negotiation with have financial institutions and
other lenders for the renewals of the Group’s short-term bank
and other borrowings that expired or upon expiry and obtaining
new borrowings; and expected to be able to renew existing
borrowings and obtain new bank borrowings subsequent to the
date of reporting period;

(i) the Group is expected to generate adequate cash flows to
maintain its operations;

the disposal of the entire equity interests in B2 E LRI DA
R~ 7] (Ground Real Estate Group Company Limited*, “Ground
Real Estate”) and its subsidiaries which was completed in June
2021;

i

=

(iv) the proposed possible divestment of the Fusong Property
Project (as defined in note 18) in the near future. The Group’s
management has commenced ongoing discussions with the
Fusong Government (as defined in note 18) and potential buyers
in respect of the possible divestment;

(v) the Group is expected to obtain continuous financial support
from the Group’s controlling shareholder, and the controlling
shareholder has confirmed that it will not demand the Group
for repayment of the loans from controlling shareholder within
the next twelve months should the Group not be in the financial
position to make such repayment; and

(vi

=

the Group is currently under negotiation with Ka Yik for the
settlement arrangement of the Convertible Bonds and Ka Yik
has preliminarily agreed to fully convert on or before the maturity
date.

21 RBEXE (48)

RFEREEE

HE_T-_—F=-A=+—HIL&E"
AEEEEEEHARES15199,000
T(ZE_FTF=ZA=+—H: AR¥
1,367,491,0007T) - REIA - AEEH
ERDBEFERAREFESINAR
#133,164,000 7T & A R 13,707,000
T ZEMARBECSSEAEE R
BIRERENBENFEZERNTEER
= At AEESREN—REHR
BAPSREEERBREAE BED
B/ERMRR  REVBRREERRFEL
EEERR  WERIANEEEHNAR
HRFFELE - I8ERAEEREEZ
SHERLZHR  BEERA - AEEAR
ARTZEARNBITEMBES - Fia
R

() AEBEBRESREEREMETH
RN B MR BB A EE 2 EHIR
TR EA B EE TR N ERSHE
8 YWIRFARHRERRERERRE
FRITIEE ¢

(iy AEEBHEEERIRS RS NS
FHHEE

(i) HEBEEMEEERNBER AT ([E
SEME |) REB AR HEED R
TECFRAEK

FENIREEEREERR OF
ERMEE18) - AEEEIEEC HHE
MBUT (E&ERKE18) MBEER
FLAIRER SR FIFHER AT

(iv

=

(v) NEBEEHESASEERBRNE
BUWH R - MEERBIRCHER - &
AEEPBRATEMBEERER
R EBRERA G ERAEER AR
T EAREEERBERER : &

(vi) Z< SR8 IE 7 B 5K R i 7 P HRARE 75 2
BEZY - MRFVNTZRBNEIHA
2 IR BB A A E S
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e T ERRMEE g
For the year ended 31 March 2021 #Z_—_Z—-—4F=A=+—HItFE v \

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued) 2.1 iR E % (58)

Going concern basis (Continued)

In respect of the disposal of Ground Real Estate, T #& g FIEEH
AT (Jiin Rongli Investment Company Limited*) and & 454 &4
A AR AT (Jiin Rongyu Investment Company Limited®), indirect
wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company entered into a share
transfer agreement on 26 February 2021 and a supplementary
agreement on 4 June 2021 with REEEER CRY) AR A A
(Zhongmao Business Consulting (Shenzhen) Company Limited*,
“Zhongmao Business Consulting”) and &L= EEGRAF]
(Jilin Province Hongjing Industry Company Limited*, “Jilin Hongjing”),
both are connected person to the Group (collectively known as the
“Purchasers”), agreed to transfer 85% and 15% equity interests in
Ground Real Estate to Zhongmao Business Consulting and Jilin
Hongjing respectively at a total consideration of RMB1. As at 31
March 2021, the net current liabilities and net liabilities of Ground
Real Estate and its subsidiaries were approximately RMB58,389,000
and RMB59,659,000 respectively.

The directors are of their opinion that, after the disposals of Ground
Real Estate, the financial position of the Group would then be
improved.

The directors have prepared a cash flow forecast covering a period
up to 30 September 2022 on the basis that the disposal of the
entire equity interests of Ground Real Estate and negotiation with
financial institutions for the renewals of the Group’s borrowing and
credit facilities would be successful, and are satisfied that the Group
will have sufficient working capital to meet its financial obligations
as and when they fall due within the twelve months from 31 March
2021.

@ HUA YIN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED # Z BB #Z R B R A A

FREEEE(H)

REEEZHEMS - SMERFIRE
BRATREMNERBIREBRAR (3T
AARNREEE2ENBAR) ER=ZE
TR+ ANHF DR EE
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[BEA DI fRmE - KRAEShIEE
EZ=IMhEE 2 85% IRIER 15% IRETHE
AFEEREMNLE  BRERARKEA
TR TE-_—FZA=+—H EZ
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2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

Going concern basis (Continued)

In light of the measures and arrangements implemented to date,
the directors of the Company are of the opinion that the Group has
sufficient financial resources to satisfy its working capital and other
financial obligations for the next twelve months after having taken
into account the Group’s projected cash flows, current financial
resources and capital expenditure requirements with respect to
the development of its business. Accordingly, the directors of the
Company are of the view that it is appropriate to prepare these
consolidated financial statements on a going concern basis.

Notwithstanding the above, significant uncertainties exist as to
whether the directors of the Company will be able to achieve its
plans and measures as described above. Whether the Group will
be able to continue as a going concern would depend upon the
Group’s ability to generate adequate financing and operating cash
flows in the near future and obtain the continuous financial support
from its controlling shareholder.

Should the Group be unable to continue to operate as a going
concern, adjustments would have to be made to restate the values
of assets to their estimated recoverable amounts, to provide further
liabilities that might arise and to reclassify non-current assets
and non-current liabilities as current assets and current liabilities
respectively. The effects of these potential adjustments have not
been reflected in the consolidated financial statements.

*

The official name is in Chinese and the English name is translated for
identification purpose.

21 RBEXE (48)

FREEEE ()

ENBERCERRZERERLZY - BEE
AAKEZEARESR BRVEER
AREEBERNEAFIFERR K
RAEERR AKEABRHYE
BRABNRART —_EAAZEEES
REMPBEL - Fit - ARREER
5 BEBREEERENEEAMH
BRRBBEEZR -

BELEXFL RAREFREREKT)
BERE EXAAeE I RERDFEE
ARTHEEMN - AEBERSFELZE KR
IRINAEERNTEIRREL RHRE K
REBFSNENRT - AREGSHER
PRV FF B S IE

A EEZEERBLE  RAIIED
HAENEINEEBEZHEBEAIKE S
B RARELRNE-SRBELEE
KiIERBEERIERBBED I EH
DERRBEERRDAE - ZFE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #HZEZE—ZT—-—F=A=+—HIFE

2.1BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries. A subsidiary is an
entity (including a structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled
by the Company. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or
has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee
and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
investee (i.e. existing rights that give the Group the current ability to
direct the relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority
of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all
relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power
over an investee, including:

(@) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the
investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the
same reporting year as the Company, using consistent accounting
policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the
date on which the Group obtains control, and continue to be
consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the parent and to the non-controlling
interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a
deficit balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between members
of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or
more of the three elements of control described above. A change
in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is
accounted for as an equity transaction.
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2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i) the
assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, and (i) the
carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and recognises (i)
the fair value of the consideration received, (i) the fair value of any
investment retained and (i) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit
or loss. The Group’s share of components previously recognised
in other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss or
retained earnings, as appropriate, on the same basis as would be
required if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities. Any investment retained in the former subsidiary and any
amounts owed by or to the former subsidiary are accounted for as a
financial asset, associate, joint venture or others as appropriate from
the date when control is lost.

22CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

DISCLOSURES

The Group has applied, for the first time, the following new/revised
HKFRSs that are relevant to the Group:
Amendments to HKASs 1 and 8 Definition of Material

Amendments to HKAS 39,
HKFRSs 7 and 9

Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform — Phase 1

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business

Amendments to HKASs 1 and 8: Definition of
Material

The amendments clarify the definition of material and align the
definition used across HKFRSs.

The adoption of the amendments does not have any significant
impact on the consolidated financial statements.
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22CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 39, HKFRSs 7 and 9: Interest
Rate Benchmark Reform - Phase 1

The amendments modify some specific hedge accounting
requirements to provide relief from potential effects of the
uncertainties caused by interest rate benchmark reform (the market-
wide reform of an interest rate benchmark, including the replacement
of an interest rate benchmark with an alternative benchmark). In
addition, the amendments require companies to provide additional
information to investors about their hedging relationships which are
directly affected by these uncertainties.

The adoption of the amendments does not have any significant
impact on the consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 3: Definition of a Business

The amendments, among others, revise the definition of a business
and include new guidance to evaluate whether an acquired process
is substantive.

The adoption of the amendments does not have any significant
impact on the consolidated financial statements.
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2.3ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG 230 MEMBEAREMZEBITIE
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS WE AR

RZFFEVBERRERETIREY
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MR TSR] RET BB BREE

At the date of authorisation of these consolidated financial
statements, the HKICPA has issued the following new/revised
HKFRSs that are not yet effective for the current year relevant to the
Group which the Group has not early adopted.

Bl

Amendments to HKAS 39, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform B gER FREERE
HKFRSs 4, 7, 9 and 16 —Phase 2 £30% - BEME - FREER
WRELEREL 7
9K 165%.21ER]
Amendments to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent EAIBRELER —E-—%XRA
Concessions Beyond F16F 2 ER] =t+H%&EH

30 June 2021 2

COVID-19 7%
b2

Amendments to HKAS 16 Proceeds before Intended Use 2 BREGIERE 165 BTRRAIZ
pd 1) FrigsRIEe
Amendments to HKAS 37 Cost of Fulfiling a Contract 2 BB EFEREITR BOAHIKARS
ZIERT
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the BB HmELR BLSIESR 2 fRi
Conceptual Framework @ FE 3R 1EET
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs  2018-2020 Cycle ° BRI B ELR —E-N\F§=&
02 FE ZECTEERS
Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as ERGHENE1R AEIEARD
Current or Non-current 4 a1 HIEREN
Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting Policies * HEGENF 1% SHERZER:
pd -+
Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting FRGHENFST g ER"
Estimates * ZAER]
Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets FRGHENF 125 ARAE-BEXBEZ
and Liabilities arising from ZIER] R 52 EH
a Single Transaction * BERIE

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets EBBTEIRE %R HEEREBE AT
and HKAS 28 between an Investor and its F10WEB DR FEECEEE
Associate or Joint Venture BII5 2855 HESCTABES
pa H)

' Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021

TORIEC—F A AR MR ZFE

BRI AR

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2021 2 AT —FMA—BRERBZFE
BRI AR

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022 8 RITZZF—-A—HBIZEFRBZFE
BRI AR

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 ¢ R =F-A—BREFRBZFE
BRI AR

5 The effective date to be determined 5 (HREEEAEM A H

B RPN ARRBMERME R EERT
ARV BRERNG I EHARE XA

The directors do not anticipate that the adoption of the new/revised
HKFRSs in future periods will have any material impact on the

results of the Group.
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24T ESTT BRI E
POLICIES
Business combinations and goodwill E¥BepREE

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the acquisition
date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition date fair values of
assets transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group to
the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued
by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. For each
business combination, the Group elects whether to measure the
non-controlling interests in the acquiree that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of net
assets in the event of liquidation at fair value or at the proportionate
share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other components
of non-controlling interests are measured at fair value. Acquisition-
related costs are expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and
designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic
circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date.
This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host
contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously
held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair value
and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss or other
comprehensive income where appropriate.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured
at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or
loss. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the
aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount recognised
for non-controlling interests and any fair value of the Group’s
previously held equity interests in the acquiree over the identifiable
net assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this
consideration and other items is lower than the fair value of the net
assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment, recognised in
profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for impairment,
annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. The Group
performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31 March. For
the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business
combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the
Group’s cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating units,
that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group are
assigned to those units or group of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units), to which
the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment
loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or
group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation within
that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation
disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the operation when
determining the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of in
these circumstances is measured based on the relative values of the
operation disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit
retained.

For the business combination under common control, the financial
statements of the Group and the acquired subsidiaries have been
combined, as if the Group acquired such subsidiaries from the
beginning of the earliest financial period that common control
existed. The net assets of the Group and the acquired subsidiaries
are combined using the existing book values from the controlling
party’s perspective. No amount is recognised in consideration for
goodwill or excess of the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the
acquired subsidiaries’ identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities over the cost of acquisition at the time of common control
combination. The difference between the consideration and the
book value of the acquired subsidiaries at the time of common
control combination is deducted in the reserves of the Group.
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24X EETTBREE (&)

POLICIES (Continued)
Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties and derivative
financial instruments at fair value at the end of each reporting period.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. Fair value measurement is
based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or
transfer the liability takes place either in the principal market for the
asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal or the
most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group. The
fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions
that market participants would use when pricing the asset or
liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best
interest.

Fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account
a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by
using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best
use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data is available to measure
fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed
in the consolidated financial statements are categorised within the
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:
Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level2 - based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is observable, either directly or
indirectly

Level 3 - based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Fair value measurement (Continued)

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the consolidated
financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of
each reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets other than
goodwill

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than inventories,
financial assets and investment properties), the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher
of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use and its fair value
less costs of disposal, and is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets, in
which case the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an
asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. An impairment loss is charged to the statement of profit or
loss in the period in which it arises, unless the asset is carried at a
revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss is accounted for
in accordance with the relevant accounting policy for that revalued
asset.
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24X EETTBREE (&)

POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets other than
goodwill (Continued)

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to
whether there is an indication that previously recognised impairment
losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such an
indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously
recognised impairment loss of an asset other than goodwill is
reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates used
to determine the recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an
amount higher than the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of
such an impairment loss is credited to the statement of profit or
loss in the period in which it arises, unless the asset is carried at a
revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment loss
is accounted for in accordance with the relevant accounting policy
for that revalued asset.

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s family
and that person:
(i)  has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or of a parent of the Group;
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Related parties (Continued)

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

(i)  the entity and the Group are members of the same group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity
(or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the other
entity);

(i)~ the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same third
party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other
entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit
of employees of either the Group or an entity related to the
Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a);

(vi) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the key management personnel of
the entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part,
provides key management personnel services to the Group
or to the parent of the Group.

Close members of the family of a person are those family members
who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that person
in their dealings with the entity and include:

(@) that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;

(b) children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner; and
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24X EETTBREE (&)

POLICIES (Continued)
Related parties (Continued)

(c) dependants of that person or that person’s spouse or domestic
partner.

In the definition of a related party, an associate includes subsidiaries
of the associate and a joint venture includes subsidiaries of the joint
venture.

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of
property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and
any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment
have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is
normally charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss in
the period in which it is incurred. In situations where the recognition
criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection is
capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as a replacement.
Where significant parts of property, plant and equipment are
required to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises such
parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates
them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the
cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual
value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used
for this purpose are as follows:

20% to 33%
Over the shorter of the

Furniture and fixtures and office equipment
Leasehold improvements

lease terms and 20%
Motor vehicles 20% to 30%
Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation method
are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial
year end.
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(Continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant
part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when
no future economic benefits are expected to arise from its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised in
the statement of profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised
is the difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the relevant asset.

Properties under development

Properties under development are stated at the lower of cost
and net realisable value and comprise land costs, construction
costs, borrowing costs, professional fees and other costs directly
attributable to such properties incurred during the development
period. The net realisable value of properties under development
is determined by establishing the estimated selling prices of
the properties on () an “as-if” completed basis with appropriate
deduction on construction costs, professional fees and interests
to be incurred from the valuation date to completion as well as the
estimated selling expenses or (i) a direct comparison approach by
making reference to comparable land transactions as available in
the market.

Properties under development are classified as current assets unless
the construction period of the relevant property development project
is expected to complete beyond the normal operating cycle. On
completion, the properties are transferred to completed properties
held for sale.

The land held for future development represents parcels of land
owned by the Group for the purpose of development of properties
for sale. The land is initially stated at cost less any impairment
losses and is not depreciated. It is transferred to properties under
development upon commencement of the related construction work
in the property development project.
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24X EETTBREE (&)

POLICIES (Continued)
Completed properties held for sale

Completed properties held for sale are stated at the lower of cost
and net realisable value. Cost is determined by an apportionment of
the total land and building costs attributable to unsold properties.
The net realisable value is determined by reference to the selling
prices of properties sold in the ordinary course of business less
selling expenses and the prevailing market conditions, on an
individual property basis.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings (including
the leasehold interest under an operating lease for a property which
would otherwise meet the definition of an investment property)
held to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation, rather
than for use in the production or supply of goods or services or
for administrative purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of
business. Such properties are measured initially at cost, including
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are stated at fair value, which reflects market conditions
at the end of the reporting period.

Completed properties held for sale and properties under
development would be transferred to investment properties
when, and only when, there is a change in use, evidenced by the
following criteria: (a) the properties meet the definition of investment
properties; (b) the Group has prepared a business plan that reflects
the future rental income generated by the property and this is
supported with evidence that there is demand for rental space; (c)
the Group can demonstrate that it has the resources, including the
necessary financing or capital, to hold and manage the investment
property; (d) the change in use is legally permissible; (e) if the
property must be further developed for the change in use, the
development has commenced and (f) change in use is approved by
the Board.
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or
contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration.

The Group as lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach
for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-
value assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease
payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the
underlying assets.

The Group has elected not to separate non-lease components from
lease components, and accounts for each lease component and
any associated non-lease components as a single lease component.

The Group accounts for each lease component within a
lease contract as a lease separately. The Group allocates the
consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis
of the relative stand-alone price of the lease component.

Amounts payable by the Group that do not give rise to a separate
component are considered to be part of the total consideration that
is allocated to the separately identified components of the contract.

The Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the
commencement date of the lease.
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING QAFEEFT BRI E ()
POLICIES (Continued)
Leases (Continued) HE (&)
The Group as lessee (Continued) AEBERAEA (&)
(a) Right-of-use assets (@) FREEE
Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement date FREEENEER KB (BB
of the lease (that is the date the underlying asset is available BEMHEAEA) TUER - FH
for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any B ERKARER 25T E LRE
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses, and EEFE - UYHRERENFEHEES
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost BELFE - FRAREENABED
of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities REEBREZNE  EEEVGBE
recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments A AS A B BAsk 2 Rt 2
made at or before the commencement date less any lease EFUERIME W EEE - AR
incentives received, and an estimate of costs to be incurred SEFR RERIEEEE © RSB
by the Group in dismantling and removing the underlying BEMESMGEEBEEREZR
asset, restoring the site on which it is located or restoring the EGERRERTRE RS TEE L
underlying asset to the condition required by the terms and THETRCAR - BRIEZSERR AT R EETF
conditions of the lease, unless those costs are incurred to EmMEL -
produce inventories.
Subsequently, the right-of-use asset is measured at cost less Hig - (P REEERRAREMRRT
any accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment TERERRFREREFE - Wit
losses and adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability. HEaBEZEMENEELARE -
Depreciation is provided on a straight-line basis over the shorter ELME A R AEEEAT A EA
of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the right-of- FHZEE EUESEAIR (BRIEA
use asset (unless the lease transfers ownership of the underlying ERHERERISEBEEZFE
asset to the Group by the end of the lease term or if the cost BEEEEAREE R WEAEEE 2K
of the right-of-use asset reflects that the Group will exercise a ARMAEBEAGTERBERZE-T
purchase option — in which case depreciation is provided over IHERT - R IERE E LT R A
the estimated useful life of the underlying asset) as follows: FHINETRFTE) )T -
Office and other premises 1-3 years WNEREMYIFE 1-34F
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as lessee (Continued)

(b) Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement date of
the lease at the present value of lease payments to be made
over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments
(including in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives
receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or
a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value
guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price
of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the
Group and payments of penalties for termination of a lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising the option to terminate.
The variable lease payments that do not depend on an index
or a rate are recognised as an expense in the period in which
the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs and
payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term
reflects the Group exercising an option to terminate the lease.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group
uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement
date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of
lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and
reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying
amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification,
a change in the lease term, a change in lease payments (e.g.,
a change to future lease payments resulting from a change in
an index or rate) or a change in assessment of an option to
purchase the underlying asset.

The Group recognises the amount of the remeasurement of
the lease liability as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset.
If the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset is reduced to
zero and there is a further reduction in the measurement of the
lease liability, the Group recognises any remaining amount of the
remeasurement in profit or loss.
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING QAFEEFT BRI E ()
POLICIES (Continued)
Leases (Continued) HE (&)
The Group as lessee (Continued) REBIERAEBA (8)

(b) Lease liabilities (Continued)

A lease maodification is accounted for as a separate lease if:

(@) the modification increases the scope of the lease by adding
the right to use one or more underlying assets; and

(b) the consideration for the lease increases by an amount
commensurate with the stand-alone price for the increase in
scope and any appropriate adjustments to that stand-alone
price to reflect the circumstances of the particular contract.

When a lease modification is not accounted for as a separate
lease, at the effective date of the lease modification,

(@) the Group allocates the consideration in the modified
contract on the basis of relative stand-alone price as
described above.

(b) the Group determines the lease term of the modified
contract.

(c) the Group remeasures the lease liability by discounting the
revised lease payments using a revised discount rate over
the revised lease term.

(d) for lease modifications that decrease the scope of the lease,
the Group accounts for the remeasurement of the lease
liability by decreasing the carrying amount of the right-of-
use asset to reflect the partial or full termination of the lease
and recognising any gain or loss relating to the partial or full
termination of the lease in profit or loss.

(e) for all other lease modifications, the Group accounts

for the remeasurement of the lease liability by making a
corresponding adjustment to the right-of-use asset.
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Leases (Continued)
The Group as lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease inception (or
when there is a lease modification) each of its leases as either an
operating lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are classified
as operating leases. When a contract contains lease and non-
lease components, the Group allocates the consideration in the
contract to each component on a relative stand-alone selling price
basis. Rental income is accounted for on a straight-line basis over
the lease terms and is included in revenue in the statement of profit
or loss due to its operating nature. Initial direct costs incurred in
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease
term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are
recognised as revenue in the period in which they are earned.

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, it accounts for the head
lease and sublease as two separate contracts. The sublease is
classified as an operating lease if the head lease is a short-term
lease to which the Group has applied the recognition exemption.
Otherwise, the sublease is classified as a finance or operating lease
by reference to the right-of-use asset arising from the head lease.
When the Group entered into sublease as an intermediate lessor,
any difference between the derecognition of right-of-use asset and
the net investment in the sublease are recognised in profit or loss.

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee, are accounted for
as finance leases.
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Leases (Continued)

The Group as lessor (Continued)
As lessor - finance lease

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recorded as
receivables at the amount of the Group’s net investment in the
leases. Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods so
as to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the Group’s net
investment outstanding in respect of the leases. The Group applies
the derecognition and impairment requirements in HKFRS 9 to the
net investment in the finance lease.

The Group accounts for a modification to a finance lease as a
separate lease if both:

(@) the modification increases the scope of the lease by adding the
right to use one or more underlying assets; and

(b) the consideration for the lease increases by an amount
commensurate with the stand-alone price for the increase in
scope and any appropriate adjustments to that stand-alone
price to reflect the circumstances of the particular contract.

For a modification to a finance lease that is not accounted for as a
separate lease, the Group accounts for the modification as follows:

(a) if the lease would have been classified as an operating lease had
the modification been in effect at the inception date, the Group:

(i) accounts for the lease modification as a new lease from the
effective date of the modification; and

(i) measures the carrying amount of the underlying asset as the
net investment in the lease immediately before the effective

date of the lease modification.

(b) otherwise, the Group applies the requirements of HKFRS 9.
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Leases (Continued)

The Group as lessor (Continued)
As lessor — operating lease

The Group applies the derecognition and impairment requirements
in HKFRS 9 to the operating lease receivables.

A modification to an operating lease is accounted for as a new lease
from the effective date of the modification, considering any prepaid
or accrued lease payments relating to the original lease as part of
the lease payments for the new lease.

Financial instruments
Financial assets
Recognition and derecognition

Financial assets are recognised when and only when the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments
and on a trade date basis.

A financial asset is derecognised when and only when (i) the Group’s
contractual rights to future cash flows from the financial asset expire
or (i) the Group transfers the financial asset and either (a) it transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial
asset, or (b) it neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the financial asset but it does not retain
control of the financial asset.

If the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group continues to
recognise the financial asset.

If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred
asset, the Group recognises the financial asset to the extent of its
continuing involvement and an associated liability for amounts it may
have to pay.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Classification and measurement

Financial assets (except for trade receivables without a significant
financing component) are initially recognised at their fair value plus,
in the case of financial assets not carried at fair value through profit
and loss (“FVPL”), transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition of the financial assets. Such trade receivables are
initially measured at their transaction price.

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as (i) measured
at amortised cost; (i) debt instruments at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVOCI”); (iii) equity instruments at FVOCI;
or (iv) measured at FVPL.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on
the Group’s business model for managing the financial assets and
the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics. Financial
assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition
unless the Group changes its business model for managing them,
in which case all affected financial assets are reclassified on the first
day of the first annual reporting period following the change in the
business model (the “reclassification date”).

Derivatives embedded in a hybrid contract in which a host is an
asset within the scope of HKFRS 9 are not separated from the host.
Instead, the entire hybrid contract is assessed for classification.
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and measurement (Continued)

(1) Financial assets measured at amortised cost

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both

of the following conditions and is not designated as at FVPL:

(i

it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold
financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows;
and

its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently

measured using the effective interest method and are subject

to impairment. Gains and losses arising from impairment,

derecognition or through the amortisation process are

recognised in profit or loss.

The Group’s financial assets at amortised cost include trade and

other receivables, pledged and restricted deposits and cash and

cash equivalents.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2021 BE—Z-——F=A=+—HItFE

24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and measurement (Continued)

A
QAT EESTTBUEREIE ()

LRI E (&)
ERMEE (&)

BEFEGE)

L W

@) BARBESAHMEZEBRANES

(2) Debt instruments at FVOCI

A debt instrument is measured at FVOCI if both of the following
conditions are met and is not designated as at FVPL:

(i) itis held within a business model whose objective is to hold
financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and
for sale; and

(i) its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.

The financial asset is subsequently measured at fair value.
Interest calculated using the effective interest method,
impairment gains or losses and foreign exchange gains and
losses are recognised in profit or loss. Other gains or losses are
recognised in other comprehensive income until the financial
asset is derecognised. When the financial asset is derecognised,
the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss as a
reclassification adjustment.

The Group does not have debt instruments measured at FVOCI
at the end of the reporting period.
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24X EETTBRBE (&)

POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued) SEIT A (&)
Financial assets (Continued) eREE (&)
Classification and measurement (Continued) nERFTE(E)

@) BARBEAHMEEBA Z BE
TA

(8) Equity instrument at FVOCI

Upon initial recognition, the Group may make an irrevocable R HERE - A& BN HEE

election to present subsequent changes in the fair value of
an investment in an equity instrument that is neither held for
trading nor contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer
in a business combination to which HKFRS 3 applies in other
comprehensive income. The classification is determined on an
instrument-by-instrument basis.

These equity investments are subsequently measured at
fair value and are not subject to impairment. Dividends are
recognised in profit or loss unless the dividend clearly represents
a recovery of part of the cost of the investment. Other gains
or losses are recognised in other comprehensive income and
shall not be subsequently reclassified to profit or loss. Upon
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derecognition, the cumulative gain or loss is transferred directly BEREBAEF -

to retained earnings.

The Group does not have equity instruments measured at

REFHR - AEELEZQABE
FVOCI at the end of the reporting period. B
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 #HZEZE—ZT—-—F=A=+—HIFE \ \
24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING QAFEEFT BRI E ()

POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued) SRIT A (&)

Financial assets (Continued) eHMEE (&)

Classification and measurement (Continued) DERFE (B)

(4) Financial assets at FVPL @) BARBEFAEBRNSREE
These investments include financial assets that are not measured ZERE BIEW RGN AS AR
at amortised cost or FVOCI, including financial assets held for BEFAEMEZEABKANSHEE -
trading, financial assets designated upon initial recognition as at PEFIEEENSREE  NUKE
FVPL, financial assets resulting from a contingent consideration REETERE AR BEFABZNE
arrangement in a business combination to which HKFRS 3 REERABBYBEHREERFE IR
applies and financial assets that are otherwise required to be BAMNEREFPHRARELSEM
measured at FVPL. They are carried at fair value, with any EANTREEURSINEZARE
resultant gain and loss recognised in profit or loss, which does Bt \BREREE - ZEFRER
not include any dividend or interest earned on the financial AAEBEHER - MERELEE/NIK
assets. Dividend or interest income is presented separately from mBERERER - LA EER
fair value gain or loss. A ERNNERRESFE - &

B EMARL R BEKEKER

DHZF

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if it is: TREENBIATEIE  AIDERE
fEEE :
() acquired principally for the purpose of selling it in the near () WEEMNEZEAREHAHE
term;
(i) part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that iy BAZEFREENE#HEHMT
are managed together and for which there is evidence of BEe—Hn  BETRETR
a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking on initial HR Vs R e g ke
recognition; or HREFIE ok
(i) a derivative that is not a financial guarantee contract or not a (i) WIEBA IR AER KL IEIEESR
designated and effective hedging instrument. MEDR T EMHTETEA -
Financial assets are designated at initial recognition as at FVPL only PREEEENVINERAREEERAR
if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or BAEFTABE D ERIARAKE D IETR
recognition inconsistency that would otherwise arise from measuring BEEHEEENBENBERAKGENE
assets or liabilities or recognising the gains or losses on them on BRTEENT 2R ERT 2B RE
different bases. T RMAALLEESE ©
The Group’s financial assets mandatorily measured at FVPL include REERFIRA R BEFAERTEN
derivative financial instruments. CRIEERBITESRTA -
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities

Recognition and derecognition

Financial liabilities are recognised when and only when the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.

A financial liability is derecognised when and only when the liability
is extinguished, that is, when the obligation specified in the relevant
contract is discharged, cancelled or expires.

Classification and measurement

Financial liabilities are initially recognised at their fair value plus, in
the case of financial liabilities not carried at FVPL, transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the issue of the financial liabilities.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables,
loans from a controlling shareholder, lease liabilities and bank and
other borrowings, and convertible bonds. All financial liabilities,
except for financial liabilities at FVPL, are recognised initially at their
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method, unless the effect of discounting would be
insignificant, in which case they are stated at cost.

Derivatives embedded in a hybrid contract with a host that is not
an asset within the scope of HKFRS 9 are treated as separate
derivatives when they meet the definition of a derivative, their
economic characteristics and risks are not closely related to those
of the host, and the hybrid contract is not measured at FVPL.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount
is reported in the consolidated statement of financial position if
there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24X EETTBREE (&)

POLICIES (Continued)
Convertible bonds

If the early redemption option of convertible bonds exhibits
characteristics of an embedded derivative, it is separated from its
liability component. On initial recognition, the derivative component
of the convertible bonds is measured at fair value and presented
as part of derivative financial instruments. The component of
the convertible bonds that exhibits characteristics of a liability
is recognised as a liability in the statement of financial position,
net of transaction costs. On initial recognition, the fair value of
the liability component is determined using a market rate for an
equivalent non-convertible bond; and this amount is carried as a
long term liability on the amortised cost basis until extinguished
on conversion or redemption. The remainder of the proceeds is
allocated to the conversion option that is recognised and included in
shareholders’ equity, net of transaction costs. The carrying amount
of the conversion option is not remeasured in subsequent years.
Transaction costs are apportioned between the liability and equity
components of the convertible bonds based on the allocation
of proceeds to the liability and equity components when the
instruments are first recognised.

Impairment of financial assets and other items

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected credit loss
(“ECL”) on financial assets that are measured at amortised cost,
debt instrument at FVOCI, lease receivables and financial guarantee
contracts issued to which the impairment requirements apply in
accordance with HKFRS 9. Except for the specific treatments as
detailed below, at each reporting date, the Group measures a loss
allowance for a financial asset at an amount equal to the lifetime ECL
if the credit risk on that financial asset has increased significantly
since initial recognition. If the credit risk on a financial asset has not
increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group measures
the loss allowance for that financial asset at an amount equal to
12-month ECL.
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items
(Continued)

Measurement of ECL

ECL is a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses (i.e. the
present value of all cash shortfalls) over the expected life of the
financial instrument.

For financial assets, a credit loss is the present value of the
difference between the contractual cash flows that are due to an
entity under the contract and the cash flows that the entity expects
to receive. For lease receivables, the cash flow used for determining
the ECL should be consistent with the cash flows used in measuring
the lease receivable in accordance with HKFRS 16.

For a financial guarantee contract, the entity is required to make
payments only in the event of a default by the debtor in accordance
with the terms of the instrument that is guaranteed. Accordingly,
cash shortfalls are the expected payments to reimburse the holder
for a credit loss that it incurs less any amounts that the entity
expects to receive from the holder, the debtor or any other party.
If the asset is fully guaranteed, the estimation of cash shortfalls
for a financial guarantee contract would be consistent with the
estimations of cash shortfalls for the asset subject to the guarantee.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible
default events over the expected life of a financial instrument
while 12-month ECL represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is
expected to result from default events on a financial instrument that
are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis, the financial
instruments are grouped based on the following one or more shared
credit risk characteristics:

(i) past due information

(i) nature of instrument

(i) nature of collateral
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 BE—Z-——F=A=+—HItFE
24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items
(Continued)

Measurement of ECL (Continued)
(iv) industry of debtors

(v) geographical location of debtors

(vi) external credit risk ratings

Loss allowance is remeasured at each reporting date to reflect
changes in the financial instrument’s credit risk and loss since
initial recognition. The resulting changes in the loss allowance are
recognised as an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss with a
corresponding adjustment to the carrying amount of the financial
instrument, except in the case of debt instruments at FVOCI, the
loss allowance is recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the recycling fair value reserve.

Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting an event of
default for internal credit risk management purposes as historical
experience indicates that the Group may not receive the outstanding
contractual amounts in full if the financial instrument that meets any
of the following criteria.

(i) information developed internally or obtained from external
sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors,
including the Group, in full (without taking into account any
collaterals held by the Group); or

(i) there is a breach of financial covenants by the counterparty.

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group considers that default
has occurred when a financial asset is more than 90 days past
due unless the Group has reasonable and supportable information
to demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is more
appropriate.
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items
(Continued)

Assessment of significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial instrument has
increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition. In making this
assessment, the Group considers both quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort. In particular, the following information is taken
into account in the assessment:

e the debtor’s failure to make payments of principal or interest on
the due dates;

e an actual or expected significant deterioration in the financial
instrument’s external or internal credit rating (if available);

e an actual or expected significant deterioration in the operating
results of the debtor; and

e actual or expected changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have or may have a
significant adverse effect on the debtor’s ability to meet its
obligation to the Group.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the Group
presumes that the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual payments are
more than 30 days past due.

For financial guarantee contracts, the date that the Group becomes
a party to the irrevocable commitment is considered to be the date
of initial recognition for the purposes of assessing the financial
instrument for impairment. For financial guarantee contracts, the
Group considers the changes in the risk that the specified debtor
will default on the contract.
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 BE—Z-——F=A=+—HItFE

24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items
(Continued)

Assessment of significant increase in credit risk
(Continued)

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Group assumes that the credit
risk on a financial instrument has not increased significantly since
initial recognition if the financial instrument is determined to have low
credit risk at the reporting date.

Low credit risk

A financial instrument is determined to have low credit risk if:

(i) it has a low risk of default;

(i) the borrower has a strong capacity to meet its contractual cash
flow obligations in the near term; and

(iiiy adverse changes in economic and business conditions in the
longer term may, but will not necessarily, reduce the ability of the
borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations.

Simplified approach of ECL

For trade receivables and contract assets without a significant
financing components or otherwise for which the Group applies
the practical expedient not to account for the significant financing
components, the Group applies a simplified approach in calculating
ECL. The Group recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime
ECL at each reporting date and has established a provision matrix
that is based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic
environment.
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items
(Continued)

Credit-impaired financial asset

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events that
have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of
that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is
credit-impaired include observable data about the following events:

(@) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower.
(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past due event.

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual
reasons relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty, having
granted to the borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s) would
not otherwise consider.

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy
or other financial reorganisation.

(e) the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset
because of financial difficulties.

() the purchase or origination of a financial asset at a deep
discount that reflects the incurred credit losses.

Write-off

The Group writes off a financial asset when the Group has no
reasonable expectations of recovering the contractual cash flows on
a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof. The Group has
a policy of writing off the gross carrying amount when the financial
asset is 1 year past due based on historical experience of recoveries
of similar assets. The Group expects no significant recovery from
the amount written off. However, financial assets that are written off
could still be subject to enforcement activities under the Group’s
procedures for recovery of amounts due, taking into account legal
advice if appropriate. Any subsequent recovery is recognised in
profit or loss.
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24X EETTBREE (&)

POLICIES (Continued)
Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits,
and short term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally within three
months when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial position,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks,
including term deposits, and assets similar in nature to cash, which
are not restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable
that a future outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised
for a provision is the present value at the end of the reporting period
of the future expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation. The increase in the discounted present value amount
arising from the passage of time is included in finance costs in the
statement of profit or loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating
to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit
or loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period, taking into
consideration interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries
in which the Group operates.
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of the reporting period between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial
reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

e when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition
of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

e in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, when
the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and any unused
tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised, to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused
tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

e when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary
differences arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability
in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the
time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss; and

e in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries deferred tax assets are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24X EETTBREE (&)

POLICIES (Continued)
Income tax (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred
tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and
are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the
liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally
enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity
and the same taxation authority.

Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the consideration received or receivable for
the sales of properties and services, net of discount, in the ordinary
course of the Group’s activities.

Revenue from the sales of properties are recognised when or as the
control of the asset is transferred to the customer. Depending on the
terms of the contract and laws that apply to the contract, control of
the asset may transfer over time or at a point in time. Control of the
asset is transferred over time if the Group’s performance:

e Provides all the benefits received and consumed simultaneously
by the customer; or

e Creates and enhances an asset that the customer controls as
the Group performs; or

e Do not create an asset with an alternative use to the Group and
the Group has an enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Revenue recognition (Continued)

If control of the asset transfers over time, revenue is recognised
over the period of the contract by reference to the progress towards
complete satisfaction of that performance obligation. Otherwise,
revenue is recognised at a point in time when the customer obtains
control of the asset.

The progress towards complete satisfaction of the performance
obligation is measured based on the Group’s efforts or inputs to
the satisfaction of the performance obligation, by reference to
the contract costs incurred up to the end of reporting period as a
percentage of total estimated costs for each contract.

For property sales contract for which the control of the property
is transferred at a point in time, revenue is recognised when the
customer obtains the physical possession or the legal title of the
completed property and the Group has present right to payment
and the collection of the consideration is probable.

In determining the transaction price, the Group adjusts the promised
amount of consideration for the effect of a financing component if
it is significant. When the contract contains a significant financing
component (i.e. the customer or the Group is provided with a
significant benefit of financing the transfer of goods or services
to the customer), in determining the transaction price, the Group
adjusts the promised consideration for the effects of the time value
of money. The effect of the significant financing component is
recognised as an interest income or interest expense separately
from revenue from contracts with customers in profit or loss.

The Group determines the interest rate that is commensurate with
the rate that would be reflected in a separate financing transaction
between the Group and its customer at contract inception by
reference to, where appropriate, the interest rate implicit in the
contract (i.e. the interest rate that discounts the cash selling price
of the goods or services to the amount paid in advance or arrears),
the prevailing market interest rates, the Group’s borrowing rates and
other relevant creditworthiness information of the customer of the
Group.
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24X EETTBREE (&)

POLICIES (Continued)
Revenue recognition (Continued)

The Group has applied the practical expedient in paragraph 63 of
HKFRS 15 and does not adjust the consideration for the effect of
the significant financing component if the period of financing is one
year or less.

Payments received on properties sold prior to the date of revenue
recognition are included in the consolidated statement of financial
position under contract liabilities.

Rental income derived from the lease of the Group’s properties is
recognised on a time proportion basis over the lease terms.

Property management fee income derived from the provision of
property maintenance and management services is recognised over
time when the relevant services are rendered.

Interest income from financial assets is recognised using the
effective interest method. For financial assets measured at amortised
cost or debt instruments at FVOCI that are not credit-impaired, the
effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying amount of
the assets while it is applied to the amortised cost (i.e. the gross
carrying amount net of loss allowance) in case of credit-impaired
financial assets.

Contract assets and contract liabilities

If the Group performs by transferring goods or services to a
customer before the customer pays consideration or before
payment is due, the contract is presented as a contract asset,
excluding any amounts presented as a receivable. Conversely, if a
customer pays consideration, or the Group has a right to an amount
of consideration that is unconditional, before the Group transfers
a good or service to the customer, the contract is presented as
a contract liability when the payment is made or the payment
is due (whichever is earlier). A receivable is the Group’s right to
consideration that is unconditional or only the passage of time is
required before payment of that consideration is due.

For a single contract or a single set of related contracts, either a net
contract asset or a net contract liability is presented. Contract assets
and contract liabilities of unrelated contracts are not presented on a
net basis.
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Contract assets and contract liabilities (Continued)

For the sale of properties, it is common for the Group to receive from
the customer the whole or some of the contractual payments before
the services are completed or when the goods are delivered (i.e.
the timing of revenue recognition for such transactions). The Group
recognises a contract liability until it is recognised as revenue. During
that period, any significant financing components, if applicable, will
be included in the contract liability and will be expensed as accrued
unless the interest expense is eligible for capitalisation.

For the rental and property management fee income, the Group
receives payments from the customer which are largely in line with
the timing of revenue recognition and no significant contract assets
and contract liabilities are recognised.

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contributes to the success of the Group’s operations. Employees
(including directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the form
of share-based payments, whereby employees render services as
consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees for grants is
measured by reference to the fair value at the date at which they are
granted. The fair value is determined by an external valuer using a
binomial option pricing model.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in employee
benefit expense, together with a corresponding increase in equity,
over the period in which the performance and/or service conditions
are fulfilled. The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled
transactions at the end of each reporting period until the vesting
date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired and
the Group’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments that
will ultimately vest. The charge or credit to profit or loss for a period
represents the movement in the cumulative expense recognised as
at the beginning and end of that period.
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24X EETTBREE (&)

POLICIES (Continued)
Share-based payments (Continued)

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken into
account when determining the grant date fair value of awards, but
the likelihood of the conditions being met is assessed as part of the
Group’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will
ultimately vest. Market performance conditions are reflected within
the grant date fair value. Any other conditions attached to an award,
but without an associated service requirement, are considered to
be non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are reflected in
the fair value of an award and lead to an immediate expensing of an
award unless there are also service and/or performance conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market
performance and/or service conditions have not been met, no
expense is recognised. Where awards include a market condition
or non-vesting condition, the transactions are treated as vesting
irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting condition is
satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or service
conditions are satisfied.

Where the equity-settled award are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in the share option reserve will be transferred to share
capital. Where the equity-settled award are forfeited after the
vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to
retained earnings.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a
minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not been
modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In addition, an
expense is recognised for any modification that increases the total
fair value of the share-based payments, or is otherwise beneficial to
the employee as measured at the date of modification.
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Share-based payments (Continued)

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it
had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet
recognised for the award is recognised immediately. This includes
any award where non-vesting conditions within the control of
either the Group or the employee are not met. However, if a new
award is substituted for the cancelled award, and designated as a
replacement award on the date that it is granted, the cancelled and
new awards are treated as if they were a modification of the original
award, as described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional
share dilution in the computation of earnings per share.

Other employee benefits
Pension schemes

The Group participates in a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”)
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for all
of its employees located in Hong Kong. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are
charged to the statement of profit or loss as they become payable
in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of
the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group
in an independently administered fund. The Group’s employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed into
the MPF Scheme.

Pursuant to the relevant PRC laws and regulations, each of the PRC
subsidiaries of the Group is required to participate in a retirement
benefit scheme organised by the local municipal government
whereby the Group is required to contribute a certain percentage of
the salaries of its employees to the retirement benefit scheme. The
only obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement benefit
scheme is to pay the ongoing required contributions. Contributions
made to the defined contribution retirement benefit scheme are
charged to profit or loss as incurred.
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24X EETTBREE (&)

POLICIES (Continued)
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that necessarily take
a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use
or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The
capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when the assets
are substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Investment
income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs are expensed
in the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of
interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the
borrowing of funds.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are approved
by the shareholders in a general meeting.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the Company’s memorandum and articles of association
grant the directors the authority to declare interim dividends.
Consequently, interim dividends are recognised immediately as a
liability when they are proposed and declared.

Foreign currencies

The Company’s consolidated financial statements are presented in
RMB because management considers that a substantial majority
of the group companies are in the PRC and the Group primarily
generates and expends cash in RMB. Each entity in the Group
determines its own functional currency and items included in
the financial statements of each entity are measured using that
functional currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by the
entities in the Group are initially recorded using their respective
functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are translated at the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at
the end of the reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or
translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss.
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Foreign currencies (Continued)

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost
in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at
fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the date when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss
arising on translation of a non-monetary item measured at fair value
is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change
in fair value of the item (i.e., translation difference on the item whose
fair value gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income
or profit or loss is also recognised in other comprehensive income or
profit or loss, respectively).

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries are
currencies other than RMB. As at the end of the reporting period,
the assets and liabilities of these entities are translated into RMB
at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period
and their statements of profit or loss are translated into RMB at the
weighted average exchange rates for the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange reserve.
On disposal of a foreign operation, the component of other
comprehensive income relating to that particular foreign operation is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the
cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into RMB at the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently
recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout
the year are translated into RMB at the weighted average exchange
rates for the year.
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24X EETTBREE (&)

POLICIES (Continued)
Segment Reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the consolidated financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to the Group’s chief
operating decision maker i.e. the executive directors for the purpose
of allocating resources to, and assessing the performance of, the
Group’s various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individual material operating segments are not aggregated for
financial reporting purposes unless the segments have similar
economic characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature
of products and services, the nature of production processes, the
type or class of customers, the methods used to distribute the
products or provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory
environment. Operating segments which are not individually material
may be aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.

Disposal group held for sale

Disposal groups are classified as held for sale if their carrying
amounts will be recovered principally through a sale transaction
rather than through continuing use. This condition is regarded as
met only when the sale is highly probable and the disposal group is
available for immediate sale in its present condition. Management
must be committed to the sale, which should be expected to qualify
for recognition as a completed sale within one year from the date
of classification. Disposal groups classified as held for sale are
measured at the lower of their previous carrying amount and fair
value less costs to sell.

Discontinued operations

A discontinued operation is a component of the Group’s business,
the operations and cash flows of which can be clearly distinguished
from the rest of the Group and which represents a separate major
line of business or geographical area of operations, or is part of
a single coordinated plan to dispose of a separate major line of
business or geographical area of operations, or is a subsidiary
acquired exclusively with a view to resale.

Classification as a discontinued operation occurs upon disposal or
when the operation meets the criteria to be classified as held for
sale, if earlier. It also occurs if the operation is abandoned.
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Discontinued operations (Continued)

Where an operation is classified as discontinued, a single amount
is presented on the face of the statement of profit or loss, which
comprises:

— the post-tax profit or loss of the discontinued operation; and

— the post-tax gain or loss recognised on the measurement to
fair value less costs to sell, or on the disposal, of the assets or
disposal group(s) constituting the discontinued operation.

. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from those
involving estimations, which have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements:

Classification of operating lease — Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases for
properties in its investment property portfolio. The Group has
determined, based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of
the arrangements, that it retains all the significant risks and rewards
of ownership of these properties which are leased out as operating
leases.

Identification of leases

At the inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether a
contract is, or contains, a lease based on the requirements of
HKFRS 16 and all the relevant facts and circumstances. In particular,
the Group assesses whether the contract involves the use of an
identified asset by applying the concept of substantive substitution
right. Also, the Group assesses whether the Group or the customer
has the right to direct the use of the identified asset with reference
to determination of which party has the decision-making rights that
are most relevant to changing how and for what purpose the asset
is used. In cases where such decisions are predetermined, the
right to operate the asset or the incorporation of such decisions by
means of designing the asset are considered.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 3. X E&5t ¥ R &5 (&)

AND ESTIMATES (Continued)
Judgements (Continued)

Classification between investment properties and
properties held for sale

The Group develops properties held for sale and properties held to
earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation. Judgement is made by
management on determining whether a property is designated as an
investment property or a property held for sale. The Group considers
its intention for holding the properties at the early development
stage of the related properties. During the course of construction,
the related properties under construction are accounted for as
properties under development included in current assets if the
properties are intended for sale after completion, whereas, the
properties are accounted for as investment properties under
construction included in non-current assets if the properties are
intended to be held to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation.
Upon completion of the properties, the properties held for sale are
transferred to completed properties held for sale and are stated at
the lower of cost and net realisable value, while the properties held
to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation are transferred to
completed investment properties and are subject to revaluation at
the end of each reporting period.

Whether the presumption that investment properties
stated at fair value are recovered through sale is rebutted
in determining deferred tax

The Group has investment properties located in the PRC which are
measured at fair value. Investment property is property held to earn
rentals or for capital appreciation or both. In considering whether the
presumption in HKAS 12 Income Taxes that an investment property
measured at fair value will be recovered through sale is rebutted in
determining deferred tax, the Group has developed certain criteria
in making that judgement, such as whether an investment property
is held within a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the investment
property over time or through sale. The presumption is rebutted
only in the circumstance that there is sufficient evidence such as a
historical transaction, future development plan and management’s
intention to demonstrate that the investment property is held with
the objective to consume substantially all of the economic benefits
over time, rather than through sale. Continuous assessments on the
presumption will be made by management at each reporting date.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS

AND ESTIMATES (Continued)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources
of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year, are described below.

Net realisable value of properties under development and
completed properties held for sale

The Group’s properties under development and completed
properties held for sale are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

The net realisable value of completed properties is determined by
management with reference to the selling prices of properties sold
in the ordinary course of business less selling expenses and the
prevailing market conditions on an individual property basis. The
net realisable value of properties under development is determined
by establishing the estimated selling price of the properties on
(i) an “as-if” completed basis with appropriate deduction on
construction costs, professional fees and interests to be incurred
from the valuation date to completion as well as the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale or (i) a direct comparison approach by
making reference to comparable land transactions as available in the
market. In estimating the total budgeted costs, management makes
reference to information such as (i) current offers from contractors
and suppliers; (i) recent offer agreed with contractors and suppliers;
and (jii) professional estimation on construction and material costs.
Where the expectation is different from the original estimate, the
carrying value and provision for properties in the period in which the
estimate is changed will be adjusted accordingly.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 3. X E&5t ¥ R &5 (&)

AND ESTIMATES (Continued)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Fair value of investment properties

The investment properties of the Group are measured at fair
value, which were valued based on the appraised market
value by an independent professional valuer. The fair value of
completed investment properties was arrived at by considering the
capitalised income to be derived from the existing tenancies and
the reversionary potential of the properties or, where appropriate,
by reference to market evidence of transaction prices for similar
properties in the surrounding areas. The fair values of investment
properties under development are determined by establishing the
market values of the properties on an “as-if” completed basis with
appropriate deduction on construction costs, professional fees
and interests to be incurred from the valuation date to completion
as well as a reasonable margin. The determination of the fair
value for completed investment properties requires the Group to
estimate reversionary potential of the properties while for investment
properties under development, estimates on costs to be incurred
and future margin are required in the valuation.

The carrying amount of investment properties as at 31 March 2021
was RMB547,100,000 (2020: RMB550,000,000). Further details,
including the key assumptions used for fair value measurement, are
stated in note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

PRC Land Appreciation Tax (“LAT”)

LAT in the PRC is levied at progressive rates ranging from 30% to
60% on the appreciation of land value, being the proceeds from the
sales of the properties less deductible expenditures including land
cost, borrowing cost, other property development expenditures.

When calculating the LAT, the Group needs to estimate the
deductible expenditures and makes judgement on the relevant tax
rate on an individual property basis under the relevant applicable
tax laws and regulations. Given the uncertainties of the calculative
basis of LAT to be interpreted by the local tax bureau, the actual
outcomes may be higher or lower than that estimated at the end of
the reporting period. Where the final tax outcome of these matters
is different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such
differences will impact the LAT expense and LAT provision in the
period in which the differences are realised.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS

AND ESTIMATES (Continued)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement
is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that
can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of
future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies.
The amount of unrecognised tax losses at 31 March 2021 was
RMB752,682,000 (2020: RMB503,376,000). Further details are
contained in note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

Loss allowance for ECL

The Group’s management estimates the loss allowance for trade
and other receivables by using various inputs and assumptions
including risk of a default and expected loss rate. The estimation
involves high degree of uncertainty which is based on the Group’s
historical information, existing market conditions as well as forward-
looking estimates at the end of each reporting period. Where the
expectation is different from the original estimate, such difference will
impact the carrying amount of trade and other receivables. Details
of the key assumption and inputs used in estimating ECL are set out
in note 36 to the consolidated financial statements.

Allocation of construction cost on properties under
development

When developing properties, the Group typically divides the
development projects into phases. Costs directly related to the
development of a phase are recorded as the cost of such phase.
Costs that are common to several phases are allocated to each
phase based on the saleable floor area of each phase as a
percentage of the total saleable floor area of the entire project.
The cost of the unit sold is determined by the floor area in square
metres sold multiplied by the average cost per square metre of that
particular phase of the project.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 3. X E&5t ¥ R &5 (&)

AND ESTIMATES (Continued)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets and goodwill

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of impairment
for all non-financial assets at the end of each reporting period.
Other non-financial assets are tested for impairment when there
are indicators that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable.
An impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or a
cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the
higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use.
The calculation of the fair value less costs of disposal is based
on available data from binding sales transactions in an arm’s
length transaction of similar assets or observable market prices
less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. When value in
use calculations are undertaken, management must estimate the
expected future cash flows from the asset or cash-generating unit
and choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value of those cash flows.

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least on an
annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value in use of the
cash-generating units to which the goodwill is allocated. Estimating
the value in use requires the Group to make an estimate of the
expected cash flows from the cash-generating unit and also to
choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value of those cash flows.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 3.

AND ESTIMATES (Continued)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Discount rates for calculating lease liabilities — as lessee

The Group uses the lessee’s incremental borrowing rates to discount
future lease payments since interest rates implicit in the leases are
not readily determinable. In determining the discounts rates for
its leases, the Group refers to a rate that is readily observable as
the starting point and then applies judgement and adjusts such
observable rate to determine the incremental borrowing rate.

. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group manages its businesses by divisions, which are
organised by a mixture of both business lines and geography. In
a manner consistent with the way in which information is reported
internally to the Group’s executive directors for the purposes of
resource allocation and performance assessment, the Group has
presented the following two reportable segments. No operating
segments have been aggregated to form the following reportable
segments.

Operating segments* Nature of business activities
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Place of operation

geoE- XBME EEME
Continuing operations
Property development Property development and provision of The PRC

management service to property projects H
MEERLRYFEERBRHEEERSE

and management

YIEBRENER

Property investment

MERE

Property holding for long term investment The PRC
and leasing purposes Fh

FRAEWEERAREMNEERRE

Annual Report 2020/21 44 @



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

N B .
For the year ended 31 March 2021 #HZEZE—ZT—-—F=A=+—HIFE \ \
4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. BESTER (B

(Continued)

*  As set out in note 13, the Group’s financial services segment was O EISHE c AEE 22 BARG S
treated and presented as discontinued operations upon the disposal FREEETMARERETNEE ER W
of the entire equity interests in JL Zhongye and JL Fengrun (as FT13) MR HAREREAR AR 2N R/EK
defined in the note 13). IEAS T -

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating EHEEBeHRIBY ERAEBKEDE

segments separately for the purpose of making decisions about ZEE  UBREBERS B RKRRT T E

resource allocation and performance assessment. Segment YEHIARTE » DEFRIVIBIBAI 2D s

performance is evaluated based on reportable segment profit/ BRI B ARRB AR

loss, which is a measure of adjusted profit/loss before tax. The 518 o BRERTTH B - BB AN -

adjusted profit/loss before tax is measured consistently with the REFEESBRTAZAABEKZ E

Group’s profit/loss before tax except that bank interest income, B -HEWNBRARIZEBBURBITRA

finance costs, fair value gains/losses from the Group’s financial RIS AN TR AR F, B R —

instruments, loss on disposal of subsidiaries as well as head office EENAEBBRFE I GHN,EETE -
and corporate expenses are excluded from such measurement.

Segment assets exclude deferred tax assets, prepaid income DHEETBIERLCHIBEEE « FENFT

tax, derivative financial instruments and other unallocated head B TEEmIAENEMRSEEHE

office and corporate assets as these assets are managed on a MARIEE  RERZSEENEEE

group basis. BEEETIE o

Segment liabilities exclude deferred tax liabilities, income tax NHEETBEELEHBEEE  ENFT

payable, the liability component of the Convertible Bonds and BE - TmRESAER S REMKRD

other unallocated head office and corporate liabilities as these Il R ARaE REAZEARED

liabilities are managed on a group basis. REEBRBEEER o

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with reference DEEIHEREEDNESERE =T
to the selling prices used for sales made to third parties at the REE2EE  RERRITZMEET
then prevailing market prices. R e
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. &%

= %Bﬁﬂ (ll‘ﬁ)

(Continued)
Year ended 31 March 2021 BE= —F=A=+—HLFE
Continuing operations
FELEEE
Property
development and
management Property
MERRE investment Total
REE MERE H
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARBTR ARETR
Segment revenue AP
Sales to external customers MRER Yz 142,055 11,281 153,336
Segment results PIEE (380,118) (6,880) (386,998)
Bank interest income SBITHBMA 1
Finance costs RERR (105,132)
Change in fair value of derivative iTEemIAY
financial instruments AEER (69)
Unallocated head office expenses FAMBHEZ (16,701)
Loss before tax BREipIEE (508,899)
Income tax = (6,300)
Loss for the year FRER (515,199)
Segment assets: AHEE
Reportable segment assets ERHHEE 1,293,723 550,275 1,843,998
Deferred tax assets RIEHBEE 13,524
Prepaid income tax BRER 6,067
Derivative financial instruments fTEeRIA 22
Assets associated with disposal group  DEEARELE 2 HEAR
classified as held for sale BBZEE 334,018 - 334,018
Unallocated assets FAREE 83,652
Total assets BELE 2,281,281
Segment liabilities AHaE
Reportable segment liabilties ERHHasE 1,541,641 61,608 1,603,249
Deferred tax liabilities REHEER 59,284
Income tax payable ERFTEH 67,595
Liability component of the RREFAEHS
Convertible Bonds 72,879
Liabilties associated with disposal group 948 B {EHE 2 1 E 45
classified as held for sale BHEzaR 393,677 - 393,677
Unallocated liabilities KpkaE 98,304
Total liabilities BEAH 2,204,988
Other segment information HtraHEs
Capital expenditure® BRRX - 63 63
Depreciation™ FrE- 1,008 7,529 8,627
Impairment on property, W% BERFEAE
plant and equipment 2,873 778 3,651
Impairment on trade and other receivables JEWE 585 & E At EUFIBRIE 14,668 190 14,858
Write-down of properties under BEBRTNEMAZETERFE 181,935 - 181,935
development to net realisable value
Write-down of completed properties BEELEEERDE
held for sale to net realisable value WRZETERFE 43617 - 43,617
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(2020: nil) which represents additions to non-current assets.

*k

RMB2,601,000 (2020: RMB2,074,000).

Included in unallocated head office expenses is depreciation of *
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 BE—Z-——F=A=+—HItFE \ \
4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. B&E5I&EHRE (F)
(Continued)
Year ended 31 March 2020 BE-_Z-_ZEHF=-A=1+—HILEE
Discontinued
operations
Continuing operations BEIE
TR E RS BEED
Property
development and
management Property Financial
NELR investment Total services
RER 5 it SRRE
RMB'000 RVB'000 RMB'000 RMB000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
Segment revenue AHla
Sales to external customers HIRER MR 222,093 20,592 242,685 23,283
Segment resuts G (1,363,141 (65,352 (1,428,499 (876,059
Bank interest income FITHEMA 124 428
Finance costs BERA (103,362) -
Change in fair value of derivative ~ $TESRIAZ
financial instruments NBEEZH (4.976) -
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries  HE&EMEAR 2B (14,627) -
Unallocated head office expenses KA B EEF X (18,156) -
Loss before tax BEAIEE (1,569,490) (375,630)
Income tax FiEH 201,999 (41,253
Loss for the year FRER (1,367,491) (416,883)
Segment assets: THEE
Reportable segment assets IERNBEE 1,039,743 562,684 2,502,427 -
Deferred tax assets ERWEEE 25,840 -
Prepaid income tax BRAEH 12,333 -
Derivative financial instruments fiEemIA 9% -
Unallocated assets AOBEE 15,138 -
Total assets BEHAE 2,555,834 -
Segment liabilities AHEE
Reportable segment liabilties IERNHEE 1,743,268 35,123 1,778,391 -
Deferred tax liabilities BEREARE 72,189 -
Income tax payable B FEH 74,872 -
Liability component of the TAREFEESH
Convertible Bonds 73,155 -
Unallocated liabilities FARAE 105,311 -
Total liabilities BEAH 2,103,918 -
Other segment information HthaHEs
Capital expenditure* BARET 1,193 - 1,193 -
Depreciation™ e 1,088 21,383 22,471 7
Impairment on trade and YR SRRF R
other receivables At Y IERE 297,851 - 297,851 300,276
Provision for guarantee losses EREERE - - - 100,308
Write-down of properties under HEEURES (VES
development to net realisable value  ATEZHE 877,554 - 877,554 -
Write-down of completed properties 145/ & B 2R 1%
held for sale to net realisable value ~ HURZ ATE R HE 12,811 - 12,811 -
Interest income from entrusted loans ZFEEF 2 F B4 - - - 2,642
* During the year, the head office did not incur any capital expenditure FR BHTEEEANEARS(ZE

TREE) BRBERDEE -

AOERTFAIRENEAR
2601,000c( ZFE T F: ARK

2,074,000 7T) °

?ﬁéj‘(

R



4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

Geographical information

(a) Revenue from external customers from continuing

4.

REDHER (&)

& & R

(a) REFACEXK I RET W

operations =
2021 2020
— B —E-FF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR ARETFTT
The PRC s 153,336 233,631
Hong Kong BH - 9,054
153,336 242,685

The revenue information above is based on the locations of the

EXZ WS ERTRERE P S

customers. ﬁ °
(b) Non-current assets (b) EREBVEE

2021 2020
—EC-—F —E-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARBTIT
The PRC B 547,398 567,978
Hong Kong B 2,094 4,995
549,492 572,973

The non-current asset information above is based on the
locations of the assets and excludes the Group’s deferred tax
assets.

Information about major customers

There was no sale to a single customer which accounted for over
10% or more of the Group’s revenue for the years ended 31 March
2021 and 2020.

EXZIERBEEEM I ENEEM
ESH - TEEA KRR ZELENRIA

FRETEREFZEHR

WENSE -—BPZHEMAEEEEC
T —FRZZTZTF=A=+—HL
FREWZSBIB10% LA L o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements ;‘\
SABmEME ~

For the year ended 31 March 2021 BE—Z-——F=A=+—HItFE \ !\

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS FROM 5. HEKE XK 2 W= - Hittlk

CONTINUING OPERATIONS AR Wz
Revenue from continuing operations mainly represents income from SECEEF WS T BIEHEEMER
the sale of properties, rental income and property management A WA RMEEERBUWA

service income.

An analysis of revenue, other income and gains from continuing BEGEER 2 W - A R
operations is presented below: AWTEINAT -
Revenue &

Year ended 31 March 2021
BE-E--F-A=t1-HILEE

Property
development Property
and management investment Total
NEBRRER NERE @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R ARETR ARETR
Revenue from contracts with BEAMBHREENE155
customers within HKFRS 15: EET2RFENKE:

Sale of properties HEME 107,142 - 107,142
Property management service income ~ #1E & BIRBUA 34,913 - 34,913
142,055 - 142,055

Revenue from other sources: HtRERIR -
Rental income HEHA - 11,281 11,281
142,055 11,281 153,336

Representing geographical markets of:  FiigHiE™ 5 -
The PRC # 142,055 11,281 153,336
142,055 11,281 153,336

Timing of revenue recognition YRR A
— At a point in time - EE-BREE 107,142 - 107,142
- Over time - BB B 34,913 11,281 46,194
142,055 11,281 153,336

@ HUA YIN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED # Z BB #Z R B R A A



5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS FROM 5. HERKE XK 2 W= - Hittlk

CONTINUING OPERATIONS (Continued) AR W (8)
Revenue (Continued) Wk (48)

Year ended 31 March 2020
B2 Z-ZFE-A=-1-HIFE

Property
development Property
and management investment Total
NEEERER MERE @it
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARBTT ARETT
Revenue from contracts with EREBHRERAE 155
customers within HKFRS 15: EET2EFAHNE
Sale of properties HEME 186,862 - 186,362
Property management service income £ EBREUA 35,231 - 35,231
222,093 - 222,093
Revenue from other sources: HtgERE -
Rental income GG/ ON - 20,592 20,592
222,093 20,592 242,685
Representing geographical PR
markets of:
The PRC # 222,093 11,538 233,631
Hong Kong 5 - 9,054 9,054
222,093 20,592 242,685
Timing of revenue recognition e swdil
- At apoint in time -EE-BER 186,862 - 186,862
- Over time - BE—REE 35,231 20,592 55,823
222,093 20,592 242,685
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e AR R M ~

For the year ended 31 March 2021 HZE=—ZT=—F=/A=+—HIFE

S\

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS FROM 5. HEKE XK 2 W= - Hittlk

CONTINUING OPERATIONS (Continued) AR (48)
Other income and gains H A & s
2021 2020
—E-—% —TE-THE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T R AREFIT
Other tax refund HEREIFIE 164 3,260
Bank interest income ERITH B HA 1 124
Sundry income FEEWA 1,293 1,596
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMBAR K - 38,478
Total other income and gains RHECE S H A R85
from continuing operations 1,458 43,458

@ HUA YIN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED # & BB 4% R A R 2 7]



OPERATIONS

6. LOSS BEFORE TAX FROM CONTINUING

The Group’s loss before tax from continuing operations is arrived at

6. HFEEERB 2B AR

gk, (GEA) THIEB R AEESE

after charging/(crediting): KR TS 2 BREL R E TS ¢
2021 2020
- —E-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T AREFIT
Cost of properties sold* EHEEMENA 202,202 231,023
Cost of services RRAS A AR 27,304 28,836
Cost of rental*™ HERA 8,339 27,379
Depreciation e
— property, plant and equipment  — 4% - 2SR 2,216 3,542
- right-of-use assets — (R EE 9,012 21,003
Staff costs (including directors’ BIRA(BREEZMNS)
emoluments):
Salaries, wages and other benefits  ¥& - TREN N E & F 19,289 17,762
Contribution to defined RERREIRETE 2 5K
contribution retirement plans 2,070 3,132
Total staff costs BTHEER 21,359 20,894
Less: Amount capitalised into W B EBRRPYE T RIE
properties under development (433) (1,439)
20,926 19,455
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2021 BE—Z-——F=A=+—HItFE

OPERATIONS (Continued)

The Group’s loss before tax from continuing operations is arrived at

after charging/(crediting) (Continued):

(&)

N

SV

6. LOSS BEFORE TAX FROM CONTINUING 6. HEBERKEXB2RBEABE

gk, (GEA) THIEB RSB E

REETE 2 BRBATER () -

2021 2020
- —E-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARETT
Auditor’s remuneration: ZEA 2 -
Audit services ZH R 1,001 1,257
Other services HAbBRTS 505 1,009
Operating lease charges in respect S HIFEE N AEWE
of office premises and other REMBEEEE
leased assets under short term KEHERE
leases 1,497 1,121
Direct operating expenses arising  REEERSRAREZE
from investment properties that L EEEERRT
generated rental income 460 1,482
Direct operating expenses arising  RE R BELERSWAKEDE
from investment properties that L EEEERY
did not generate rental income 59 32
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMBARZ K - (38,478)
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries™* & B A 7] 2 E5E - 14,627
Impairment on: VERIERE
— Property, plant and equipment ~ — #3%  #2S KR 1 3,651 -
— Goodwill -mE 4,999 -
— Trade receivables*** - JEURE B ERFR 1,836 ®)
— Other receivables™* — H At FE R IE 13,022 297,854
Write-down of properties under 1 B R R ) S R 22 T 3R R
development to net realisable
value™™ 181,935 877,554
Write-down of completed P VE L & B BB ZE MR
properties held for sale to net EREIRFE
realisable value 43,617 12,811

@ HUA YIN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED # Z BB #Z R B R A A
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6. LOSS BEFORE TAX FROM CONTINUING
OPERATIONS (Continued)

The Group’s loss before tax from continuing operations is arrived at
after charging/(crediting) (Continued):

* Included in cost of properties sold was the write-down of completed
properties held for sale to net realisable value of RMB43,617,000 (2020:
RMB12,811,000) for the year ended 31 March 2021.

**Included in the cost of rental for the year ended 31 March 2021 was
depreciation of the right-of use assets in respect of certain leased units
of the Group’s shopping mall in Baishan City, the PRC, in property
investment segment of RMB6,449,000 which was also included in the
depreciation as disclosed separately (2020: RMB19,058,000).

*** These items are included in other expenses in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

7. FINANCE COSTS FROM CONTINUING
OPERATIONS

6. ¥

BEEXRB2RBEAEE

(&)

gk, (GEA) THIEB R AEESE
X2 BRBATER (8) -

Hoke

AAEE_T-_—FZA=1+—HIFE
2 EHEMERR AR B ELEDER

TT(ZZEZZF : AR®12,811,0007T) °

HABE-T-—F=-A=+—HILFE
ZHERANAYERE DT T AREBALR
FEO LT B LETEREENZE
BiEEEIEAREB6,449,0007T + Jhat
ABBEEZFE(ZTTF : AR

19,058,0007T) °

* FEEEFAGAERER ZEMAXT

7. FEAKERB 2 ME A

2021 2020
—B-—%F —E-THF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T AREETF T
Interest on bank and entrusted RITREFTERF B
loans 91,208 80,437
Interest on Convertible Bonds AR ESRFE 7,233 7,550
Interest on other loan HEibBERFBE 4,934 528
Interest on lease liabilities HEEEFB 2,156 3,574
Other borrowing costs accrued R P Ta AR K
on receipts in advance from 2 EAEER A
customers 6,296 28,271
111,827 120,360
Less: Interest capitalised into B BRAYEZENMEF B
properties under development* (6,695) (16,998)
Total finance costs from continuing #5848 & 555 2 g B R AR 4258
operations 105,132 103,362

*

The borrowing costs have been capitalised at a rate of 7.3% per annum
(2020: 7.6% to 8.0% per annum).

* RERERARRENRTI%(ZE-F
F o FEMET.6%ZEB8.0%) BRI
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R AR

For the year ended 31 March 2021 HZE=—ZT=—F=/A=+—HIFE
8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 8. EEM<E
Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to the R ETARBREERRMEF 2 HER
Listing Rules and the disclosure requirements of Hong Kong ELNFEEEMSUT -
Companies Ordinance is as follows:
2021 2020
s ZECTF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETT
Fees we 817 881
Other emoluments: Efhhs -
Salaries, allowances and e EUMREYE
benefits in kind 2,833 2,759
Discretionary related bonuses BYIBTEAL 401 160
Pension scheme contributions RIKEFT B 30 90
3,264 3,009
4,081 3,890

@ HUA YIN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED # Z BB #Z R B R A A
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8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Continued) 8. EXM< (&)

The remuneration of each of the directors for the years ended 31 BHE_ZS-_—FN_ZF_FF=H
March 2021 and 2020 is set out below: =t HUESEERESHEWT :
Salaries, Equity-
allowances, settled share Pension
and benefits option scheme
in kind Discretionary expense contributions
Fees ie 28 bonuses NERLEE B Total
ik RENAIE KA BRERY SRR @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETR AEETT ARETT ARETR ARETR
2021 “To-f
Executive directors: H1E%:
CuiXintong ('Ms. Cur) ~ EFE(ERL]) - 2378 384 - 16 2778
Li Junjie e - 339 - - - 339
JiPing ® FR - 104 - - 14 118
X Yingchuan © fam Il - 12 17 - - 29
LiuHongjan ¢ 2o - - - - - -
Cong Peifeng® Eige 190 - - - - 190
190 2,833 401 - 30 3,454
Independent non-executive  BUFH{TES :
directors:
Tsang Hung Kel LEE 209 - - - - 209
Zhu Zuoan MR 209 - - - - 209
Wang Xiaochu =) 209 - - - - 209
627 - - - - 627
817 2,833 401 - 30 4,081
There was no arrangement under which a director waived or RAFE - WEREHESBERELR
agreed to waive any remuneration during the year. In addition, EMBEEMAMES 2LHE - It AEE
no remuneration was paid by the Group to the directors as an WERZE B EREBE - AERRBE
inducement to join, or upon joining the Group, or as a compensation 7JD 2 YjJD R E % 2 SRE kB B (2
for loss of office (2020: nil). ZETF | o
Notes: Btk -
(@) Appointed as an executive director and also the chief executive officer @ RZZEZEFNANBEZERWITES
on 8 September 2020. RATHAEH, -
(b) Appointed on 10 July 2020 and resigned on 1 March 2021, ) RZZE_ZF+LATHEZERR-Z
Z—F=R—HEHT
(c) Appointed on 1 March 2021. ) RZZZ—F=F—HAEZT-
(d) Resigned on 29 June 2020. d RZZZZTFATNAHEHE -
(e) Re-designated as an executive director on 1 March 2021. e MZZE_—F=ZA—RAATAHITES -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R AR

For the year ended 31 March 2021 HZE=—ZT=—F=/A=+—HIFE

8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Continued) 8. EEM<e (&)
The remuneration of each of the directors for the years ended 31 HE_Z-_—FN_ZT=_FF=H
March 2021 and 2020 is set out below: (Continued) “+—HIEFESESHEWT : (B)
Salaries, Equity-
allowances, settled share Pension
and benefits option scheme
inkind Discretionary expense contrioutions
Fees e 2 bonuses EREE ke Tota
ik RENFR Biga ERER HE 5 @
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBTT AREFT AREFT ARBTT ARBTT
2020 Sk 5
Executive directors: EHEEE
Ms. Cui Xt - 2509 - - 16 25%
Liu Hongjian sl - 250 160 - 74 484
- 2,759 160 - 0 3,009
Non-executive crector: ~ FE{TEE :
Cong Peifeng AL 220 - - - - 220
220 - - - - 220
Independent non-execuve  BAFH{TES :
directors:
Chan Yuk Tong ® [l 18 - - - - 18
Teang Hung Kei © LR 203 - - - - 203
Zhu Zuoan KR 20 - - - - 20
Wang Xiaochu TEN 20 - - - - 20
661 - - - - 661
881 2,759 160 - 0 3,890
Note: M=t -

@ Resigned on 30 April 2019

© Appointed on 30 April 2019

@ HUA YIN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED # & BB 4% R A R 2 7]
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9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 0. EEBSHEES

The five highest paid employees during the year included two RAFE  AEERFEERREMEE

director (2020: one director), details of whose remuneration are set F(ZEZTHF: —EEF) BE2ZMH

out in note 8 above. Details of the remuneration for the year of the SFHBEN EXHES - Ep=% (=%

remaining three (2020: four) highest paid employees who are not a ZEF OB WIHARREE 2 HR=H
director of the Company are as follows: EERAFEZMESFFBWT -

2021 2020

—B-—F —ETF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARET T

Salaries, allowances and benefits ~ #4% - 2B REYHFE

in kind 2,672 3,008
Discretionary bonuses EISTEAL 209 333
Pension scheme contributions RIKEET I 47 130

2,928 3,466
There is no arrangement under which the five highest paid EFR AEZHZeHEEWES] IR
individuals waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the RERREM S 2 ZHE o b+ RE
year. In addition, no emolument was paid by the Group to the five BYEEAOLES S ES N B
highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the 4 UEAREBNBENINBEAERE 2
Group or as compensation for loss of office (2020: nil). EEE B E (ST F |E) o
The number of non-director highest paid employees whose BMEeNTF TNy HEZEREHIEESES
remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows: ABAT -

Number of employees

EE A
2021 2020
—E-—F —EC-TE
Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z % 1,000,00078 7T
(equivalent to Nil to RMB895,000) (HHERZZE AR 895,0007T) 2 3

HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7 7T ZE 2,000,000 7 7T

(equivalent to RMB1,342,001 to ~ (HER AR 1,342,001 &

RMB1,789,000) AR#1,789,0007T) - 1
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7T Z 2,500,000 7 7T

(equivalent to RMB1,789,001 to ~ (AHER AR 1,789,001 L&

RMB2,236,000) AR ¥ 2,236,0007T) 1 -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e T ERRMEE g
For the year ended 31 March 2021 BE—Z-——F=A=+—HItFE \ \

10.INCOME TAX FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS  10.5:5 &K & X 2 FriSMH

PRC Corporate Income Tax (“CIT”) has been provided at the
applicable income tax rate on the assessable profits in accordance
with the relevant tax laws applicable to the entities in the PRC. The
statutory CIT tax rate in the PRC is 25% (2020: 25%).

No Hong Kong profits tax has been provided for the years ended
31 March 2021 as the Group incurred a loss for taxation purpose
(2020: as the Group’s unrecognised tax losses brought forward from
previous years exceeded the assessable profits).

The Group’s subsidiaries are not subject to any income tax in
Bermuda, BVI and Samoa pursuant to the respective rules and
regulations.

Land Appreciation Tax (“‘LAT”) in the PRC is levied at progressive
rates ranging from 30% to 60% on the appreciation of land
value, being the proceeds from sale of properties less deductible
expenditures including land costs, borrowing costs and other
property development expenditures. The Group has estimated,
made and included in taxation a provision for LAT according
to the requirements set forth in the relevant PRC tax laws and
regulations. Prior to the actual cash settlement of the LAT liabilities,
the LAT liabilities are subject to the final review/approval by the tax
authorities.

@ HUA YIN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED # Z BB #Z R B R A A

PEMEMSH ([DEMBH]) BRIE
BB 88 A 2 AR S AR BB R T
wmARERFTS R IREE - PED
EEREAEHERE25% (T _ZF :
25%) °

R A EERBE-E-—F= 7
=t R FEELRBER (2=
T BEANEEEZARRBASE
BRI AR BORT) - B R R E
RSB -

REARE ABERARRSREED
ZHEBRAIRRG  AEEHEB AR H
AN RS

B IR E R ([ LB ER ) Rt
BETHIE (BN & W R A AT R X
(BRELHAAR - BERANEA YR
BRI ) 18 2 TS FIE) 71 30% £ 60%
M REREFE - ARESRIEAERT
BB R REMR 2 R BT REHR L
HEREE - WAt ABRE - RERNKE
SENTIBERAE 2T LHIRE
BEERKEOBRER M



10.INCOME TAX FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS
(Continued)

The estimated withholding tax effects on the distribution of the
unremitted retained earnings of the PRC subsidiaries amounted
to approximately RMB39,463,000 (2020: RMB39,873,000). In the
opinion of the directors, these retained earnings, at the present
time, are required for financing the continuing operations of the PRC
subsidiaries and no distribution would be made in the foreseeable
future. Accordingly, no provisions for deferred taxation have been

10.FFEERB 2 EH (&)

AEFPEMBEARAREL ZREBEFZ
hET TR & 40 A A R 39,463,000
T(ZZEZZFF: AR ¥39,873,000
L)  BEERAE BERALZEREBA
FEBIESTREMNBARZHEZESR
& WA RBERTEDE - Bt &
FULE R ER TE R o

made in this respect.

2021 2020
—EB-—% =T
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT ARBFT
Current tax: BNERTRIE -
PRC CIT AR R ATIET - 241
PRC LAT F B £ I E R 5,619 6,718
5,619 6,959
Deferred tax EIERIR 681 (208,958)
Total charge (credit) from RHERE RS o (B h) 25
continuing operations 6,300 (201,999)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements i'\
e SRR M ~

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #Z—B——&=F=+—H -4 &

10.INCOME TAX FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS  10.358 & & %55 2 FriSH (&)

(Continued)
A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before tax at UTAERAARRGRERZHME QR
the statutory rates for the jurisdictions in which the Company and EMAERNEE R 2 AEREETEM
the majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax expense at ERARRREADE A < TIER X SRR E
the effective tax rates, and a reconciliation of the applicable rates (i.e., BB R E BB < B - BARIR
the statutory tax rates) to the effective tax rates, are as follows: REARE (AVEEHR) BB ERH
R E 2 MBS 2 ¥R
2021 2020
ZB-F ZCTF
RMB’000 % RMB’000 %
ARETR % AREFT %
Loss before tax BHRATER (508,899) (1,569,490)
Tax at the statutory tax rate of 25%  FRUATE AR & 25% 17 (127,225) 25 (392,373) 25
Expenses not deductiole for tax NAMBEY 49,354 (10) 100,728 ©)
Income not subject to tax BRI (1,392) - (8,697) 1
Effect on overseas tax rate differences [EIMIRER 7 52 2,044 - 3,026 -
LAT deductible for BB EAENL
PRC CIT purposes A LI ER (1,405) (1) (1,680) -
LAT T ER 5,619 (1) 6,718 -
Tax losses not recognised FERTEER 59,445 (12) 62,188 @)
Reversal of previously recognised % [EILRIHER 2
deferred tax assets ERWEEE 19,860 (0] 28,091 ©
Tax charge (credit) at the Group's R AEE BT X
effective rate HE2E
it (#H%) 6,300 (1) (201,999) 14
11.DIVIDENDS 1"MRE
The Directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend for EETEBRREREZE_T=-_—F=A8
the year ended 31 March 2021 (2020: Nil). =t+—BLEFEZAARE(ZZ=ZF
Fom|m) o
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12.LOSS PER SHARE

122.8REE

The calculation of the basic loss per share amounts is based on

the loss for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the
parent, and the weighted average of 5,760,349,000 shares (2020:
5,273,401,000 shares) in issue during the year.

The calculation of the diluted loss per share amounts is based on

the loss for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the

parent. The weighted average number of ordinary shares used in the

calculation is the number of ordinary shares in issue during the year,

as used in the basic loss per share calculation, and the weighted

average number of ordinary shares assumed to have been issued at

no consideration on the deemed exercise or conversion of all dilutive

potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares.

The calculations of basic and diluted loss per share are based on:

BREARBEDBED AR T ERERS
EAREFEANBEEEANDETRMDM
¥E S 15 #5,760,349,000 ( — T = F
F : 5,273,401,000 %) 5+ & -

BREEERNIREE QR EARER
BARGEABEFE - SAEMRZE
BRI OB ST EGREAEER
RzFADHTEBREE ARBRERR
RITESBRMAABEENERERS
BB ERERT SRR -

BREAREEER ZFETER

2021 2020
—EB-—F —ETF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARETIT
Loss 518
Loss attributable to owners N REEE AELEE
of the parent,
— continuing operations - BEREEK (515,199) (1,367,491)
— discontinued operations - BRIEEEER - (416,883)
(515,199) (1,784,374)
Effect of interest on the liability FMEHMTRRESFEES D 2 FE
component of the Convertible
Bonds 7,233 7,550
Effect of fair value loss on AR BEBEH A BRRESITESRD
the derivative component a7
of the Convertible Bonds 69 4,976
Adjusted loss attributable to N REHA AL SRR
owners of the parent
— continuing operations - BECEEK (507,897) (1,354,965)
— discontinued operations - BRIEREER - (416,883)
(507,897) (1,771,848)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #HZEZE—ZT—-—F=A=+—HIFE

12.LOSS PER SHARE (Continued)

The calculations of basic and diluted loss per share are based on:

123K E 18 (&)
SREARBEBAZHETER -

(Continued) (&)
Number of shares
BROEAE
2021 2020
—E-—F —ECFF
’000 000
T T
Shares [;:3viy
Weighted average number of ordinary 5+ & &M E A EBFTRFRNE 217
shares in issue during the year B pE T B
used in the basic loss per
share calculation 5,760,349 5,273,401
Effect of dilution — weighted average #FER/2 — T3@AR INEEFITEL
number of ordinary shares:
Convertible preference shares AT A RAE SE I 1,157,983@ 1,639,353
Convertible Bonds AR E S 103,485 103,485¢
Share options B =) —
Weighted average number of BRI B (H5E)
ordinary shares (diluted) 7,021,817 7,016,239

(@) Because the diluted loss per share amount was decreased when
taking the convertible preference shares and/or the Convertible
Bonds into account, the convertible preference shares and/or
the Convertible Bonds had an anti-dilutive effect on the basic
loss per share amount.

T

Because the exercise price of the share options were out of the
money compared to the average stock prices of the Company
during the years ended 31 March 2021 and 2020, the share
options had an anti-dilutive effect on the basic loss per share
amount for the years ended 31 March 2021 and 2020.

@ HUA YIN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED # Z BB #Z R B R A A
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13. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

The discontinued operations represented the disposal of the
Group’s financial service segment in last financial year. On 26 March
2020, Jilin World Rich Management Limited (“Jilin World Rich”), an
indirect wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into share
transfer agreements with an independent third party (the “Fengrun
Purchaser”), pursuant to which Jilin World Rich has conditionally
agreed to sell, and the Fengrun Purchaser has conditionally agreed
to purchase the entire equity interests in Jilin Province Zhongye
Business Information Advisory Company Limited (& #& & & % 75
1= BB AR A A (“JL Zhongye”) and Jilin Fengrun Business
Information Advisory Company Limited (& #& & 8 g 75 (= B %
#® A MR 2 A (“JL Fengrun”) at an aggregate consideration of
RMB122,000,000 (the “FR Guarantee Disposal”). The main assets
of JL Zhongye and JL Fengrun were an investment in a subsidiary,
namely Jilin Province Fengrun Financing Guaranty Company
Limited* (& #& )8 BRLE R B R A F]) (‘FR Guarantee”), which
was a company established in the PRC and is principally engaged in
the provision of guarantee services in the PRC. On 27 March 2020,
the FR Guarantee Disposal was completed, upon which the Group
ceased to operate the financial services business segment. The
financial service segment is treated and presented as discontinued
operations.

13.ERIEREERK

Eﬂtw%%%hﬁt*ﬂ%ﬁirﬁ
EZRSEeRBREDE - RZTZ
¢ZH—+AE’$AEZWEEQW
BRAREMEERCEEREZRABRA
Al((EaEMER)E—RBUE=7(%
BER DT RDEERZE Bt 5
MEZBRHERAELEMEEETGE
HREBEENERENBEELAE
RAR([EMPE]) REWEHEEBKE
BHAERARTEMER]) 22F
f&#E - @RAE A AR 122,000,000 7T
(MEBERLEEE]) - EMPERE
WEB EZEEEAR KB AR (B
EME G EBERRBERAR(EEE
R BIREPBUEEKILZAF]
DR FRPERRTE) 2188 - X
ZEZTF=A=++HRH EBHERD
EFHE TN WEAEETHELEZS
BUAR S HES - @ RRIE D BER A
NE2 A K IEEEETE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

N BT N
For the year ended 31 March 2021 BE—Z-——F=A=+—HItFE \ !\

14.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 149035 - WBERRE

Furniture
and fixtures
and office
equipment Leasehold Motor
HE #£8 improvements vehicles Total
S %% AE @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R ARET R ARET R AR®TR
2021 “E-—F
At 1 April 2020: R-E-TF
mA—H:
Cost AR 12,580 7,900 1,759 22,239
Accumulated depreciation ZEtE (8,759) (5,792) (1,557) (16,108)
Net carrying amount FHmFE 3,821 2,108 202 6,131
At 1 April 2020, net carrying RZE-_ZFMA
amount —B - EHFE 3,821 2,108 202 6,131
Additions B 10 53 - 63
Depreciation ik (950) (1,126) (140) (2,216)
Impairment loss WESSE (2,554) (1,035) 62) (3,651)
Exchange realignment ERTRES (5) - - (5)
At 31 March 2021, net carrying RZZE=—F=f
amount =1+—A RE¥E 322 - - 322
At 31 March 2021: RZBZ—%
=A=+-8:
Cost A 12,472 7,870 1,759 22,101
Accumulated depreciation ZETERAESR
and impairment loss (12,150) (7,870) (1,759) (21,779)
Net carrying amount EETE 322 - - 322
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14.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)  14.473¢ - #3846 (&)

Furniture
and fixtures
and office
equipment Leasehold Motor
FE £E improvements vehicles Total
e e g st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARBEFL ARETT
2020 “T-TH
At 1 April 2019; RZE-NEF
mA—A:
Cost AR 12,561 6,812 1,754 21,127
Accumulated depreciation ZHME (7,769) (3,380) (1,381) (12,530)
Net carrying amount ERTE 4,792 3,432 373 8,597
At 1 April 2019, net carrying RZE-NENA-B
amount FRTE 4,792 3,432 373 8,697
Additions NE 137 1,062 4 1,193
Disposals of subsidiaries HEMBAF (22) - - (22)
Disposals HE (71) (26) - 97)
Depreciation e (1,021) (2,352) (176) (3,549
Exchange realignment R AR 6 2 1 9
At 31 March 2020, net carrying R-ZE-FE=f
amount =t+—8 REFE 3,821 2,108 202 6,131
At 31 March 2020: RZZ_TE
ZA=1+-8:
Cost AR 12,580 7,900 1,759 22,239
Accumulated depreciation ZEHE (8,759) (5,792) (1,557) (16,108)
Net carrying amount EFRFE 3,821 2,108 202 6,131
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR MR

2
For the year ended 31 March 2021 #HZEZE—ZT—-—F=A=+—HIFE \ \«
15.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 15. REWYE
2021 2020
—E-—F —TEoTE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETIT
Carrying amount RZTZTF /=
at 1 April 2020/2019 MA—H ZBEETE 550,000 997,531
Additions =T 42,900 -
Net loss on fair NREBERAEZ FEE
value adjustment (45,800) (189,015)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMBAR - (274,756)
Exchange realignment PEH EE - 16,240
Carrying amount RZTEZ—F /=TT
at 31 March 2021/2020 —A=1+—H ZEIEE{E 547,100 550,000
At 31 March 2021 and 2020, the Group’s investment properties RZBZ—FR - _TF=—A=+—

included certain units of a shopping mall in Baishan City, Jilin

Province. These investment properties were stated at fair value and

were valued by Savills Valuation and Professional Services Limited (an

independent professional qualified valuer (the “Valuer”)).

Leasing arrangement - the Group as lessor

At the end of the reporting period, the Group leases out certain units

of the shopping mall under operating leases with average lease

terms of 1 to 20 years. These leases do not contain renewal or

termination options.

Accounting policies of lease income from operating leases are set

out in note 2.4 to the consolidated financial statements.

Although the Group is exposed to changes in the residual value

at the end of the current leases, the Group typically entered into

new operating leases and therefore will not immediately realise a

reduction in the residual value at the end of the leases. Expectation

about future residual values are reflected in the fair value of the

properties.

@ HUA YIN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED # Z BB #Z R B R A A

A AEEZEREMEBRUNENE
ALMZBYFLETEML - ZFRE
METZERABEINER YHBIER
BERMGEME - K FPRENEERE
EBEARRR ([FHEE ) E1THE

HEZH - AEEERHEA

RERPR  AEERBELLHEEHH
ETBYHRLENL FHEEHRIE
205 - ZEMES B SEME L L&
e

kEpgEHEcHERAZE
W24

TR

BEASEHBRRSEEERKFSRE
BESH AR EAKEBRETLHAE
EHE AT ERZEHELRERD
BERRREERD - BRAKRKRRRE
BEZEMRYMEZ AR EERR



15.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Leasing arrangement - the Group as lessor (Continued)

Below is the maturity analysis of undiscounted lease payments to be
received from the leasing of investment properties.

15. &Y= (&)

HEZH - AEEESEEA ()

AT BHAREME BB Z REERE
BN BT o

2021 2020

—E-—F —E T

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T AREBFT

Year 1 E—F 9,380 6,153

Year 2 E_F 4,582 4,267

Year 3 F=F 4,108 3,496

Year 4 SEmeE 3,372 3,472

Year 5 FRF 3,370 3,472

After year 5 HF1& 21,794 28,878
Undiscounted lease payments HURE 2 R BG IR E 5K

to be received 46,606 49,738

Leasing arrangement - the Group as lessee

At the end of the reporting period, certain investment properties
are held under head leases with the remaining lease term of
approximately 5 years. These leased properties are shopping mall
units in a shopping mall in Baishan in relation to operating lease
used for sub-leasing purpose. The lease contracts do not impose
restriction on the uses of the leased properties. The Group is
required to keep those leased properties in good state of repair
and return the properties in their original condition at the end of the
lease.

The total cash outflow in respect of the head leases of investment
properties is set out in note 16(b) to the consolidated financial
statements.

Commitments under leases

At 31 March 2021, the Group has no commitments under leases
in relation to investment properties that have not yet commenced
(2020: none).

HEZH - AREEREEA

RERHKR  ETREVEUNTHEEE
TRAFBERBHEPORSF - ZFHE
MERMLNFEBILH BT BN
ARBEENNKLEHE - HEART
REIHEMERNORE - AEREARRZ
FHEMERERNRIFEEIRRE - WK
HIE R B EREZRMN

REWMEZTHE RS R B RBEE NG
BB EMEE16(D) ©

HEHRGE
RZZE-_—F=-A=+—H XKEZX

ﬁﬁi&él&%i@?ﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁ*?ﬂﬁﬁﬂﬁ
HEAGH(ZZ-TF  8) -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R RMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2021 BE—Z-——F=A=+—HItFE

15.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)
Fair value hierarchy

The following table illustrates the fair value hierarchy of the Group’s
investment properties:

29
A
15. 1 &Y% (&)
AREEEZER

TRIENAEERENE L AR EESF
A&

Fair value measurement as
at 31 March 2021 using
RANTEBRA-2=-F
ZA=t-RzAREBEE

Significant Significant

Quoted prices observable unobservable

in active inputs inputs

markets (Level 2) (Level 3)

(Level 1) EATEE EXTTEE
ERMEHE BABE BAE Total
(B-%) (B=8) (B=) st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT R ARBT T AR¥TR AR¥TT

Recurring fair value RBEREY
measurement for: AREEHE:
Retail shops and car park spaces ~ ZEJE R EH(iL - - 547,100 547,100
Fair value measurement as
at 31 March 2020 using
RRATHER -_Z2-%5
ZA=t-BzAREEHE

Significant Significant

Quoted prices observable unobservable

in active inputs inputs

markets (Level 2) (Level 3)

(Level 1) EDNGIE BERTAEE
AR RE AL AL Total
(B4 (F-®) (B=H) @zt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFT ANRETT ARETT

Recurring fair value RIBEREY
measurement for: AREEFE

Retall shops and car park spaces & & REE( - - 550,000 550,000

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements
between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3
(2020: Nil).

The changes in net unrealised loss for the year included in profit or
loss for the investment properties held at the end of the reporting
period was RMB45,800,000 (2020: RMB110,000,000).

@ HUA YIN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED # Z BB #Z R B R A A
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15.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

The quantitative information of the significant unobservable inputs

and the description of valuation techniques used in Level 3 fair value

measurement are as follows:

15. &Y= (&)

BEATABRGABBZELERLSE
=R AR BEFEMAGBERTGZHR

T

Fair value at Range (weighted
31 March 2021 & 2020 average, if applicable)
RZB=-%  Valuation 5E
Description RZZZZE  techniques Unobservable inputs (¥
#R SAST-HZANEBE  fERS REFHTUBERARE WER)
RMB'000
ARBTT
(1) Self-owned portion of retail shops 507,000  Income Capitalisation rate 3.75%-4.75% (2020:
located on basement (2020: 550,000) capitaisation ~ EA(LE 3.75%-4.75%)
1 and levels 310 5 of (ZBZFF :550,000) approach Market rent RMB35.30-RMB166.0
Guangze International Shopping Center, WABAE miEle (2020: RMBA42.75-
Baishan City, the PRC RMB180.0) per
fURFEAILTEERRENT OHE—E square metre
R3ZE5EZEBEERHS 3.75%-4.75%
(Z2-%%:
3.75%-4.75%)
FEARARE35.307T
ZARE166.07L
(Z2-%F:
ANRE45TE
AR#180.07T)

Car parking spaces located on Comparable Comparable’s RMB140,000 (2020:
basement 2 of Guangze market unit selling/asking RMB150,000) per unit
International Shopping Center, transaction price GlEESf
Baishan City, the PRC approach EANzIva=t} ARE140,0007T

fun BRIl TR ZEREDRE B AR 5% EE/2E (ZE-%%:
ZfREf AR 150,0007)

(2) Leased portion of retail shops located on 40,100 Income Capitalisation rate 4.68% (2020: nil)
levels 1 to 3 of Guangze International (2020: ni) capitalisation ~ BA{LE 468%(ZE-Z% &)
Shopping Center, Baishan City, the PRC (ZZ%F : §) approach Market rent
BRI TERARENP 123, LON-vN|#: ik RMBG67.20-RMB134.30
TERERESS (2020: nil) per square metre
BEAAARE6720T
EARKA13430T
(ZE-%%:f)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 BE—Z-——F=A=+—HItFE

15.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 15. R EW = (&)

Prevailing market rents are estimated based on the independent
valuer’s view of recent letting transactions within the subject
properties and other comparable properties. The higher
the comparable’s unit selling/asking price and the lower the
capitalisation rate/the higher the market rent, the higher is the fair
value. Reversionary yield is estimated by the independent valuer
based on the risk profile of the properties being valued. The higher
the yield, the lower is the fair value.

At 31 March 2021, the Group’s investment properties with
an aggregate carrying amount of RMB507,000,000 (2020:
RMB550,000,000) were pledged to banks to secure certain of the
bank loans granted to the Group (note 24).

HUA YIN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED # Z BB #Z R B R A A

RiTminAS THREE (4 E 6D 5T 8
HEAMELREMALLMEAZHER S
ZERME - I RRZFEMER/
ZEMSMEMERBE THEESHE
= AABEER - ERKEXRTIHE
B R AR AR (4 B ¥ 3 2 BB AR (i
it amkREE - AREEYE -

KRB —F=ZA=+—8 A&£EE
42 {E A A R % 507,000,0007t (ZF =
T4 ¢ ARK550,000,0007T) ZIEY
¥EEMTIRT FAREBERTSA
FRITER 2 E IR @ (H5E24) ©
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16.RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS, LEASE RECEIVABLES 16.f£fifE&E -  HEEWNKEARK

AND LEASE LIABILITIES HESE
The Group as lessor AEBEEALHBEA
(a) Lease receivables under finance lease (a) BMEHEETTHEREKRE
2021 2020
—B-—F —ECTHF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBTT
Net investment B FRE - 3,416
Allowance for ECL TBEEEEEEE - S
S 3,416

Information about the Group’s exposure to credit risks and loss
allowance for lease receivables is included in note 36 to the
consolidated financial statements.

As disclosed in note 15, the Group also has self-owned and
leased portions of shopping mall units in Baishan City, the PRC,
which is classified as investment properties. With these owned
and leased shopping mall units, the Group’s management re-
zoned the shopping mall based on its business and marketing
strategies and subleased to tenants.

BRASERAEREGAMEEREE
Rk & B R R 2 B BN R A I 5 R
RMEESG

M IS RE  ARETKES
FrlARMRFEB LT 2By HO0E
i DBERREWE - ERZEFCHEAE
LREERYTLOEN  AEEEEER
BEXBLRMSERREREDEYT
O IAETFES -
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Notes to the Cor]solidated Financial Statements if\
e AR R M ~
L

For the year ended 31 March 2021 HZE=—ZT=—F=/A=+—HIFE

16.RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS, LEASE RECEIVABLES 16.f£fifE&E HEEWKER

AND LEASE LIABILITIES (Continued) HESE (&)

The Group as lessor (Continued) AEBEEALBA(E)

(a) Lease receivables under finance lease (Continued) (a) MEHEE THEEKE (B)
Below is a maturity analysis of lease payments receivable and AT AEWHEERN R BESITAR
the reconciliation of undiscounted lease payments to the net REGRAE N RERE R R -
investment.

2021 2020
- TR
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T R AREEFTT
VYear 1 FE—F - 3,178
Year 2 F_F - 388
Year 3 E=F - 52
Undiscounted lease payments 1§ U B 2 A BLIRFAE 30
to be received - 3,618
Less: unearned finance income & : R BREREL & UL A - (202)
Net investment (net of ECL) W& FE (R BEHEREER) - 3,416
Current portion mENEL D - 2,970
Non-current portion ERBNE - 446
The finance income on net investment and the loss on FHRNERZIE FEBMEWA RS LE
derecognition of right-of-use assets upon subleases classified ARMEREZ AMKIEERZER
as finance lease recognised during the year amounting BEE BB B A AR 239,000
to RMB239,000 (2020: RMB161,000) and RMBnil (2020: T(ZZE=FF : AR¥161,0007T)
RMB16,464,000) respectively. RARBZT(ZZE-ZF : ARK

16,464,000 7T) °
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16.RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS, LEASE RECEIVABLES
AND LEASE LIABILITIES (Continued)

The Group as lessee
(b) Right-of-use assets

The Group leases certain shopping mall units in Baishan City and
office and other premises in Hong Kong. The leases have non-
cancellable lease terms ranging from one to three years. None of
the leases includes variable lease payment terms, extension and
termination options.

16.EAEEE HEEBWFHIER
*EEE{E("E)

REEER/EEA
(b) EREEE

AEBEHEER LT ZETEYFRLE
N RBBRANEREMYE - ZFH
EAATA RS E K - BN T
—Z=F - EAEsSAERAEN
TR ERRRIEERE -

Office and
other premises Shopping
WAE mall units Total
Hits BURLEN @t
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFTT ARETT
Reconciliation of carrying amount JEEE 2 - BZ
-yearended 31 March 2021~ =¥=—F=A=+-AILFE
At 1 April 2020 RZEZTFMA—H 4,948 6,449 11,397
Additions /‘E - 44,185 44,185
Derecognition upon subleases PRABARENERBE EER
classified as investment
properties - (44,185) (44,185)
Depreciation ik (2,563) (6,449) (9,012)
Exchange realignment R AR (315) - (315)
At 31 March 2021 RZE--F=A=1-H 2,070 - 2,070
At 31 March 2021 RZEZ—F=A=+—H
Cost R 6,702 - 6,702
Accumulated depreciation ZEE (4,632) - (4,632)
2,070 - 2,070
Reconciliation of carrying amount JREEZHE - B2
- year ended 31 March 2020 “ECEEZRA=t-HULEE
At 1 April 2019 - Upon adoption RZE-NFRA—A - RE#H
of HKFRS 16 BRUHREEAF 1651 175 47,125 47,300
Additions NE 6,297 - 6,297
Depreciation Tﬁ% (1,945) (19,058) (21,003
Derecognition upon subleases PHAEAREEERRLRR
classified as finance lease - (21,618) (21,618)
Exchange realignment AR 41 - 421
At 31 March 2020 Sy = 4,948 6,449 11,307
At 31 March 2020 R-_Z_ZF=R=1-H
Cost KA 6,893 17,386 24,279
Accumulated depreciation ZEHE (1,945) (10,937) (12,882)
4,948 6,449 11,397

Loss on revaluation of RMB1,285,000 (2020: nil) was recognised
in the statement of profit or loss at the date of reclassification from
right-of-use assets to investment properties.

CERREEEN D BERENEE
RERZEHERERaRTERR

AR #128500c (= -F ¢
) o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 BE—Z-——F=A=+—HItFE

\

16.RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS, LEASE RECEIVABLES 16.f£fifE&E HEEWKER

AND LEASE LIABILITIES (Continued)

The Group as lessee (Continued)

(b) Right-of-use assets (Continued)
Restrictions or covenants

Except for the lease of shopping mall units in Baishan that is
allowed for sublease, most of the leases impose a restriction
that, unless approval is obtained from the lessor, the right-of-use
asset can only be used by the Group. The Group is prohibited
from selling or pledging the underlying assets. The Group is
required to keep those properties in a good state of repair and
return the properties in their original condition at the end of the
lease.

Income from subleasing and lease payments

The Group has recognised the following amounts for the year:

HESE(E)
REBEREEA (B)

(b) EREEE (&)

PR =R 22

BREEEESH BT ZEYH O
BAIHN - BRIEERISHAARLAE - BRI
RBOHEEFTBRS - ERAEEERE
AHEAEEER - ARETNFHER
EREREE - ~AEBEABZFNE
REFRIFAEEN - WA HERERE
BRERAMAREZEDE

FHEZBARBENK

AEBENAFREERBATERE

2021 2020
—E-—F —EEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T AREEFTT
Income from subleasing DRz WA
— right-of-use assets - EREEE - 5,555
Lease payments: MEMK -
Short-term leases SR RN 1,497 1,121
Expenses recognised in profit A8 FER 2 B
or loss 1,497 1,121
Lease payments: MENR:
Interest on lease liabilities HEBEZME 2,156 3,674
Repayment of lease liabilities ~ EEEEAE 28,532 24,409
30,688 27,983
Total cash outflow for leases ~ TAEIR & LB 32,185 29,104
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16.RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS, LEASE RECEIVABLES
AND LEASE LIABILITIES (Continued)

The Group as lessee (Continued)
(b) Right-of-use assets (Continued)
Commitments under leases

At 31 March 2021, the Group was committed to RMB1,061,000
(2020: RMB1,583,000) for short-term leases.

16.EAEEE  HEBKWRER
HESE (&)

AEEFEREEA (8)
(b) EREEE (F)
HEARE
KRB —F=A=+—H  &&E

A2 EAE AR 1,061,0007T
(ZZE=ZF : AR¥A1,583,0007T) °

(c) Lease liabilities (c)HEAE
2021 2020
— B —E-FF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETFTT

Lease liabilities HEB®E

Current portion BIHEAER > 12,246 27,577
Non-current portion JERNEREL 7 32,682 2,016
44,928 29,593
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e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2021 BE—Z-——F=A=+—HItFE
17.DEFERRED TAX 17 EERE
The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during the year AFEEREMBAGREEZEHN
are as follows: N
Deferred tax liabilities EEREEE
Revaluation
of properties
Depreciation under
allowance development
and fair value  and completed
change of  properties held
investment for sale
properties BREPNE
REN%E REFLE
TERER EERNE Prepaid tax Others Total
DMEEED ZEf BARE it - h
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBTT AREFTT ARETT ARETT
At 1 April 2019 RZE-NFEA—H 102,928 205,946 2,635 3,830 315,339
Charged/(credited) to profitor loss -~ 18/ (3t ) Bz (27,220) (205,946) 49 27534 (205,583)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHBAT 6,500) - - (31,364) (37,864)
Exchange realignment B AR 297 - - - 297
At 31 March 2020 RZZ-ZF=A=+-H 69,505 - 2,684 - 72,189
At 1 April 2020 RZE-EFNA—H 69,505 - 2,684 - 72,189
Credited to profit or loss SRR (10,750) - (885) - (11,635)
Reclassffied as disposal ERBARELEL
group held for sale HEAR - - (1,270) - (1,270)
At 31 March 2021 N-—E--F=A=+-H 58,755 - 529 - 59,284

@ HUA YIN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED # Z BB #Z R B R A A

V.



17.DEFERRED TAX (Continued) 17.
Deferred tax assets
Deemed
profit

Tax losses for pre-sales
HEER  AEEERN
RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETT YN S

ERERIE (58)
BEEREEE
Other
Impairment temporary
losses differences Total
HESSE HiEE2E fst
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETR IN: S ARETR

At1 April 2019 RZZ-NEmA-A 35,681 5,640 18,405 2,927 62,653
Credited/(charged) to profitor loss 3t A/ (1B B) 4 (29,955) 2,374 (579) 1,387 (26,773)
Disposal of subsidiaries LEMRBAT (5,971) - - (4,314) (10,285
Exchange realignment B A A 245 - - - 245
At 31 March 2020 R-ZE-ZF=F=+-H - 8,014 17,826 - 25,840
At 1 April 2020 R-Z-ZFNF—H - 8,014 17,826 - 25,840
Charged to profit or loss Billi=p = - 315 (12,631) - (12,316)
At 31 March 2021 RZE--F=f=1-H - 8,329 5,195 - 13,524

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the
following items:

WA 518 B R 2 EEHRIREE -

2021 2020
—EC-—F —E-TF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T AREEFIT

Tax losses FHIEEs 18 752,682 503,376

The above tax losses are available indefinitely for offsetting against
future taxable profits of the companies in which the losses arose
except for tax losses of RMB446,285,000 (2020: RMB221,013,000)
that related to subsidiaries operating in the PRC that can be offset
against future taxable profits of the respective subsidiaries for a
maximum of five years from the year in which the losses were
incurred of which RMB45,399,000 (2020: RMB13,582,000) will
expire in the following year. Deferred tax assets have not been
recognised in respect of the above items as it is not considered
probable that taxable profits will be available against which the
above items can be utilised.

LA EFRTEE B n] R HR A LA S EE AR °%
EEB AR BBERTER - 1EH
AR B B A T FRIEEEA
R #446,285000.( Z T T F : A
R # 221,013,000t ) 7] A {E K $5 40 78
MEARBRERT S - REHEEE
EREZFERBI&ZRF EFAR
¥ 45,399,000 L( ZE=FF : AR
13,582,0007T ) #4 PR BR S B HY o | PR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2021 BE—Z-——F=A=+—HItFE

18.PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT AND

BERPYRRIFFLECEK

COMPLETED PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE /S
2021 2020
—B-—F —T_THF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETT
Properties under development BEREAYE 1,962,791 1,843,972
Completed properties held for sale  #{EHE D &R 295,284 700,139
2,258,075 2,544,111
Write-down of properties under BEERERSELE
development and completed BRI MR E Al 375 E
properties held for sale to
net realisable value (1,046,251) (943,848)
1,211,824 1,600,263
2021 2020
—B-—F —E_TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
Properties under development R AR¥T AREFIT
Properties under development TEHIR E B AEER T DA
expected to be completed MEEEZBRPYE
within normal operating cycle TERTRA NI ALY E
and classified as current assets,
are expected to be recoverable:
Within one year —FR 1,865,096 1,843,972
Over one year —FHALE 97,695 -
1,962,791 1,843,972

The Group’s properties under development and completed
properties held for sale situated in the PRC are stated at lower of
cost and net realisable value and held on leases between 40 and 70
years.

At 31 March 2021, certain of the Group’s properties under
development and completed properties held for sale of
RMB644,800,000 (2020: RMB858,213,000) and RMB11,034,000
(2020: RMB: nil) respectively, were pledged to banks to secure
certain of the bank loans granted to the Group.

@ HUA YIN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED # Z BB #Z R B R A A
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18.PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT AND

COMPLETED PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE
(Continued)

The movement of the write-down of properties under development
and completed properties held for sale to net realisable value during
the year is as follows:

1BERPYWERRIFFELHECEK

Y= (%)

FA- BERTOERFIELEDEX
MEMRE R R FE 2 EEBIT

2021 2020

—B-—F —E-THF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR%T R ARETTT

At 1 April 2020/2019 W-E-BF/—E—NFEMNA—HR 943,848 53,483

Increase in the write-down R 0 225,552 890,365
Reclassified as disposal BN EARERE 2 HEHRR

group held for sale (123,149) -

At 31 March 2021/2020 R-B-—F/—T-FF
=A=+—H 1,046,251 943,848

During the six months ended 30 September 2020, the Group wrote
down its properties under development by RMB442.3 million as
a result of re-estimation of the net realisable value of a project in
Fusong County, Jilin Province of the PRC (the “Fusong Property
Project”). The management had held various discussions with
the local government of Changbaishan District, Fusong County
(“Fusong Government”) for a possible buy back of the undeveloped
land parcels (“Fusong Undeveloped Land”) of the Fusong Property
Project at consideration of the original land acquisition price which is
approximately RMB312.4 million. Based on the above, the Group’s
management has reassessed the net realisable value of the Fusong
Property Project; and made a further write-down of the properties
under development of approximately RMB442.3 million for the six
months ended 30 September 2020. Such write-down was made
consequential to the discussions with the Fusong Government
on the possible buy-back of the Fusong Undeveloped Land; and
with reference to a letter from the Fusong Government dated 21
September 2020 setting out the maximum buy-back consideration
offered by the Fusong Government. No independent property
valuation was carried out by valuer on the Fusong Property Project
as of 30 September 2020.

HEZZEZZTFNA=+HILAEA
KPR EEREENEEE ([BAFEM
EBEE MR FEETENTG
% AEBEHRHEZERIPUEMBAR
442,300,000 7T ° & 2 [E B AN
B & B W R 75 BT (TR L) 3t
EHOEBRLAESIHEERR 2 AREN
T (R RFEE L) 1T E
W REAELHNRKREENHNARE
312,400,0007T c ER Ll [RE - K&
HEEBEEEEHMTHEBENELEER®
AERFE UEHEZT-TFNA
=tHIEANEAYEREP Y EETE—
R E #) A R # 442,300,000 7T ° 5% R
B2 4538 B A TR AT St 1] 88 [l B AL R
R THETTRIMATIERD © WRZ N
BRR-—E_TF LA+ —ABEN
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR M

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #HZEZE—ZT—-—F=A=+—HIFE

18.PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT AND 18.
COMPLETED PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE
(Continued)

In the second half of the financial year, the Group continued to look
for other potential buyers and had ongoing discussions with these
potential buyers for divestment of the Fusong Property Project within
a short period of time. After identified several potential independent
third party buyers and for the year-end accounting purpose, the
management engaged Savills Valuation and Professional Services
Limited (the “Valuer”) in April 2021 to carry out a valuation of the
Fusong Property Project as of 31 March 2021. The net realisable
value of approximately RMB644.8 million as at 31 March 2021
was determined by the Group’s management with reference to the
property valuation of the Fusong Property Project and applying a
discount factor on such valuation result with the assumption for a
short term sale within three months, which gave rise to a reversal
of the write-down by approximately RMB260.4 million during the
second half of the financial year.

The said valuation of the Fusong Property Project as of 31 March
2021 was carried out on a bare land basis and based on a direct
comparison approach by making reference to comparable land
transactions as available in the market, which was consistent with
that for the previous financial year end (i.e. 31 March 2020). The
accommodation values of comparable undeveloped land, as the
major input for the valuation, ranged from RMB1,250 per sg.m. to
RMB3,082 per sg.m.. In addition, it was determined by the Group’s
management that the discount rate to be applied on the valuation
of the Fusong Property Project is 38%, taking into account of a
possible discount range of 20% to 45% on the basis that the sale
will be completed within three months as advised by the Valuer.

At 31 March 2021, the Group has accumulated write downs on
its properties under development of RMB1,012.9 million (2020:
RMB877.6 million) mainly relating to the Fusong Property Project.
Such write downs are as a result of a re-estimation of the net
realisable value of the Fusong Property Project taking into account of
the negotiation with potential buyer and the persistently unfavourable
operating environment in the project’s surrounding area in Fusong
County. Therefore, the Group decided to suspend the Fusong
Property Project and estimated the net realisable value with the
assumption of possible divestment of the Fusong Property Project in
near future. The net realisable value of the Fusong Property Project
was determined by the management with reference to the valuation
performed by the Valuer. The remaining accumulated write downs
of RMB33.3 million (2020: RMB66.3 million) was mainly related to
completed properties held for sale as a result of a decrease in the
expected selling price.
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19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

The Group has recognised the following amounts for the year:

19. BN E Z IR R E M EUWFIE

AEBERAFRERERATEE

2021 2020
—E-—F —E T
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T AREEFTT
Trade receivables JEUE FERFR 19,512 18,097
Less: provision for impairment R ERE (5,691) (4,135)
@) 13,821 13,062
Other receivables: EL A FEIRIR -
Deposits for land THBERAS ZIES
development expenditure (b) 22,095 337,487
Deposits for construction and BERBERBZES
pre-sale of projects (c) 6,741 31,496
Prepaid business tax and TEEER R EMTIR
other taxes 15,367 19,622
Consideration receivable from &S EER 2 IR E
the disposal of FR Guarantee (d) - 122,000
Other receivables, prepayments ~ H b fEUFkIE - Fa
and deposit FIERIEE 45,936 76,085
Less: provision for impairment B R ERE (e) (64,279) (308,802)
25,860 277,888
Total trade and other receivables  [EUE 5 B8R & E b fEUR FTE
4ERE 39,681 291,850

(@) In respect of property sales, no credit terms are granted to
purchasers. For property investment and property management,
the respective rental income and property management income
are settled in accordance with the terms stipulated in the
agreements, most of which are settled in advance. In particular,
sufficient rental deposits are received to minimise credit risk.
The carrying amounts of the receivables approximate to their fair
values. Trade receivables are non-interest-bearing.

At 31 March 2021 and 2020, trade receivables are primarily
related to revenue recognised from the provision of property
management service and leasing of properties.

(@) MYEHEMS - ERABEREE
B mERERYMEEENS - B
WA R E E WA TR B W P
FIBRIERFREE NS - K& RIEA
- ABME  ARESWIUEHHE
ERENEERKEERR - UK
R EREERENAEERS - BK
BIRATEFE -

=

RZBEZ—FM=_ZT_FF=A
=+—H8 BUWEZERREZEREHR
MEEERERYELERIBWBAST
e
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 BE—Z-——F=A=+—HItFE
19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued) 19.

(@) (Continued)

The ageing analysis of the trade receivables (net of allowance for
doubtful debts) by the invoice date as at the end of the reporting
period is as follows:

\

FEW & 5 Bk I EL b FE WL R IR
(&)

@@ (&)
RERPAZEWE SRR FOKRR

RIRRBE) RWERBMZ5 2R
DT

2021 2020

—B-—F —T-FTF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR%T T ARETTT

Within 30 days 30K~ 1,813 1,538
31 days—-180 days 31 RE180K 5,917 6,651
Over 180 days B8 180K 6,091 5,773
13,821 13,962

The ageing analysis of trade receivables that are not individually

TRAERREREBRREZEKRE S

nor collectively considered to be impaired is as follows: RN BRI AT
2021 2020
—EC-—F —E-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARETTT
Neither past due nor impaired 1 £ BislEE 29 50
29 50
Less than 30 days past due BHEIS0 B AT 1,784 1,488

Over 30 days and less than BHABO A 1180 HEAT

180 days past due 5,917 6,651
Over 180 days past due BHI180 H A E 6,091 5,773
13,792 13,912
13,821 13,962
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19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued) 19.JEINE Z IR K Hb FEW R IE
()
(Continued) (@) (#&)
Movements in provision for impairment of trade receivables are FEWE ZERFOBERBEE T
as follows:
2021 2020
—B-—F —E-THF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARETFT
At 1 April 2020/2019 NZT-_TF /T NFMNA—H 4,135 4,138
Charged/(credited) to profit or ~ ERFIE (FHA) BzE
loss during the year 1,836 3)
Reclassified as disposal EROEARHEZLEAR
group held for sale (280) -
At 31 March 2021/2020 N —F /T _TF
=A=+—H 5,691 4,135

The balances represented monies advanced to the local
government for land development works at land sites. The
Group will be reimbursed for the amount advanced to the local
government in carrying out the land development irrespective of
whether or not the Group will obtain the land use rights of the
land in the future.

The balances mainly represented various deposits paid to local
government authorities directly attributable to the construction of
property projects which would be refundable upon completion of
the development projects.

(d) The balance represented the consideration receivable of

RMB122,000,000 relating to the FR Guarantee Disposal. Details
of the disposal are set out in the note 13 to the consolidated
financial statements. The consideration receivables has been
fully settled during the year.

(o) ZEHEMRIER LI LM AR~ T3 BE
RIBHEE FEWBT IR - BiR
1S RA R E R DS Z M2 T
PR - AREBEBEENREIT T
BERBIERRE BT S 258 -

() BHRIBEERRAZEMEAEBLZ
FHENEHBAHRE 2 ZE - AR
HRIAE THRIRE °

(d) A2 HEREESE ZEWRE
AEﬁéﬁzz 000,0007T » HEFIESH
RERE IS RERMI 13 - FEUWARE
EREREEER -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR MR ~

For the year ended 31 March 2021 HZE=—ZT=—F=/A=+—HIFE

L W

19.TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued) 19.FBUt & 3 AR X & H fib B UL TR

(#&)
(e) Movement in provision for impairment of other receivables are as () HMEWFIBRERE 2T -
follows:

2021 2020
—E-—F —E_TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARETTT
At 1 April 2020/2019 R-_T_TF /T NFMA—A 308,802 26,948
Charge to profit or loss RERIG BB
during the year
— Continuing operations — B RE TS 13,022 297,854
— Discontinued operations - BRIEREEE - 300,276
Disposal of subsidiaries HENBAR - (316,276)
Reclassified as disposal ENOBARELE 2 HEAR
group held for sale (257,545) -
At 31 March 2021/2020 R-B-_—F/—F-_FF
=A=+—H 64,279 308,802

BRASEEMEURREEERR 2 #
—HEMERER S B TS MAR ML 36 ©

Further information about the Group’s credit risks on other
receivables is included in note 36 to the consolidated financial
statements.

20.CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 20.B&2RRESZEEYWUREIEF

),!"

PLEDGED AND RESTRICTED DEPOSITS R ZREEFER
2021 2020
—B--F T
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
BifsE AR¥ET T ARET T
Cash and bank balances R MRS 126,653 49,509
Less: Restricted bank deposits B HEEMEERL
under pre-sale of properties R EIRITIER (@ (8,715) (19,009)
Cash and cash equivalents ReEMRLZEY 117,938 30,500
Cash and cash equivalents DEAFEHEARES
attributable to disposal group BeRBEED
classified as held for sale 396 -
As stated in consolidated RiFERESRERTIE
statement of cashflows 118,334 30,500
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20.CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND
PLEDGED AND RESTRICTED DEPOSITS
(Continued)

(@ In accordance with relevant policies issued by the PRC local
State-owned Land and Resource Bureau applicable to all
property developers, the Group is required to place certain of the
proceeds received from the pre-sale of properties as guarantee
deposits for the construction of the properties. The restriction will
be released when the construction is completed. The restricted
cash earns interest at floating daily bank deposit rates.

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank balances
of the Group denominated in RMB amounted to RMB52,041,815
(2020: RMB42,823,000). RMB is not freely convertible into other
currencies, however, under PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control
Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of
Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange
RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to conduct
foreign exchange business.

0.RERREFF/Y UK EEKHF
REZRHFRE)

(@) RIEFEMTBELERBBRMERR

PrEBEERZR ZHBBER - A%
EARRBEYM R K B THEH
RIERBEME NS ° ZRHIER
TR2R TR IERRRR - XIRFIMESILF
BE B RITERNRRIFA LS -

REWR - FEEUARETEZ
Re RRITESRBARS2,041,815
T(ZZZFF : AR 42,823,000
L) ARBTBEBRLARAEEME
K& o SRTM - ARAR AR B SNE B IR M A
NAEE - BEERMNESEBRTE - A%
EEAEFREREREINERES 2R
TEBAREEBRAEME -
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A + 23
mE IR g
For the year ended 31 March 2021 #HZEZE—ZT—-—F=A=+—HIFE \ \
21.TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 21. B E FIRF K HAbE R IE
2021 2020
—E-—fF —T-TF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
BsE ARBTR ARBTT
Trade payables FERE S IR @) 56,587 126,437
Accrued construction costs TEIREEK A 271,097 338,187
Interest payable eS8, 94,571 44,481
Deposits received from WER B TR &
the government (b) - 14,501
Other creditors and accruals H b e FIE N ERTE R 48,995 97,761
Other deposits received BREMES 35,960 26,138
507,210 647,505
(@) An ageing analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the (@ MERMARZENE FRFIZEER
reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows: HIZ25 2 BRER D HTRAT -
2021 2020
—EB-—%F —E-THF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARETTT
Within 30 days KOFNA 13,627 43,164
31 days—-180 days 31 RE180K 19,929 59,150
Over 180 days HBiBE180K 23,031 24,123
56,587 126,437
(b) The amount represented the deposits received from the (o) ZFEEAXSEGEHEERREM
government as the Group is responsible for the construction MBFRE 2 ZE - BIEETRNF
of commodity housing which includes but is not limited to bRt EIRBET - RHEARREE
the removal of the existing buildings situated on the land, the R (BEBE - YkES - oK
provision of infrastructure systems including roads, drainage HARBEE) RERALFZIE - %X
system, water, gas and electricity supply and the construction EREERREE - RN IIER
of public facilities. The amount was unsecured and interest-free THERERF R-ZZE-_—F=A8
and the remaining amount will be refunded to the government =+—H GHREEFHERHNE
after the construction is completed. As at 31 March 2021, the RIFEHE CHEBABFREEE -

balance was reclassified as Liabilities associated with disposal
group classified as held for sale.
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22, CONTRACT LIABILITIES

L =] II\,J E 135

2021 2020

—EB-—& =EE s

Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

BsE ARBTR ARBFT

Deposits from sale of properties ~ $HEWHEZ & (@) 216,718 223,695
Receipt in advance from TEWEEREER

management services (b) 11,192 10,831

227,910 234,526

The movements (excluding those arising from increases and
decreases both occurred within the same year) of contract liabilities
from contracts with customers within HKFRS 15 during the year are

FA - REEEWE
JE/—\%W&*Z/—\ 'UE\TE

ERIE 155 R
B (T RERE

as follows:
2021 2020
—E-—F BT
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AR#EFIT
At 1 April 2020/2019 R-ZE-TF /“FT—-NFMNA—A 234,526 273,890
Additions nNE 172,371 135,597
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 13)  HEH B A) (MizE13) - (17,257)
Recognised as revenue R AW (68,978) (157,704)
Reclassified as liabilities associated E# DB A EHE Y
with disposal group held for sale ~ £E AR BE (110,009) -
At 31 March 2021/2020 RZZTZ—F /ZT=FF
—A=+—H 227,910 234,526
At 31 March 2021, the amount of transaction price which is RZEBEZ—F=A=+—H  2BEEXK

allocated to the performance obligations that are unsatisfied,
expected to be satisfied within one year and more than one year are
RMB183,127,000 (2020: RMB65,839,000) and RMB95,573,000
(2020: RMB247,566,000) respectively. The amounts included the
contract liabilities as disclosed above.

At 31 March 2021, the contract liabilities that are expected to be
settled after more than 12 months are RMB88,530,000 (2020:
RMB180,602,000).

J@ﬁZJ@%@fEZ?&%FV@%ﬁEHﬂ%

FR—FAR—FREE "
#183,127,000 L (ZE =&

DRI/AR

F AR

65,839, 0007_5) N A R #95,573,000 7T
(ZZ T4 : AR¥E247,566,0007T) °
FAGHEBEZESEN EXHE -

ﬁéfg:—izﬂ =+—H FEHRE

BTH-—EAREEZA

MEERAR

# 88,530,000 L(ZE_FF : AR¥

180,602,000 7T) °
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 BE-—T-——F=A=1+—HILFE

22, CONTRACT LIABILITIES (Continued)

The Group received payments from customers based on billing
schedules as established in the property sales or rental contracts.
Payments are usually received in advance of the performance under
the contracts.

(@) Deposits from sales of properties represent sale proceeds
received from customers in connection with the Group’s pre-
sale of properties. The deposit will be transferred to profit or loss
when the Group’s revenue recognition criteria are met.

(b) Receipt in advance from management services represent the
property fee received in advance for property management. The
receipts will be transferred to profit or loss when the Group’s
revenue recognition criteria are met.

23.LOANS FROM A CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDER

Loans from a controlling shareholder are unsecured, interest-free
and repayable on demand.
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24.BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

4. BT REMER

2021 2020
—EB-—& =EE s
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
BsE ARBTR ARBFT
Current BER
Bank loans — secured RITER - AHEA () 130,897 355,897
Other loans — unsecured HMER - #EH (ii) - 22,000
Other loans — secured HiER - HEH (iii), (v) 17,600 17,600
Entrusted loan LLER (iv), (v) 300,000 300,000
448,497 695,497
Non-current JEENER
Bank loans — secured wITER - AHEA () 351,593 170,690
351,593 170,690
800,090 866,187
2021 2020
—E-—F —E T
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREEFTT
Analysed into: DA
Bank loans and entrusted AR T EAfEEE 2 RTT
loan repayable: BERRETEN
Within one year or on demand —FARTHIZENR 430,897 655,897
In the second year F_F 60,897 56,897
In the third to fifth years, inclusive FE=ZFNLF (BIEEREMF) 290,696 113,793
782,490 826,587
Other borrowings repayable: AN THIEEEERE 2 BB E -
Within one year —FR 17,600 39,600
800,090 866,187
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For the year ended 31 March 2021

BA RS ER AR B T

BE_ZT_—F=-A=t—HILFE

24.BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (Continued)

Notes:

M

Included in the secured bank loans as at 31 March 2021 are loan balances
of RMB70,000,000 (31 March 2020: RMB70,000,000), RMB170,690,000
(31 March 2020: RMB227,587,000), RMB232,000,000 (31 March 2020:
RMB200,000,000) and RMB9,800,000 (31 March 2020: Nil) bearing
interests at a fixed rate of 7.83% per annum, a fixed interest rate of 5.39%
per annum, a fixed rate of 7.3% per annum and a fixed rate of 7.6% per
annum respectively.

The bank loan of RMB70,000,000 is secured by the 60% equity interests
of HMEEEWEAEFR QA and the bank loans of RMB170,690,000,
RMB232,000,000, and RMB9,800,000 are secured by pledges of the
properties under development with carrying values of RMB462,500,000
(81 March 2020: RMB858,213,000), investment properties with fair value
of RMB507,000,000 (31 March 2020: RMB550,000,000) and completed
properties with carrying amounts of RMB11,034,000 (31 March 2020:
Nil) respectively.

As at 31 March 2021, a secured bank loan of RMB29,000,000 (31
March 2020: RMB29,000,000) bearing interests at benchmark interest
in the PRC plus margin of 120% and the bank loans is guaranteed
by an independent third party guarantee company where the Group
provided a counter guarantee in favour of the independent third party for
its obligations to guarantee the payment obligations was reclassified as
liabilities associated with disposal group classified as held for sale.
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24.BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(i)

(i

As at 31 March 2021, the other loan of RMB22,000,000 was unsecured,
bears a fixed interest rate of 24% per annum and repayable on demand
(81 March 2020: RMB22,000,000 which was unsecured, interest free
and is repayable on demand). The balance was reclassified as liabilities
associated with disposal group classified as held for sale.

During the year, the secured other loan of RMB17,600,000 bore interests
at a fixed rate of 12% per annum and was secured by 80% equity
interests of & M1 22 X & Hb & F 8 B IR 2 8] (Jilin Zhujia Real Estate
Development Company Limited*). The loan was guaranteed by personal
and corporate guarantees of certain connected parties of the Company.

(iv) The entrusted loans as at 31 March 2021 are loan balances

of RMB100,000,000 (31 March 2020: RMB100,000,000) and
RMB200,000,000 (31 March 2020: RMB200,000,000).

During the year, the entrusted loan of RMB100,000,000 bore interest at
a fixed rate of 8% and was secured by properties under development
held by the Group with carrying amount of RMB182,300,000 as at
31 March 2021 (2020: RMB254,666,000).

During the year, the entrusted loan of RMB200,000,000 bore interest at
a fixed rate of 12% per annum and was secured by a second charge of
properties under development with carrying amounts of RMB644,800,000
as at 31 March 2021 (31 March 2020: RMB858,213,000) and 66.4%
equity interests of ¥EWARHAILEZREMEFRAT (Fusong
Changbaishan Ground Tourism Development Company Limited).

As at 31 March 2021, the lender has agreed to renew the entrusted
loans of RMB100,000,000 and RMB200,000,000 and other loan of
RMB17,600,000; however, the terms of the loans to be renewed are yet
to finalised up to the date of this report.
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 #HZEZE—ZT—-—F=A=+—HIFE
25.DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND

CONVERTIBLE BONDS

On 27 July 2016, the Company issued an aggregate principal
amount of HK$500 million (equivalent to approximately RMB430
million on the issue date) convertible bonds which are due on 27
July 2021 (the “Convertible Bonds”) as part of the considerations
in respect of the Ka Yun Acquisition. The Convertible Bonds are
convertible into the Company’s ordinary shares of HK$0.05 each
at an initial conversion price of HK$0.85 per share subject to
adjustments. The interest rate is 2% per annum payable semi-
annually in arrears each year before the maturity date.

The conversion rights are exercisable at any time from the date of
issue of the Convertible Bonds up to the maturity date of 27 July
2021, provided that any conversion does not result in the public
float of the Company’s shares being less than 25% (or any given
percentage as required by the Listing Rules).

The Convertible Bonds are not transferrable without the prior written
consent of the Company.

The Company may at any time before the maturity date redeem
the Convertible Bonds (in whole or in part) at 100% of its principal
amount.

The Company has not early redeemed any portion of the Convertible
Bonds during the year.

On 29 March 2017, the Convertible Bonds in the principal amount
of HK$212,500,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB188,211,250
on the conversion date) were fully converted into 250,000,000
ordinary shares of the Company at the conversion price of HK$0.85
per share.

On 27 October 2017, the Convertible Bonds in the principal amount
of HK$199,537,388 (equivalent to approximately RMB169,447,150
on the conversion date) were fully converted into 234,749,867
ordinary shares of the Company at the conversion price of HK$0.85
per share.

As at 31 March 2021 and 2020, the Convertible Bonds in the
principal amount of HK$87,962,612 (equivalent to approximately
RMB74,249,241) has not yet been converted.
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25.DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND

CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued)
Accounting treatment

The Company’s early redemption right attaching to the Convertible
Bonds are considered not closely related to the liability component
of the Convertible Bonds; and therefore, these embedded features
have been accounted for separately and classified as derivative
financial instruments according to HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments.

On the basis that the conversion options of the Convertible Bonds
will be settled by the exchange of a fixed amount for a fixed number
of equity instruments, the Convertible Bonds are accounted
for as compound instruments according to HKAS 32 Financial
Instruments: Presentation. The deemed proceeds, after the fair value
of the early redemption right features are bifurcated, have been split
into between a liability component and an equity component. The
residual amount, representing the value of the equity component,
is credited to “Equity component of the Convertible Bonds” in the
Group’s equity attributable to the Company’s shareholders.

After initial recognition, the Company’s early redemption right
features classified as derivative financial instruments are remeasured
to their fair value at each period end using the binomial pricing
model. The liability component of the Convertible Bonds are
subsequently carried at amortised cost.

At the date of conversion, the carrying values of the liability
component of the Convertible Bonds and of the early redemption
right features are transferred to equity.
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 HZE=—ZT=—F=/A=+—HIFE

N\

25.DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND XB.{TAE €T ARARKRES

CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued) (%)

Early redemption right features of the Convertible AR ES 2R EEREESE
Bonds

The movements in the Company’s early redemption right features PEREARBEFEZTESMIA
classified as derivative financial instruments measured at fair value ZARRNEIRBIBREFCEEHINT

are as follows:

2021 2020
s =T
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBTTT
At 1 April 2020/2019 W-Z—TF /T NFNA—H 96 4,837
Fair value change NREEBEEE) (69) (4,976)
Exchange realignment M (5) 235
At 31 March 2021/2020 R-B-—%/—FT-FTF=A=+—H 22 96
Liability component of the Convertible Bonds ABRESEESD
The movements of the liability component of the Convertible Bonds RERE BRI R 2 Al R ESH B E I
in the consolidated statement of financial position are as follows: DEEINT ¢
2021 2020
—B-—F —ETF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBTIT
At 1 April 2020/2019 RZZT=TF /“T—-NFHWA—A 73,155 62,962
Accrued effective interest JEFTERRF B 7,233 7,550
Accrued coupon interest B E R S 2 FERT R S
transferred to interest payable (1,530) (1,582)
Exchange realignment IE 5 % (5,979) 4,225
At 31 March 2021/2020 R —F/—FT-TF=A=+—H 72,879 73,155
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25.DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND

CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued)

Liability component of the Convertible Bonds
(Continued)

The imputed finance cost on the liability component of the
Convertible Bonds is calculated using the effective interest method
by applying effective interest rates per annum. The effective interest
rate of the Convertible Bonds is 10.73%.

Equity component of the Convertible Bonds

The movements of the equity component of the Convertible Bonds

BATEETHMTARTRRES

(%)

R EFREDS ()
AR5 B R 2 i E R A AR
AERNEARBRFAENE - A
% 2 BRFIEE10.73% -
QEYetan fiba)

RERE P BEARE 2 AT R B S5 5 5D

in the consolidated statement of financial position are as follows: DEEIT
2021 2020
—E-—F —E T
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREEFTT
At 31 March 2021/2020 RZE=——F/—T-TF=A=+—H 40,368 40,368

As at 31 March 2021, the remaining principal amount of the
Convertible Bonds was approximately HK$87,962,612 (equivalent
to RMB74,249,241) (2020: HK$87,962,612 (equivalent to
RMB70,370,090)). Should the conversion rights attaching to the
Convertible Bonds due in 2021 be exercised in full, additional
103,485,427 ordinary shares would have been allotted and issued,
which represent approximately 2% of the issued share capital of the
Company at 31 March 2021.

Up to the date of this annual report, the Company is currently
under negotiation with Ka Yik for the settlement arrangement of
the Convertible Bonds and Ka Yik has preliminarily agreed to fully
convert on or before the maturity date.
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 #HZEZE—ZT—-—F=A=+—HIFE \ \
26.SHARE CAPITAL 26. i% Z<
Number of
ordinary shares Nominal value
EBERYE EfE
'000 HK$'000 RMB’000
i FET ARBTT
Authorised: P
Ordinary shares of HK$0.05 each SREE0.05BT LR 15,600,000 780,000 684,000
Issued: B&#77
Ordinary shares of HK$0.05 each BREEC.5E T LAR
At 31 March 2021 RZE-_—F=f=1—H 6,764,286 338,214 292,554
At 31 March 2020 R-E-FF=f=1+—-A 5,273,401 263,670 228,370

A summary of movements in the Company’s issued share capital is

BAARRA 2D ETRAZBHEZHT

as follows: o
Number of
shares in issue Issued Captial
2T 21T
& E &N
‘000 RMB’000
T ARETTT
At 31 March 2020 N_ZE_TF=H=+—H 5,273,401 228,370
Issuance of ordinary 7FE'<TJ§Hx173 LS T T B
shares under share placement® 290,885 12,277
The conversion of convertible SR TR E S AR ©
preference shares® 1,200,000 51,907
At 31 March 2021 WZE-_—F=A=+—H 6,764,286 292,554
(@ On 24 March 2021, 290,885,000 ordinary shares of the @ RZZEZ—F=A=+mWMA - A1
Company were allotted and issued to the placees under the $ETJ§?%ZIS”&7§$Z—)&?%W7¥K
general mandate granted to the directors of the Company at fid A Bid 2% % 3577 290,885,000 A% 38
a placing price of HK$0.35 per placing share for a total cash k- REEAEREEMRN0.35E
consideration of HK$101.8 million (equivalent to approximately JT 4835 fE A 101,800,000 57T
RMB85.9 million). Further details of the issuance of the placing (FEE R # AR ®85,900,0007T) °
shares were set out in the Company’s announcements dated 16 BOIRERD 2 E—FFBHRAEAR
March 2021 and 24 March 2021. ﬁ H Hﬁi%— T —F=At+REKZ
S Sy = Bty p U = P d/N =
(b) During the year, an aggregate of 1,200,000,000 ordinary shares (b) A - K K #1,200,000,000 % A]

@ HUA'Y

of the Company were allotted and issued upon the conversion of
1,200,000,000 non-redeemable convertible preference shares.
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27.CONVERTIBLE PREFERENCE SHARES

On 27 July 2016, the Company allotted and issued 4,539,352,941
Convertible Preference Shares (“CPS”) at an issue price of HK$0.85
per share to Ka Yik, a company beneficially owned by Ms. Cui, for
satisfaction of part of the consideration in respect of the Ka Yun
Acquisition, being an aggregate amount of HK$3,858,450,000
(RMB3,320,582,000).

Key terms of the CPS are as follows:

(1)

)

)

The CPS shall not confer on the holders thereof the right to
receive notices of, or to attend and vote, at the general meetings
of the Company, unless a resolution is to be proposed at the
general meeting which if passed would vary or abrogate the
rights or privileges of holders of the CPS.

Holders of the CPS have the right to convert each CPS, during
the conversion period, into ordinary share(s) of the Company
at the CPS conversion price. The holders may exercise the
conversion right, provided that any conversion of the CPS does
not result in (i) the CPS conversion shares being issued at a
price below their nominal value as at the conversion date; or (i) if
immediately after such conversion, the public float of the shares
being less than 25% (or any given percentage as required by
the Listing Rules). The ordinary shares of the Company when
allotted and issued upon the exercise of the conversion right of
the CPS shall rank equally among themselves and pari passu in
all respects with the ordinary shares of the Company in issue on
the date of allotment and issuance.

The CPS cannot be redeemed by the Company or the holder of
CPS.

The CPS is transferrable subject to the conditions stated in the
terms of the CPS and in accordance with the provision as set
out in the Company’s bye-laws.

27. [ R IR B B IR

S e S o ST, N
AR B ITEER0.858 TR X ZE(H
EZTERBEAZAR)RBEREMT
4,539,352,941 A AT #A AR 8 SE AR ([ AT#RAR
Bl UENRBREEEZHS
K1E - B4 5 5 3,858,450,000%8 7T (A
R#3,320,582,000 7T ) °

AHARREBERZ TR T

(1) ABRRELERTEE THSA AWRER
BELHEARABRAGELNE L
BREREZEN - FRIE/HRBERAE L
RERZR(MERB) SE 5T XA

Br AT R AR ST R B A BB SR

—

L

(2) FIAEITIGE AR RNEHREA
A S IR B K S A A AR
BARBRANRREBR - FHAA
AITEES AR - MR RE R Z (T
AERNFEE () T RREER2E
BRMNRENERERBERH s mES
BT « oK (i) HREERRAEIRR -
NRFFRE D70 26% (S ETAR IR
EZEMEEBNLL) - RAEKRE
SRRz BT MACE MEITZ
ARBEEE  BESHTESERE
RBERBETEHEETZARRLR
BEBRSHER -

(6) TEREERETAhMAATHTE
BRI ATEE -

(4) RIHRA AR ST AR R 42 IR AT H A B SR AR {5
Pt 27 gt RARYR AN 2 A AR I AR
PACS SN

Annual Report 2020/21 F % @



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #HZEZE—ZT—-—F=A=+—HIFE

27.CONVERTIBLE PREFERENCE SHARES 27.
(Continued)

Key terms of the CPS are as follows: (Continued)

(5) CPS shall confer on the CPS holders the right to be paid, in
priority to any return of assets in respect of the ordinary shares
of the Company, pari passu as between themselves an amount
equal to the aggregate notional value of the CPS plus all
dividends accrued and unpaid with respect thereto, whereupon
if the assets of the Company available for distribution shall be
insufficient to provide for full payment to holders of the CPS, the
Company shall make payment on the CPS on a pro rata basis
on return of capital on liquidation, winding up or dissolution of
the Company. The CPS do not confer on the holders of CPS any
further or other right to participate in the assets of the Company
upon liquidation, winding up or dissolution of the Company.

Subject to compliance with all applicable laws and the bye-laws
of the Company, each CPS shall confer on its holder the right to
receive an accrued and cumulative fixed dividend commencing from
the date of the issue of the CPS on a yearly basis at a rate of 0.2%
of the nominal value of HK$0.05 of each CPS outstanding in priority
to any dividend in respect of any other class of shares in the capital
of the Company, payable annually in arrears. However, the CPS
holder(s) has unconditionally and irrevocably waived the receipt of
such preferred dividend.

The CPS is classified as equity instruments in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements with the following considerations:

(@ The CPS holder(s) has unconditionally and irrevocably waived its
right to receive the preferred distribution; and as such, the Group
does not have a contractual obligation to deliver cash or other
financial assets arising from the issue of the CPS. Therefore,
there is no liability component of the CPS.

(b) The conversion options of the CPS will be settled by the
exchange of a fixed amount for a fixed number of equity
instruments.

@ HUA YIN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED # Z BB #Z R B R A A
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21.CONVERTIBLE PREFERENCE SHARES

(Continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2021, 1,200 million CPSs were
converted into 1,200 million ordinary shares of the Company. As at
31 March 2021, 439,352,941 CPSs (2020: 1,639,352,941 CPSs)
remained outstanding. Should the conversion rights attaching to
the remaining 439,352,941 CPSs be exercised in full, an additional
439,352,941 ordinary shares would have been allotted and issued,
which represented approximately 6.5% of the issued share capital
of the Company as at 31 March 2021.

28.SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s
operations.

The summary of the Scheme’s key terms is as follows:

(1) Purpose To recognise and acknowledge the
contributions or potential contributions made
or to be made by the participants to the
Group or any entity in which the Group holds
any equity interests (the “Invested Entity”),
to motivate the participants to optimise their
performance and efficiency for the benefit
of the Group or the Invested Entity, and to
maintain or attract business relationship with
the participants whose contributions are or
may be beneficial to the growth of the Group
or the Invested Entity.
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For the year ended 31 March 2021

BE_ZT_—F=-A=t—HILFE

28.SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

The summary of the Scheme’s key terms is as follows: (Continued)

(2) Participants

Share options may be granted to the

participants, being:

(@) any person being an employee (including

any executive director), officer (including
any non-executive director and
independent non-executive director),
substantial shareholder, consultant, agent,
professional adviser, customer, business
partner, joint venture partner, strategic
partner, landlord or tenant of, or any
supplier or provider of goods or services
to, the Company or any subsidiary or
any Invested Entity, or any trustee(s) of a
discretionary trust of which one or more
beneficiaries belong to any of the above
mentioned category(ies) of persons, or any
company beneficially owned by any of the
above mentioned category(ies) of persons;
or
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28.SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

The summary of the Scheme’s key terms is as follows: (Continued)

(2) Participants

(8) Total number
of shares
available for
issue

Share options may be granted to the
participants, being: (Continued)

(b) any other person who the Board may
determine in its absolute discretion, has
made valuable contribution to the business
of the Group or Invested Entity based on
his performance and/or years of service,
or is regarded as valuable resources of
the Group or the Invested Entity based
on his work experience, knowledge in
the industry and other relevant factors,
or is expected to be able to contribute to
the prosperity, business development or
growth of the Group or the Invested Entity
based on his/its business connection or
network or other relevant factors.

137,145,000 shares, being 10% of the total
number of shares in issue as at the date of
refreshment of the scheme mandate limit on
14 September 2016 and being 3.27% of the
total number of shares in issue as at the date
of this annual report.

28. /B IR & (&)

ArEIEZGRZBMENT - (&)

»

(2 28E

(3) AIFLETT
Z Bt
L

EBhEATE T2 H
B0 (&)
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HIW R R AR
KL EEBEBHE
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HITE&ER - 175
AR H A AERE A
WA B/ANEEK
REERZEEER
BIR  RIEER
B s AR S A
e PSES SR
BN RAREEN
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K~ ERHERIIE
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137,145,000 i& x5 -
MR —ZE—XRENA
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Annual Report 2020/21 F % @



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR M

For the year ended 31 March 2021

BHE-Z-_—F=A=1+—HIFE

28.SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

The summary of the Scheme’s key terms is as follows: (Continued)

(4) Maximum
entitlement
of each
participant

(6) Option period

(6) Minimum period
for which an
option must
be held
before it can
vest

(7) Payment on
acceptance
of option

In any 12-month period:

(@)

for each grantee, not exceeding 1% of the
aggregate number of shares for the
time being in issue (including exercised,
cancelled and outstanding options);

for substantial shareholders and
independent non-executive directors, not
over 0.1% of the number of shares then
in issue and not having an aggregate
value in excess of HK$5 million (including
options exercised, cancelled and
outstanding); unless separately approved
by independent shareholders at general
meetings.

A 10 years’ period commencing from the date

as

specified in the grant letter and expiring on

the earliest of the last day of the said period

or such time as specified in the Share Option

Scheme and/or the grant letter.

No minimum period before the options can be

exercised unless otherwise imposed by the

Board at its absolute discretion.

HK$1.00 in cash to be payable on acceptance

within 21 days from the date of grant.
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28.SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) 28. fB IR HE T &I (4])

The summary of the Scheme’s key terms is as follows: (Continued) STEIFEZRRCBENT - (B)
(8) Subscription To be determined by the Board and shall be (8) REE HTHE=SET B
price at least the highest of: ZEBRELARTI=
BRZ&EEE
(@) the closing price of the shares as stated @ RELEREZR
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations H(EREXA)E
sheet on the date of the grant of the RETEMERE 2
option, which must be a business day; AR T E
(b) the average of the closing prices of the (o) REER T ERE
shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s 2 BERRT R A %
daily quotations sheets for the five BB FT A & AT
business days immediately preceding the B,z BhFEHm
date of the grant of the option; and B &
(c) the nominal value of the shares. (©) BRMmEE -
(9) Life A period of 10 years commencing on 5 Q) HABR HM-_Z——-FNAA
September 2012 (being the date on which the H (B NETEIH89)
Scheme is adopted) and expiring on the tenth REET T EZ BR
anniversary of such date, i.e, 5 September BRZBEE BT
2022. (BIZZ2_=—FhA*h

B)BE -
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28.SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

The terms and conditions of the share options granted under the

28. /B IRt &I (&)

RIBEH B 2 BB AR 2 6 R R AR 4m

Scheme were as follows: N
Number of share options
BREHE
As at Exercised Forfeited/ As at
1 April during lapsed during 31 March Exercise price per
Grantees 2020 the year the year 2021 Date of grant period ™! share option
WoB-%% Fl RIB=-F ShiERE
ARA MA-A ERfrfE Bh/%%  ZA=t-H RHAH fres e it
HK S
BT
Employees E8 30,000,000 - - 30,000,000 19/06/2014 19/06/2014 - 0.980
18/06/2024
2,840,000 - - 2,840,000 18/04/2016 18/04/2016 - 0.980
17/04/2026
Others o 6,000,000 - - 6,000,000 19/06/2014 19/06/2014 - 0.980
18/06/2024
5,600,000 - (200,000) 5,400,000 24/10/2014 24/10/2015 - 1.200
28/10/2024
7,630,000 - (80,000) 7,550,000 18/04/2016 18/04/2016 - 0.980
17/04/2026
Total &5 52,070,000 - (280,000 51,790,000
Notes: MIaE -

1. For the share options granted on 19 June 2014, 100% of the share
options became exercisable from 19 June 2014.

For the share options granted on 24 October 2014, 50% of the share
options became exercisable from 24 October 2015, and the remaining
50% of the share options became exercisable from 24 October 2016.

For the share options granted on 18 April 2016, 30% of the share
options became exercisable from 18 April 2016, 30% of the share
options became exercisable from 18 April 2017 and the remaining 40%
of the share options became exercisable commencing from 18 April
2018.
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28.SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) 28. BB IR REETHEI (48)

The following share options were outstanding under the Scheme FRRBETEIMARITE 2 BRELNT -
during the year:
2021 2020
—EB--F 33
Weighted Weighted
average Number of average Number of
exercise price options exercise price options
Sk BikmE
FTRE fBRERR FHTRE BIRERE
HK$ '000 HKS '000
per share per share
BT Tk BT Tk
Outstanding at 1 Apri RIA—BEATE 1.0037 52,070 1.0437 70,440
Exercised during the year FRE N/A TiE A - N/A a8 -
Lapsed/Forfeited during the year A%,/ 84 1.1371 (280) 11572 (18,370)
Outstanding at 31 March W= A=+—BHRTE 1.0029 51,790 1.0037 52,070
Exercisable at 31 March R=A=+—BAF7{ 1.0029 51,790 1.0087 52,070
The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share options RERAPRHARITEBREZTFEER
outstanding as at the end of the reporting period are as follows: FIEEAAT -
2021 2020
—B-—F —E-THF
Number of options Number of options Exercise price Exercise period
BIREHE RERESA BRITEE 17 E
HK$
per share
BT
2,319,000 2,399,000 0.98 18/04/2016 — 17/04/2026
3,459,000 3,459,000 0.98 18/04/2017 — 17/04/2026
4,612,000 4,612,000 0.98 18/04/2018 — 17/04/2026
36,000,000 36,000,000 0.98 19/06/2014 - 18/06/2024
2,800,000 2,800,000 1.20 24/10/2015 - 23/10/2024
2,600,000 2,800,000 1.20 24/10/2016 — 23/10/2024
51,790,000 52,070,000
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BB HmRME

BE—_ZT-_—F=A=+—RHLFE

.SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

No share option expense was recognised during the years ended
31 March 2021 and 2020 as all the above share options had been
fully vested in prior years.

The fair value of equity-settled share options granted, was estimated
as at the respective dates of grant using a binomial model, taking
into account the terms and conditions upon which the options were
granted. The following table lists the inputs to the model used:

N

HE_T-_—FRER_FT_FTF=H
= +—HLFE WEEDERER
Yo ER EiERERNBEFER
wﬁ% °

EﬁﬂjL\Mfééﬁﬁ,%;ﬁzﬁ%lﬂﬂiéﬁﬁfﬁﬁﬂ
“IEAMREEEREYLEER LB

Hx%Zﬂ%?}K&ﬂﬂﬁF{éﬁé\%ﬁ el SRR

ite TRIVHAERELZBAER -

Date of grant

REAH
19 June 24 October 18 April
2014 2014 2016
—B-[F —B-RF —E-RE
~ATNE +A=1+mAE mA+N\E
Dividend yield (%) K (%) 0% 0% 0%
Expected volatility (%) %EHH/&" 08 (%) 49.89% 49.12% 57.34%
Risk-free interest rate (%) EE R FE (%) 2.02% 1.75% 1.26%
Expected life of share options (year) BIRERSER(F) 10 10 10
Fair value at measurement date (HK$) ~ RTEBZAABECET) 0.45 0.39 0.34
Weighted average share price (HK$) MEFRE (E) 0.98 0.91 0.78

The expected life of the options is based on the historical data
over the past three years and is not necessarily indicative of the
exercise patterns that may occur. The expected volatility reflects the
assumption that the historical volatility is indicative of future trends,
which may also not necessarily be the actual outcome.

No other feature of the options granted was incorporated into the
measurement of fair value.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had 51,790,000
(2020: 52,070,000) share options outstanding under the Scheme
and all of the outstanding share options are exercisable. The
exercise in full of the outstanding share options would, under
the present capital structure of the Company, result in the issue
of 51,790,000 additional ordinary shares of the Company and
additional share capital of RMB2,071,600 (before issue expenses)
which represented approximately 0.77% of the Company’s shares in
issue as at that date.
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29.RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements therein
for the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity of the consolidated financial
statements.

(i) Share premium

The application of the share premium account is governed by
the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended).

(ii) Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial statements
of foreign operations and is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policies adopted for foreign currency translation.

(iii)Contributed surplus

The contributed surplus of the Company arose from the capital
reduction in May 2006, which consists of share capital reduction
and cancellation of the entire amount of the share premium
account of the Company as at 31 March 2005. Under the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), a company
shall not declare or pay a dividend, or make a distribution out
of the contributed surplus, if there are reasonable grounds for
believing that (a) the Company is, or would after the payment
be, unable to pay its liabilities as they become due; or (b) the
realisable value of the Company’s assets would thereby be less
than its liabilities.

(iv) Share option reserve

The share option reserve comprises the fair value of share
options granted which are yet to be exercised, as further
explained in the accounting policy for share-based payment
transactions in the notes to the consolidated financial
statements.

29. 18

ARERAEERBEFE Y HESE
RASBRGANBEE 2 GAMEE
PR 2T -

(i) BRpEE

B aEBR2ERIISE A RE
—AN—E DT (BT R -

(ii) FME R4

SINEE fof B2 4R R R B SINBR S 755 2 B 75
BERMELZFAINEEZR - TIIRE
BRAINEBRE PR Z SRR
e

(iii) BN Z 8

RABZHABBELEA —TTREF
AAZHIRER » EBIEEIRAA K
AHARRR -_TFRF=A=1—
BZBaERAESE - RiIgA
RE-NN—FREEER) >
BREZREMRE  @ARARER
EOXRSEH DR R KRB B 2
B RO RBEEZAEHREE
REERERE - B ARSI
ABBRERSIKERE - SIERER
7K

(iv) BB IR HE AR A

BRERECROMERRITEZBE
Bz AR BE - RRa R BERRH
AP AR XN S 2 G BERTH
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 #HZEZE—ZT—-—F=A=+—HIFE \ \«
29.RESERVES (Continued) 29. & (48)
(v) Other reserves (v) Hitbi#E
2021 2020
—B-—F —ECTEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREEFTT
Merger reserve GRS (@) (3,316,856) (3,316,856)
Deemed capital contribution 8 {EH EREME
reserve (b) 58,382 58,382
Others Efth 4,692 4,692
(3,253,782) (8,253,782)

(@) The merger reserve represents the difference in the fair value
of the consideration paid to Ka Yun in respect of the Ka Yun
Acquisition and the carrying amount of the net assets of the
Ka Yun Group at the date when the Ka Yun Group became
under common control of the ultimate shareholder of the
Company.

(b) The deemed capital contribution reserve represented the
derecognition of the listed equity investment and gave rise to
a gain on disposal of RMB58,382,000 during the year ended
31 March 2019 which was considered as deemed capital
contribution from the Company’s controlling shareholder.

(vi) Statutory reserve

According to the PRC Company Law, each of the PRC
subsidiaries of the Group is required to transfer 10% of its after
tax profit, calculated in accordance with the PRC accounting
standards and regulations, to the statutory surplus reserve until
the reserve balance reaches 50% of the registered capital. The
statutory surplus reserve can be utilised, upon approval of the
relevant authorities, to offset accumulated losses or to increase
registered capital of the PRC subsidiaries, provided that such
fund is maintained at a minimum level of 25% of the registered
capital.
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30.DISPOSAL GROUP CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR

SALE

As set out in note 2.1, on 26 February 2021 and 4 June 2021, the
Group entered into a share transfer agreement and a supplementary
agreement with the Purchasers to dispose the entire equity interests
in Ground Real Estate and its subsidiaries at a consideration of
RMB1.0 (equivalent to approximately HK$1.2).

The management considered that there are net liabilities of Ground
Real Estate and its subsidiaries and it is unlikely that the Group
will make profit from the sales of the remaining residential units or
car park spaces due to the decrease in the expected selling price.
The disposal will improve the financial position of the Group. The
disposal was completed in June 2021.

The major classes of assets and liabilities of Ground Real Estate
held for sale are measured at the lower of carrying amount and
fair value less costs to sell at the end of the reporting period are as
follows:

DERFEHEZHEAR

B2 ME R —F_A
—+ARABEZE_—FA@AHA " K
SEEBEFI L ROERRERBRD
FENHEREMEREWBARZE
et REAAREIT(EERLN1.2
BIT) °

ERERREEMENEWNEBQAESG
BEFERAREHEEBTHEIHRTH
EETEMRBMENOATREETK -
l&ttﬂ%?éﬁi‘i@mﬁﬁ&ﬁkﬂﬁﬁﬁﬂi

c BHHEFHEER T —F <A
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30.DISPOSAL GROUP CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR

\

0.2 WHFFEHEZHEARR

SALE (Continued) (#&)
Carrying
amount as
classified as
held for sale
2EA
HEA R
ZEREE
RMB’000
ARBFT
Assets BE
Completed properties held for sales  #H{EHED B 215,921
Trade and other receivables FEW B 5 R % E A FE R IR 107,771
Prepaid income tax BT ATEH 6,345
Pledged and restricted deposits R R 2 IR 147 5% 3,585
Cash and cash equivalents RekBeEED 396
Assets associated with disposal HEABEARELES 2 HEHER
group classified as held for sale Bz EE 334,018
Liabilities =L
Trade and other payables BB SRR R E MM IR 126,154
Contract liabilities EHEE 110,009
Loans from a controlling shareholder AR R &% 103,420
Bank and other borrowings RITREMER 51,000
Income tax payables FERFTIS Y 1,824
Deferred tax liabilities ELERAAE 1,270
Liabilities associated with HABARENE L
disposal group classified as HEAR BB 8E
held for sale 398,677
Net liabilities attributable to FELE 2 HEER
the disposal group held for sale G B EFE 59,659

FA BEAVIAEANRERGTEN R

L
N\

No gain or loss arising from initial recognition and subsequent
RFELEZ LSR5 WEmslE
BERRE 2 EBARTHER -

measurement of disposal group classified as held for sale has been
recognised in consolidated statement of comprehensive income for
the year.
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31.CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Other than disclosed elsewhere, the Group has the following
contingent liabilities:

The Group has arranged bank financing for certain purchasers of
property units developed by subsidiaries of the Group that provided
guarantees to secure obligation of such purchasers for repayments.
As at 31 March 2021, guarantees amounting to RMB790.9 million
(2020: RMB803.4 million) were given to banks with respect to
mortgage loans procured by purchasers of property units. Such
guarantees terminate upon the earlier of (i) issuance of the real
estate ownership certificate to the purchasers and (i) the satisfaction
of mortgage loans by the purchasers of properties.

Pursuant to the terms of the guarantees, upon default in mortgage
payments by these purchasers, the Group is responsible for
repaying the outstanding mortgage principals together with accrued
interest and penalty owed by the defaulted purchasers to the banks
and the Group is entitled to take over the legal title and possession
of the related properties. The Group’s guarantee period starts from
the dates of grant of the mortgages. During the year, the Group did
not incur any material losses in respect of any of these guarantees.
The directors consider that the likelihood of default in payments
by the purchasers is minimal and therefore the financial guarantee
initially measured at fair value is immaterial. Also, in case of default
in payments, the net realisable value of the related property units
would be sufficient to repay the outstanding mortgage loans
together with any accrued interest and penalty, and therefore no
provision has been made in connection with the guarantees.

NBARERE

BREMEMBEEEIN  NEEBUTX
RBIE :

AEBRETHWBRARMARYESEN
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A ANRET790,900,000c(—ZF =&
F : AR 803,400,0007T) ° A BER
SR A TR PREZKIE: ()MERED
BER  Ri)MEERINEBER -

RIBERIG - W% FEFIERIZIBN
HoARBEERERARTEEROVER
IR AZ AN IZB A ER BT E K
TR MAKEEREYABYEZ
AEMERLERE - AEBERMFfZE
RERIZIBEH ABES - FA - KK
Y UM FEARMBREAEX
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32. COMMITMENTS

Commitments for development expenditure

The Group had the following capital commitments at the end of the

reporting period:

32. 7K1
BRERAS 2AE

REER2HAREIN T EAAGE -

2021 2020
—B=-—-F —T_TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREEFTT
Contracted, but not provided for: 25T 4B R4 -
— Properties under development - SRR % 25,300 -
33.RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS BEHEEAEATZRES

(a) Other than disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial
statements, the Group had the following significant transactions

(A B M BmREMBOARES
Sh > REERFRNEBEEALTBNUT

with related parties during the year: BEARS :
2021 2020
s =T
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T AREEFTT
() Entities controlled by aclose () ANAFIERRIREHBRE
family member of a B FTES| 2 BES -
controlling shareholder of
the Company:
Rental expenses paid: ERNHEHAX
— a motor vehicle - 9% 188 194
— office premises 7N /ES 698 698
Building management fees paid: ~ENAEEEREE :
- office premises B VN.JES 40 40
926 932
Guarantee fees income ES PN = 960
Guarantee provided EIRHIER - 48,000
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33.RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(a) (Continued)

@

(i)

(i)

The related party transactions in respect of rental expenses
and building management fees above also constitute
continuing connected transactions as defined in Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules. The rental expenses and building
management fees were exempted from the reporting
announcement and independent shareholders’ approval
requirements pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
A controlling shareholder (i) ANABERRARER -
of the Company:
Coupon interest on
Convertible Bonds

AERHE S 2 EE B

On 17 July 2019, the Company entered into a corporate
guarantee and financial assistance framework agreement
with Ground Investment Holding (Group) Company Limited
(“Ground Investment Holding”), Ka Yik and Charm Success
Group Limited, companies beneficially owned by close
family members of the controlling shareholder of the
Company or a director of the Company (collectively known
as the “Controlling Shareholders”), pursuant to which
the Company shall provide corporate guarantee to the
Controlling Shareholders and their respective associates
and the Controlling Shareholders shall provide shareholders
loans to the Group with a total amount of not more than
RMB115,000,000 and RMB202,000,000 during the year
respectively.

The above transactions constitute continuing connected
transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules and subject to the reporting, disclosure, circular
and independent shareholders’ approval requirements.
Further details of the above transactions are set out in the
Company’s announcement and circulars dated 17 July 2019
and 20 August 2019 respectively. On 30 November 2020,
the Company entered into a termination deed with Ground
Investment Holding and the Controlling Shareholders,
pursuant to which each party mutually agreed to terminate
the corporate guarantee and financial assistance framework
agreement.

BEBEALZRRES (E)

(a) (48)

() EARBEERATRAEEEEMN
BRBEENLTR B IEK TR
AIF1AEMRAEZHBEHER
5 - HERXEREEEERE
FHRAIFEVIAZTEFR 2 E TR
] REMELBRAERE ©

1,530

1,582

(i) =

Z-NFEATER AQ

AEEEREEREERRAR
(TEERREEBR]) - FEREK
SEBERAR(MRHRBARAT

ERBREARNREE ZAHRK

PPk B (578 (R ) Ba
BZRE)) M EEREGE
BBMERWZ - Bl - REAR
NEIMIERBRERESES B 8
EARELEERMERRKERER
REBRECRRERBES R
%M AR 115,000,000 7T &
AR # 202,000,000 TG °

AR ZER ETRANFE14AE
PR ERERERS - ABTH

K K B SRR B

HIRE - PR G 2iE—HFHB
DRAFERARARBHRAE=ZT A
FA+-tBABRZZE—NFNA
TTHEZAGERAR  RZEZ
TE+—A=1+8 AQFRHEE
B BRI R AR R R AR I
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e T ERRMEE g
For the year ended 31 March 2021 BE—Z-——F=A=+—HItFE \ \

BEEMEALZRS ()

(a) (48)

33.RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
(a) (Continued)

(iv) B4R & B Bk MY 5k 2.1 &2 80

(iv) As set out in note 2.1 and 30 to the consolidated financial

statements, the Group entered into a share transfer
agreement to dispose the entire equity interests in Ground
Real Estate and its subsidiaries to the Purchasers. As the
Purchasers are connected person to the Group, the above
transaction constituted connected transaction as defined
in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The transaction is
subject to the reporting and announcement requirements
but is exempt from the circular (including independent
financial advice) and independent shareholders’ approval
requirements as it is below the de minimis threshold under
Rule 14A.76 of the Listing Rules. Further details are set out
in the Company’s announcements dated 26 February 2021,
15 March 2021 and 4 June 2021.

Frsl - NEEFT RN EER R
LA B 7 & BE hE R H B
RNEMEHRE - ARES BE
EEzEEAL Bt UEX
SER ETRBEVIATRAE
MAER S - REFAERREI&
REBEKEHN—REERS A
B EMBRAE 14AT6REB IR K
NERTE - WEREETER (B
EE LV BERE) REREL
HERRTE - E—FFHBHRAEARD
AAAZZS-_—F A=+~
A2 —4F=ZA+AHE=
T —FRAMNAZA L -

(b) Key management personnel L) EEEEAE
2021 2020
—B-—F —E-FTF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARBTIT
Compensation for key FEEBABZHMN(BENTFARFA
management personnel, EERETHRSFEE ZFIEA
including the amounts paid to  (AMizE8 X9 EE)) 0T -
the Company’s directors and
certain of the highest paid
employees, as disclosed in
notes 8 and 9, is as follows:
Fees we 817 881
Other emoluments: HEaiie :
Salaries, allowances and e EAREYHE
benefits in kind 6,424 6,631
Discretionary bonuses EISTEAT 609 965
Pension scheme contributions iE/R&tE 4 5k 180 467
7,213 8,063
Total compensation paid to key 15 ¥ ZE1E A B B4 EE
management personnel 8,030 8,944

@ HUA YIN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED # Z BB #Z R B R A A




34.NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 34.FZEHEREKRME
OF CASH FLOWS

Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities EREEsmMELEZEEERH
Interest Liability
Loans from bearing bank component of
a controlling and other the Convertible
Lease shareholder borrowings Bonds
liabilities —£2R SRR TERES
HEEE BREER REMEE SEHS
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFT ARBTT ARETT
At 1 April 2020 R-B_EF
WA—H 29,593 105,891 866,187 73,155
Net cash flows REmETHE (30,688) 125,664 (15,097) -
Exchange realignment BN R (318) (6,720) - (5,979)
Interest on lease liabilities HEAETE 2,156 = = =
New leases e 44,185 = = =
Accrued effective interest ST ERFE - - - 7,233
Interest paid classified as operating A EAKLESTE
cash flows ZEHRFIE - - = (1,530)
Reclassified as disposal group EMABARELE
held for sale ZHEET - (103,420) (51,000) -
At 31 March 2021 RZE-—%
=ZA=1-H 44,928 121,415 800,090 72,879
At 1 April 2019 RZZE-NF
MA—A - 149,065 941,667 62,962
Net cash flows ReneFe (27,983) (47,965) 157,698 -
Upon adoption of HKFRS REREBERS
ERIF 1650 47,300 - - —
Interest on lease liabilties HEBETE 3,574 - - -
New leases MHE 6,297 - - -
Offsetting consideration on disposal 7 &I B A
of subsidiaries FEENE - - (245,126) -
Exchange realignment [E3zkES 405 4,791 11,948 4,225
Accrued effective interest BT ERFIE - - - 7,550
Interest paid classified as operating  HEALLEETHE
cash flows ZBRFIE - - - (1,582)
At 31 March 2020 W-Z-TF
=A=1t-H 29,593 105,891 866,187 73,155
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2021 BE—Z-——F=A=+—HItFE

35.FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial instruments by category

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial

BEMTEZAARBERAIAE
BEER

BRERED 2EMIA

BEZHRYPR  SHERTAZEEE

instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows: B -
2021 —B-—F
Financial assets SWMEE
Financial
assets
at fair value Financial
through profit assets at
or loss amortised cost
BRAREE REHERA
HABEZ L} A Total
SREE SREE fst
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R ARBT ARETT
Financial assets included in FFAFEUE S8R R o fE
trade and other receivables WA SRVEE - 24,314 24,314
Derivative financial instruments  $74 % g T & 22 - 22
Pledged and restricted deposits = #4# & 52 IR #1177 5¢ - 8,715 8,715
Cash and cash equivalents ReEMREEEY - 117,938 117,938
22 150,967 150,989
Financial liabilities cRaE
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
RE SR A
SRz
ScRas
RMB’000
AR®T T
Financial liabilities included in trade 5T AJE(T B 5 R E AL FE(T UE
and other payables ZEmBE 507,210
Lease liabilities HERE 44,928
Liability component of ABRESF A &SN
the Convertible Bonds 72,879
Loans from a controling shareholder — 2% f& I B8 & 5% 121,415
Bank and other borrowings RITREMEE 800,090

@ HUA YIN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED # Z BB #Z R B R A A
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35.FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 3®B. 2@ T AZAABERAAE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) BEE4R (&)
Financial instruments by category (Continued) ZEREs 22T A (&
2020 —TTF
Financial assets TRIBE
Financial
assets
at fair value Financial
through profit assets at
or loss amortised cost Total
RAREE REHENA
HFABHZ S8R 2
TREE SREE @it
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETTT ARETT ARETT
Financial assets included in trade STARKE SRF R E R
and other receivables LEREE - 272,228 272,228
Derivative financial instruments TESRTA 9% - 9%
Pledged and restricted deposits BEARZRIER - 19,009 19,009
Cash and cash equivalents RekReSEYN - 30,500 30,500
96 321,737 321,833
Financial liabilities TRBE

Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
TRERSH AR
FERZ
SRIBE
RMB’000
ARETIT

Financial liabilities included in trade  FF AJET & F BRFK & E M R /I8
and other payables ZEHBE 647,505
Lease liabilities HEBE 29,593

Liability component of AR ESaEE D

the Convertible Bonds 73,155
Loans from a controling shareholder — 3% f& A& B &5k 105,891
Bank and other borrowings RITREMEE 866,187

1,722,331
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR MR A

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #Z—B——&=F=+—H -4 \A
35.FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 3B.£#®MIBEZAREBERAAE
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) BER(E)
Fair value of financial instruments ERMTERECZAREE

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s financial ArEEe T AZRAEBERAAEBERT

instruments are as follows: ™
Carrying amounts Fair values
BHE ANER
2021 2020 2021 2020
—E--F —E-FE “E--fF i S -2
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETT ARBTR ARETT
Financial assets TREE
Derivative financial instruments (TEeRIA 22 % 22 %
22 96 22 96
Financial liabilities tRAR
Loans from a controling shareholder —#i2IRR E 121,415 105,891 121,415 105,891
Lease liabilties HEARE 44,928 29,593 44,928 29,593
Bank and other borrowings RTRAMEE 800,090 866,187 850,254 889,986
Liability component of the BREREEDS
Convertible Bonds 72,879 73,155 74,249 76,257
1,039,312 1,074,826 1,099,846 1,101,727
Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and EEECTEReERBEEY  B2H
cash equivalents, pledged and restricted deposits and financial R ZBREIFR - 5T ARKE SRR
assets included in trade and other receivables and financial HMBERHRIAZ SMEE 5T ARBNE
liabilities included in trade and other payables approximate to their FERNEMENRBEz EBREBEZR
carrying amounts largely due to the short term maturities of these REEEAEREBEABES - REZL
instruments. ST EFREEARIE -
The Group’s finance department headed by the chief financial officer REB BB HKREETE  BF
is responsible for determining the policies and procedures for the ErTemIEBARN jﬂﬁfﬁu‘f’iZB@ﬁ

fair value measurement of financial instruments. The chief financial
officer reports directly to the audit committee. At each reporting
date, the finance manager analyses the movements in the values
of financial instruments and determines the major inputs applied in
the valuation. The valuation is reviewed and approved by the chief
financial officer.

@ HUA YIN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED # Z BB #Z R B R A A
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35.FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Fair value of financial instruments (Continued)

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included
at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a
current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or
liquidation sale. The following methods and assumptions were used
to estimate the fair values:

The fair values of the bank and other borrowings and the liability
component of the Convertible Bonds have been calculated by
discounting the expected future cash flows using rates currently
available for instruments with similar terms, credit risk and remaining
maturities. The Group’s own non-performance risk for bank and
other borrowings and the Convertible Bonds as at 31 March 2021
and 2020 was assessed to be insignificant.

BEeMITAEZAARBERED A

B}

EHEH (&)
ST ARz D EEE)

BRBCERBFREESN  eMEERARE
ZonBERABERNN ZEETR
BRGHAIRMIAZ S - U TAE
MERERREGAAEE

RITREMEEURTRKRESEES
DRZARBEEBEBIZBERK 5
E R R R HARR AR AT 3t T B4R
R WA ERTRBIRRRESTREE o
RZBZ—FRZFE_FF=H=*—
B AEBASHETREAMEEAR
RBREHFZ TEORBREFTE A TE
j( o

Fair value hierarchy AREBEER
The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy TR AEBepRITAE AR BER
of the Group’s financial instruments: =254

Fair value measurement
as at 31 March 2021 using
RANTHER-2=-F

ZA=t-BZAAGEENE

Significant

Significant unobservable

Quoted pricesin  observable inputs inputs

active markets (Level 2) (Level 3)

(Level 1) EATER EATTHE
ERTHERE BARE BAE Total
(B-%&) (B=&) (B=#) -
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TFR AR¥TFR ARETR AR¥TT
Derlvative financial instruments fTEemIA - - 22 22
- - 22 22
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R AR

For the year ended 31 March 2021 HZE=—ZT=—F=/A=+—HIFE

35.FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

35.

EMTAZAABERAIAE

BEF&K ()

IRBEESR(E)

Fair value measurement

as at 31 March 2020 using
RANTHER _T_2F
ZA=t-HZRAEEHE

Significant

Quoted prices in Significant unobservable

active markets observable inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

EVNG- 7 ERANHE

RETSHE BAHR BAE
(F-8) (B=#) (B=R) @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFT ARETT AREFT
Derivative financial instruments fTEeRIA - - % %
- - 96 9%

Below is a summary of significant unobservable inputs to the

valuation of financial instruments together with a quantitative

sensitivity analysis as at 31 March 2021 and 2020:

UTER-_E-—FN T -_FF=F
—t—HeRMIAHBEZERTITER
BABBEIHME EREZLHBESD

7
Significant

Valuation unobservable
techniques inputs Range
EERTS EATAEERARE &
Early redemption rights embedded Binomial Expected volatility 110.8%
in the Convertible Bonds pricing model AR (2020: 110.8%)
MR AR E% R AT B A BT ERR (ZZZZF - 110.8%)
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35.FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

The fair value of the conversion option embedded in convertible
bonds is determined using the binomial pricing model and the
significant unobservable input used in the fair value measurement
is the expected volatility. The fair value measurement is positively
correlated to the expected volatility.

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements
between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3
for both financial assets and financial liabilities (2020: Nil).

The movements in fair value measurements within Level 3, which
only comprises the early redemptive rights embedded in the
Convertible Bonds, during the year are set out in note 25 to the
consolidated financial statement.

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments, other than derivatives,
comprise the Convertible Bonds, bank and other borrowings,
pledged and restricted deposits and cash and cash equivalents.
The main purpose of these financial instruments is to raise finance
for the Group’s operations. The Group has various other financial
assets and liabilities such as trade and other receivables/payables
and lease liabilities which arise directly from its operations.

It is, and has been throughout the year under review, the Group’s
policy that no trading in financial instruments shall be undertaken.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are
interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.
The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing
each of these risks and they are summarised below.

BEeMITAEZAARBERED A

B}

(EE46 )
IRBEESR(E)

BMARBRRESR 2 BEE 2 AAEET
ER-EAEEERYETE  MAR
BEMEMBZEATAERE ARIE
RIBHRIE - DA EEFEERKE
BILEHEBRE -

Fn ReREERSMAMAE - £
—RRE RO K BE 2L ES
B MENEERSRAEZRAAE
BEHE(-BoTE &) -

FR - RE=ZBAZLDAEBEFEZE
8 (RBERARRRIES 2 E 5D
) BN AR A TSR MR 25

IHEREERERBR

BROTET RN AEEZTESHMTA
BREABEES  RITREMEE B
ERLZRBIFFRARRE MR EE
Y ZFERITASE/ANKREZERY
E58 AKERZEAMESREE
REfE R ENE SRR EA
U TN RIAREE AR DEEE

AEBRR MR EBELBEF RN BRS
TPReMIAES -

AEBZEMTAMELZ T 2RRA
MEER - SMNERR - EERR MRS
EvER EFCRARIRAZER
RAR 2 EEBER - BRI T -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e AR R M ~

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #ZE—Z—= 4=A=+HAILEE k

36.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 36. B % E R EE B ZERBUE (&)
AND POLICIES (Continued)

Interest rate risk 2= = b

The Group’s exposure to market risk for changes in interest rates REEBMAZTSENEETRAL =2
relates primarily to the Group’s bank deposits and interest-bearing BRAEERITERRGTEEEEARS
borrowings and the Group currently does not have an interest B B AT EF R E R - AAm - B
rate hedging policy. However, management monitors interest rate EekERMERlE  WEREFERS
exposure and will consider hedging significant interest rate exposure BEDRE RN R

should the need arise.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably TRINTEMBHMAIERZRFTE
possible change in interest rates, with all other variables held ZBERT MR ABR B (K2R
constant, of the Group’s loss after tax through the impact on bank IRITER Z Z28) HAREERBIEEEN
loans with floating interest rates. BRE DT o
Increase/
Increase/ (decrease)
(decrease) in loss
in basis points after tax
BB, MR EER
(RA) #m, G
RMB’000
ARETTT
2021 —E-—F
Bank loans RITER nil £& nil &
Bank loans RITERK nil & nil &
2020 —E-TF
Bank loans RITER 50 145
Bank loans RITER (50) (145)
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Continued)
Foreign currency risk

The Group’s exposure to foreign currency risk mainly arises from
the Group’s debts denominated in HK$ which were borrowed
by the Group’s entities with the functional currency of HK$, while
the Group’s presentation currency of the consolidated financial
statements is RMB.

Since the Group mainly engages in its business operations in
the PRC, transactional currency exposure arising from sales or
purchases in currencies other RMB has an immaterial impact on the
Group’s results and equity.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity as at 31 March 2021
to a reasonably possible change in the HK$ and RMB exchange
rates, with all other variables held constant, of the Group’s equity
(due to translation of the operating results and financial position of
each subsidiary with functional currencies other than RMB into the
presentation currency of RMB used for the consolidated financial
statements of the Group).

36. M 5 e B HE B R R BUR ()

SN R e

ARESNERR EEREAREILE
A2 (T - BER AR X
BEA TRAEEBZDERE RS
% BARBREANBER L 2IE
ERARES -

HRAREEIERNHTEEERS - B8
BEARBIIINEE 2 X 5B R R
REERREEENESZETAK -

TRERR-ZZE-_—F=ZA=+—0%
THRAREER AR LB B H AL
EigEm (AR RENEEE B ARKASN
ZEMBRAR ZEEEBERMBERAR
REEGEMBREMAZ2IEEA
RE) < GRBRED - BEREMAETE
EEAEFF T o

Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) (decrease)
in HK$ rate in equity
BTER R,
2, (i) O 4)
% RMB’000
% AREBFT
2021 —T-—fF
RMB strengthens against HK$ AR S ETIHE 3 2,744
RMB weakens against HK$ ARBHBETRE ()] (2,744)
2020 ZTTF
RMB strengthens against HK$ AREHETIHE 3 5,007
RMB weakens against HK$ AR HAETEE &) (5,007)
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e SRR M

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #HZEZE—ZT—-—F=A=+—HIFE

36.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 36.
AND POLICIES (Continued)

Credit risk

The Group is exposed to credit risk in relation to its trade and
other receivables, lease receivables, pledged bank deposit and
bank balances due to counterparties’ inability to meet its financial
obligations to make repayments.

Credit risk arising from trade and lease receivables

The Group closely monitors the collection of progress payments
from customers in accordance with payment schedule agreed with
customers and follow up action is taken to recover overdue debts, if
any.

To measure the ECL of trade receivables and lease receivables,
they have been grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics
that are representative of the customers’ abilities to pay all amounts
due in accordance with the contractual terms. The Group applies
a simplified approach in calculating ECL for trade receivables and
lease receivables and recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime
ECL at each reporting date and has established a provision matrix
that is based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
forward-looking factors that are specific to the debtors and general
economic conditions of the industry in which the counterparties
operate in estimating the probability of default of these financial
assets. The expected loss rate used in the provision matrix is
calculated based on actual credit loss experience over the past
three years and historical settlement and past experience. Expected
loss rate of the overall trade receivables from property management
income is assessed to be 5% to 50% (2020: 5% to 50%). The
Group has a policy of making impairment loss allowance on the
gross carrying amount when the financial asset is 1 year past due.
At the end of the reporting period, certain trade receivables were
considered as credit-impaired and provision for impairment of
RMB5,691,000 (2020: RMB4,135,000) were provided. For lease
receivables, after consideration, the management of the Group
considers any addition of ECL of lease receivables to be insignificant
and no loss allowance provision is made during the year.

@ HUA YIN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED # Z BB #Z R B R A A
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

Credit risk arising from trade and lease receivables
(Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has minimal
concentration of credit risk as the trade receivables from the largest
single customer represented less than 5% (2020: 5%) of the total
trade receivables.

Credit risk arising from other receivables

In estimating the provision for impairment of other receivables and in
determining whether there is a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, the Group has taken into account the historical
actual credit loss experience, negotiation results with the debtors,
adjusted for forward-looking factors that are specific to the debtors
with the consideration of the economy in Jilin Province in estimating
the probability of default of these financial assets, as well as the
loss upon default in each case. At the end of the reporting period,
the Group considers credit quality of certain debts was worsen
which gave rise to a significant increase in credit risk and therefore
considered as credit-impaired. The Group measures the provision for
impairment at an amount equal to the lifetime ECL and recognised
provision for impairment on other receivables of RMB64,279,000
(2020: RMB308,802,000). There was no change in the significant
assumptions made during the year. The increase of the expected
loss rate on other receivables is due to the reclassification of certain
other receivables as disposal group held for sale at the end of the
reporting period. The management considered any additional ECL
of these other receivables to be insignificant.

36. M 5 e B HE B R R BUR ()

&R (%)

BRESZRAREERBUREEE
ZiEEmEE (&)

REBBAR - BRREZAE—FFH
ERE ZERFIGEWE ZRFBE DR
5%(ZFE_FF :5%)  BWAEBEZE
BEPRBTK o

HittEWRBEE ZEERR

PMERT E A EUGRIE R E R E R EE
B ERAUREERREEBEILM
K ASECRELEREEBBL
BRLEEBAZERLER  UHEBA
BFEAMBEMHERELAR PR
HEMEBLEBR  LWETZESHE
EZEARE  DHESBATENZE
Ko REBREHAKR  AEEREE TER
JEEEZRDEE  SHEERRBE
i AR AR EERE - AEER
SRERHE TEER2HEHEE
B8 - WHERHE MR IEREREA
R#64,279000t(Z T =T F : AR
& 308,802,0007T) © F A - HE AR
Bz EBHIIANRE - HabEWERIE
HEBEN AT EEE THMBKEK
BEHEARERE ZHEMAR - EEE
RAEZEH M UK 2 E R EEINE S
BEEBBITEK -
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e SRR M ~

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #Z—B——&=F=+—H -4 &

36.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 36. B % E R EE B ZERBUE (&)
AND POLICIES (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued) EERE ()
Credit risk arising from other receivables (Continued) HEWREEE 2 EERE (&)
The movement of the provision for impairment for the balances are ERRREREEESMNT

summarised as below:

For the year ended 31 March 2021 BE-ZE-_—F=A=+—HLEE
Deposits Deposits for Other
for land construction receivables,
development and pre-sale prepayment
expenditure of projects and deposit
THBERAX BERAE HitEYFE - Total
ZEE BHEz#ESE AfERES H)
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBT ARBTT ARETR
At beginning of year REA 249,328 14,852 44,622 308,802
Net increase in provision BEEmFE 4,431 - 8,501 13,022
Reclassified as disposal group ENNERBIE
held for sale & HEAR (231,664) (9,862) (16,019) (257,545)
At 31 March 2021 i 3
—A=+-H 22,095 4,990 37,194 64,279
Gross carrying amounts FReE 22,095 6,741 45,936
Expected loss rate bl 100% 74% 81%
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36.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 36.Bf i E e EE B R R BUER (&)

AND POLICIES (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued) EERE ()

Htt Rl REEE 2 EE AR (&)

Credit risk arising from other receivables (Continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2020 HE-Z-_TF-A=-1+—HItFE

Deposits Deposits for Other
for land construction receivables,
development and pre-sale prepayment
expenditure of projects and deposit
THERAX BEREE H YR Total
b5 ER & ENFERES @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
AEBTT ARBTT ARETT AREFT
At beginning of year REAN - - 10,948 10,948
Increase in provision BEEm 249,328 14,852 33,674 297,854
At 31 March 2020 WZZ-ZF
=A=1+-AH 249,328 14,852 44,622 308,802
Gross carrying amounts FRAE 337,487 31,496 76,085
Expected loss rate jib i =R 74% 47% 58%

Credit risk arising from bank balances

Substantially all of the Group’s pledged bank deposits and bank
balances and cash were deposited in creditworthy global banks and
state-controlled financial institutions in the PRC, which management
considers they are without significant credit risks.

Liquidity risk

The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate bank
deposits and cash, funding through both equity and debt financing,
monitoring forecast and actual cash flows and matching the maturity
profiles of financial assets and liabilities.

The liquidity risk is under continuous monitoring by management.
Management monitors the utilisation of borrowings. At the end of
the reporting period, the Board of Directors expected that the Group
had no significant liquidity risk in the near future.

RITHRBREEZEERR

REBBAEND EERRITFFA KR
THHEEASHERNEERIFNEIR
RITLEBSHEE MEEERR/HE
WEEXNEER

REBE = ER

AEBEBEFEHRITEANEAS
AR R BB EE B - BERFER
LRERRERE  UWRERSREEN
BEZIHERRERRDE SRR

MBECARAEREHEEE - 18
BEREEZMNA RERPKR EF
SEMAKENA AR EEARD
ARk
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements “\
e ISR AR M EE ~
N

For the year ended 31 March 2021 BE—Z-——F=A=+—HItFE

36.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 36. B #EEE B ZERBEE (&)
AND POLICIES (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued) REBESER (&)
The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at the end of REBRZRARBIES LR
the reporting period, based on contractual undiscounted payments, ZERBEZIEERNT
is as follows:
2021
“E--F
3 to less than 1 to less than
Less than 12 months 2 years
3 months Se =£3 2to 5 years Total
PREER SRR DRWE MEZLE @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFR ARETR ARETR AR#FR AR®TR

Trade and other payables ERESEH R R
FB 507,210 - - - 507,210
Lease liabilties HE8E 3,134 9,403 9,839 24,550 46,926
Loans from a controling shareholder  — 212k E E 3 121,415 - - - 121,415
Bank and other borrowings RIREMEE 47,815 160,434 116,000 657,432 981,681
Liability component of the THREFEEDS
Convertible Bonds 481 74,249 - - 74,730
680,055 244,086 125,839 681,982 1,731,962
2020
ZECTF
Less than 31to less than 1 toless than
3months 12 months 2 years 2105 years Total
=z %
HR={ERA i ) DRWE MEEREF FCh
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT AREFT ANRETT AREFT
Trade and other payables ERE SRR R LR
e 647,505 - - - 647,505
Lease liabilities HEARE 7,233 21,659 2,482 414 31,788
Loans from a controling shareholder  — 232 R E 3 105,891 - - - 105,891
Bank and other borrowings FITREMEE 364,175 360,407 66,097 122,094 913,673
Liability component of the THREFEERS
Convertible Bonds 1,611 81,166 - - 82,777
1,126,415 463,232 68,579 123,408 1,781,634
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Continued)
Capital management

The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to
maintain the Group’s stability and growth.

The management regularly reviews and manages its capital structure
and makes adjustments to it by taking into consideration changes
in economic conditions, future capital requirements of the Group,
prevailing and projected profitability and operating cash flows,
projected capital expenditures and projected strategic investment
opportunities.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt
divided by the adjusted capital plus net debt. Net debt includes
loans from a controlling shareholder, bank and other borrowings,
trade and other payables, less cash and cash equivalents and
pledged and restricted deposits. Adjusted capital includes the
liability component of the Convertible Bonds and equity. The gearing
ratios as at the end of the reporting periods were as follows:

36. M 5 e B HE B R R BUR ()

EXxEE

AEBEAEEZ TEARERRER
SECRELER -

EEEBEHRILEREREARRE I
REERT 228 AEEHREART
Z - BIOMERBENEN REERER
B FERE AR A KR FRRI KRS IR B
SYHEELFE -

REBNAEABBLRERELRN - &
LRI FERRARHBRER S INEE
H o RFERBEERBRERER - RITR
HEE  EBNE SRR M E R
B EREMREFEWURE TR
XRFBIFRK - KRABEABREATRKRE
HFREBOREAE RERPRZER
BELLEMT

2021 2020
—E-—F —T_TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T AREFIT
Loans from a controling shareholder — 2% f& A& B8 & 3% 121,415 105,891
Bank and other borrowings RITREMEE 800,090 866,187
Trade and other payables FET B 5 8RR R B FE A 5R0R 507,210 647,505
Less: Cash and cash equivalents ~ J& : IR & RIBSEEY (117,938) (30,500)
Pledged and restricted B R R HIF R
deposits (8,715) (19,009)
Net debt RIETR 1,302,062 1,570,074
Liability component of AMRESFaESD
the Convertible Bonds 72,879 73,155
Equity s (13,707) 451,916
Adjusted capital KR ER 59,172 525,071
Adjusted capital and net debt KRR ERRFEIR 1,361,234 2,095,145
Gearing ratio BEXRBRELE 96% 75%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 #HZEZE—ZT—-—F=A=+—HIFE ! \

37.STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 37.74< 2 B Bf IR &
COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of the Company REMEBARRT QAT BEAR AT 2 ER LA
at the end of the reporting period is as follows: s 8
31 March 31 March
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TH
=A=+-—H EF=T—E
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T ARET T
NON-CURRENT ASSET FREBEE
Interests in subsidiaries KRB AR Z R 45,181 785,571
Total non-current asset FRBEELE 45,181 785,571
CURRENT ASSETS RENEE
Other receivables H b fEU R I8 651 744
Derivative financial instruments PTEemITA 22 96
Cash and cash equivalents ReMREEEY 77,451 5,950
Total current assets REEEHAE 78,124 6,790
CURRENT LIABILITIES mEEE
Other payables Ho e SRR 13,250 17,693
Liability components of AR ESFaES Y
the Convertible Bonds 72,879 -
Total current liabilities mENBERE 86,129 17,693
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES REBAETFHE (8,005) (10,903)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT AEERAEEE
LIABILITIES 37,176 774,668
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEME
Liability component of MR ESFaEL Y
the Convertible Bonds - 73,155
Total non-current liabilities FkREE ELEEE - 73,155
Net assets FEE 37,176 701,513
EQUITY xR
Share capital &N 292,554 228,370
Convertible preference shares AT A RAE S I 299,515 1,181,940
Equity component of MR ESERE S
the Convertible Bonds 40,368 40,368
Reserves (Note) R (M) (595,261) (749,165)
TOTAL EQUITY RERBE 37,176 701,513

KRN ER - E-_—FA=ZTH
AEEESEREESRE  WAUT

This statement of financial position was approved and authorised for
issue by the Board of Directors on 29 June 2021 and signed on its

behalf by ATHREEE -
Cui Xintong Li Junjie
ExE 020
Director Director
EF EFE
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37.STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 37.& QBB (48)
COMPANY (Continued)

Note: FieE
The movement of the Company’s reserves is as follows: AAREBESWNT
Share
Share Exchange Contributed option Retained Other
premium reserve surplus reserve earnings reserves Total
RiaE HERE EON:E BRERE REEA Eftite EH

RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETR  ARWTR  ARBTR  ARETR  ARMTR  ARRTR  ARETR

At 1 Apri 2020 KZE-FEMA-A 3,535,139 221,101 184,684 20,716 (4,757,553) 46,748 (749,165)
Loss for the year ERER - - - - (716,606) - (716,606)
Other comprehensive income EREHZERA

for the year
Exchange diflerences EXEE

on translation - (33,669) - - = = (33,669)
Total comprehensive income ERZENALE

for the year - (33,669) - - (716,606) - (750,275)
Transactions with owners: HEEARS -
Contribution and distributions FEENR
Issuance of new ordinary shere under RERHEERT

share placement FERR 73,661 - - - - - 73,661
Lapse/forfeiture of share options BN/ - - - (93) 93 - -
Share issued upon conversion of TEELRE AR

convertible preference shares ¥k 830,518 - - - - - 830,518
At 31 March 2021 RZF--%=f=1-H 4,439,318 187,432 184,684 20,623 (5,474,066) 46,748 595,261

Share
Share Exchange Contributed option Retained QOther
premium reserve surplus reserve earnings reseres Total
B &E SNERE FARE BIERE REER EthEEE @t

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTL  ARETT ARETR ARETn ARETR ARMTR ARETR

At 1 Apri 2019 R-E-NERA-A 3,535,139 (24,104 184,684 24,558 (251,837) 46,748 3,515,188
Loss for the year ERER - - - - (4,500558) - (4,509,558)
Other comprehensive income EREEZENA

for the year
Exchange diflerences EXER

on translation - 245,206 - - - - 245,205
Total comprehensive income ERZENALE

forthe year . 245,205 - S (509559) S 23R
Transaction vith owners: HEEARS -
Contribution and distributions FEEA R
Lapse/forfeiture of share options BIRERN/ B - - - (3842) 3842 - -
At 31 March 2020 R-5-55-f=1-H 3,635,139 221,101 184,684 20,716 (4,757,553) 46,748 (749,165)
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 #HZE—ZT—-—F=A=+—HIFE \

38.APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED 38#tEGEHMERK

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The consolidated financial statements were approved and FEMBHRERERZZTZ—FAH
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 29 June 2021. ZTHNABEETSHERIRESRE -
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Schedule of Principal Properties

EBYER

EEBREY T OEEN
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES REYE
Percentage
Category of held by
Address Lot No. the lease Use Lease expiry the Group
iy |
3t R RS HEER R HEER FisEA
Portion of Guangze International N/A Medium-term lease Retalil 2053 100%
Shopping Centre, TiER RERE & ZTH=F
135 Hunjiang Dajie,
Hunjiang District, The properties
Jilin Province, have a total gross
PRC floor area of
FRERE 60,672.33 5. m.
BIE MFREEEER
BIIRHE135% 60,672.33 F 77K
BEEREND LS
Car parking spaces of N/A Medium-term lease Car parks 2053 100%
Guangze International NEA RERE FE5 “EhR=F
Shopping Centre,
135 Hunjiang Dajie, The properties
Hunjiang District, have a total gross
Jilin Province, floor area of
PRC 7,760.53 sg. m.
REENE MEREEEER
BIE 7,760.53 F K
BIAE 1355



Schedule of Principal Properties

EBYER

PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT BRPY=E

Estimated
gross Expected
floor area Stage of date of
Address (sg.m)  Uses Lease expiry completion completion
B EEHR st
it (FHR) AR REER TIRR ZIAH

Percentage
held by

the Group
r5E
FED I

1. Changbaishan Ground Pine 623,979 Residential Residential: 2082 Construction N/A
Township International Resort and commercial Commercial: 2052 suspended @R
(REILBZEN/MEERE R, (ncluding hotels) % : ZBN-F EZRET
Guosong Village Donggang Town, FEREE HE:ZTh-F
Fusong County, (BIEEE)

Baishan, Jilin Province,
PRC

HEERE

A LA

R

Rl ME

&AW

BEERINE
AR E R

2. Guangze China House 43,370 Residential Residential: 2084 Construction in 2021
Phase I(A) and commercial Commercial: 2054 progress “E--F
(BEH=—(H) FEREE fFE: ZB\mF ERH
North of National Highway 201, [EE Jpme it
Hunjiang District,

Baishan, Jilin Province, PRC
PEEMHE

BILETLE

201 BIE LA
BEET—-(AH

3 Guangze Jiuxi Red House 67,400  Residential 2090 Construction in 2021
(BENELR) fF=E ZENEE progress —EoF
Xinli Vilage, Egh
Jiujiao Street Office,
Jiutai District,
Changchun, Jilin Province,
PRC
hEENE
RENGE
NARETBME R

@ HUA YIN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED # Z BB #Z R B R A A
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COMPLETED PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE FEHEEERME

Approximate
gross floor Percentage
area Year of held by
Address (sg. m) Uses Lease expiry Completion the Group
BH
BEER K&HE
i (FHXK) B HEER TIEH EsEVl
1. Wansheng e Qiancheng International”, 21,477 Residential, Residential: 2081 2017 100%
(BFt « BUSREIRR) commercial, Commercial: 2051 —Z—+4F
Also known as #2% and fEEWE" office, FE: ZENF
for marketing purpose storage and HE:—T1-F
Jiefang West Road, car parks
Chuanying District, Jiin, T BE - B
Jilin Province, PRC Z  RERFES
REEHE
MR
3 Gitlzy
BTt o BB (1EE A
& TERRERITEENE")
2. Portion of Guangze International 27,499 Residential, Residential: 2083 2014 100%
Shopping Centre, retail and Commercial: 2053 ~—F—MF
135 Hunjiang Dajie, car parks FE: ZZN=F
Hunjiang District, T -TER BE:ZZh=F
Baishan, Jiiin Province, (X
PRC
REENE
HIEIR
BIIAHE135%
BEREEDRLE D
3. Guangze China House Phase | 37,414 Residential and Residential: 2084 2019 100%
(E2E=—H) commercial Commercial: 2054 ~Z—h%F
North of National Highway 201, FEREE FE: ZEN\EF
Hunjiang District, HE: —FHhNF
Baishan, Jilin Province,
PRC
REENE
BIEIE
201 BB

BER=—H
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Schedule of Principal Properties
FEYFER o
L W

COMPLETED PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE #{EHES%ERYZE (&)

(continued)
Approximate
gross floor Percentage
area Year of held by
Address (sq. m) Uses Lease expiry Completion the Group
8L
BEHE AEE
3t (EHK) R HHER TEIFEH FEADL
4. Porton of Guangze ¢ Amethyst 1,197 Residential, Residential: 2080 2011 100%
City Phase I commercial and Commercial: 2050 —F——%F
(B2 o RRH—H), car park FE: ZENEF
Jiefang West Road, FE BER HE: ZTHEF
Chuanying District, (2
Jilin, Jilin Province, PRC
RE#ENE
EMMEE
Gl
BZ o« R — 55
5. Portion of Guangze ® Amethyst 18,786 Residential, Residential: 2082 2013 100%
City Phase Il and commercial, Commercial: 2052 —E—=%
Relocated District* storage and FE:ZZN-F
(BE e Xafl —HNEER), car parks BE:ZTH-F
Jiefang West Road, =R TE
Chuanying District, FEREES
Jilin, Jilin Province,
PRC
RE#EHE
EMmER
il
B2 e RRH_H
MEBE -
6. Guangze Red House Phase | 1,216 Residential, Residential: 2084 2016 100%
(B2 —5), commercial Commercial: 2054 —Z—<F
South of Gongyuan Road, and car parks FE: ZTN\WE
East of Jindalal FE BER BE: —TONF
North Street, Yanj, FE5
Jilin Province,
PRC
hE#HHE
]
REBEAIREER
JEERA

BRI
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COMPLETED PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE #FEFHECERWE (&)
(continued)

Approximate

gross floor Percentage

area Year of held by

Address (sq. m) Uses Lease expiry Completion the Group
BH

BEEE S|

3t (FHK) Jii}e HAER ) AL

7. Guangze Red House Phase |l 2,794 Residential, Residential: 2085 2018 100%
(BB, commercial Commercial: 2055 ~—ZF—/\F
West of Jindalai, and carparks % ZEN\TE
North Street, FE - BER BE: ZTHARE
South of Lihua Road, FE5
Yanxi Street, Yanji,

Jilin Province,

PRC

hEENE

&

SERIE

Al R F AT
E2LEl

EROF=H

8. Guangze Red House Phase Il and 6,659 Residential and Residential: 2085 2019 100%
Relocated District commercial Commercial: 2055 —Z—h&F
(BRI =HNEEE), FEREE FE: —ZN\RFE
East of Wenhua East Street, HE: ZFTHAF
Yaniji, Jilin Province,
PRC
REEHE
E&EM
XA RERE
BEL[N=AMEERE

9. Guangze * Tudors Palace 16,105 Residential 2082 2016 100%
(BZ e HE), £ —TNZE ZERF
Jiefang West Road,

Chuanying District,
Jilin, Jilin Province,
PRC

i

EHE
MR

35 Gl
BEeRE

*  Those completed properties held for sale were classified as assets * ZERFELHEDEXRDELHBREFIEL
associated with disposal group classified held for sale and the disposal was EHEANEECAERZEEEEZE
completed in June 2021. Z—FRAFK -
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Five-year Financial Summary

RFMBEE ~

|
N
(Expressed in RMB million, (RBFEHD 28I Year ended 31 March
unless otherwise stated) ARBEERES) HE=A=1-HLEE
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
—B--F —E-FF BNk —2-N\F 3
(Re-presented) (Re-presented)
(51) (&31)
(note 1) (note 2)
(Fitz1) (Ftz2)
Revenue e 153.3 242.7 654.5 9200 10825
Gross (loss) profit (EB)EA (84.5) (44.6 1745 164.8 2749
(Loss) profit for the year from REHELEERL
continuing operations FE(58) &7 (515.2) (1,367.5) 16 59.2 474
(Loss) profit for the year from REBRILEEEH L
discontinued operations FE(F8) &7 - (416.9) 14 88) 237
(Loss) profit for the year £ (B8 &M (515.2) (1,784.4) 23.0 50.4 70.8
Basic (loss) eanings from continuing ~~ REHELL LR 2 5k
operations per share (RMB cents) EA(EB) &H
(ARER) (8.94) (25.93) 0.22 13 28
Total assets BAE 2,281.3 2,555.8 48307 5,300.2 56153
Total liabilties gak 2,295.0 21039 25024 3,044.6 38985
Net (iabilties) assets FRE)EE (13.7) 4519 23283 2,264.6 17168
Net (labilties) assets value per B8R EETE
share (RVB) (AR#) (0.002) 0.09 044 0.43 053

(1) The figures in respect of profit or loss items have been re-presented to reflect (1) BEGF|KEIEBEENHAFTLEEEY - UK

the continuing and discontinued operations caused by the Fengrun Disposal. MEEEEEEEmMEMMRELCE DK

(2) The figures in respect of profit or loss items were re-presented to reflect  (2) BRI FHEEBEE B FTLDESY] UK
the continuing and discontinued operations caused by the disposal of BMEARZ-ZZ—+tFALHELBEETER
telecommunications retail sales and management service business in ERERBEFSMERNFELERDKIEL
Shanghai in June 2017. B o
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